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iMI plc

IMI

O purpose is 1o delivel
great solutions that 1ackle
the most demanding
engineering challenges.

We help some ot the world’s
leading industrial companies
operale their processes
safely, cleanly, efficiently
and cost effectively.

We operale through three
divisions - IM! Critical
Engineering, IMI Precision
Engineering and IMI
Hydronic Engineering —

and employ around 11,000
people in over 50 countries
around the world.

1 The Strategic Report on pages 10 to 49, 85, 86 to 87, 89 and 91 has been approved by the Board of
Directors and signed on ther behali by Mark Selway, Chief Executive, on 28 February 2019
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2018 highlights

Up 20bps

14.0%

» Results ahead of market expectations

» Good growth across all Precision Engineering verticals

» Critical Engineering sales growth despite continued
New Construction Power weakness

» Hydronic Engineering margin recovery delivered

» Bimba integration progressing well

» Adjusted Basic EPS increased 12%

» Further reduction of glabal pension liabilities

» 3% increase in the full year dividend recommended

» Roy Twite to succeed Mark Selway as Chief Executive

Al figuras are stated on an adjusted hasis excluding the effect of adjusting tems in the Income statement For other
statutory measures see Consclidated Income Statement on page 84

0On an organic basis, after agjusting for the impact of disposals and acquisitions and movements in exchange rates,
see Section 2.1 1 onpage 93,

7 Operating Cash Flow before adjusting items as described i the commentary to the cash flow statement on page 91

*Adjusted measures are defined in Section 2.1.1 on page 93
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Chairman’s statement

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

2018 - another year of

important progress

We delivered results ahead of market expectations
and continued to execute our stralegy effeciively.

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Charman

Continucus improvement now
firmly established

As we enter the final year of our five year plan it s
an appropriate tme 10 reflect upon the significant
progress that has heen made to date and the work
that remains to be done.

Our culture has been transformed 1M 15 now a
business that, as a matter of course, strives for
continuous «mprovement and recognises the
significant opportunities that flow from ever
increasing operational efficiency and productivity.

i This mindset 1s fundamentally important and,

now embedded throughout the Group, it will support
the delvery of our overall strategic goal — the

i creation of long-term, sustainable value for our

shareholders, employees and other stakenolders.

Dunng the year we improved our health and safety
performance in a number of areas The total number
of LTAs {lost time accidents) reduced more than 20%
and following the launch of a targeted campaign,
the Group delivered a reduction in hand injunes

In the year of over 40%.

The Chief Executive’s review on page 12 and the
aperational reviews on pages 28 to 33 prowde more
details on the recent progress made in each of the
Group’s three divisions, Whilst some of the markets

we sérve thd offer some support to our performance
during the year, elsewhere we did face a number of
economic and trading challenges, Strengthening our
business, and n particular our market competitiveness,
to make the Group more resilient regardless of market
condibens, contnues 10 be a key prionty

In relation to geopolitical uncertanty, we have
developed a number of Brexit related contingency
plans, including building long lead-time nventones
to mihigate supply chain nterruptions n the event
of increased border controls, or delays in obtaining
clearance to and from the UK,

Our people and culture

Cur people around the world remain Key to our
success and they have contributed sigmificantly
to the pragress we have made during the year.
On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all
of our employees for ther continued hard work
and commitment,

Throughout the year the Board has had the

opportunity to spend time with our employees on
a number of occasions. In Apnl | participated in our
senior management conterence. This 15 an annual
event over 2-3 days involving 300 of our business
leaders from across the Group and 1s @ vatuable
opportunity 1o thscuss all aspects of the business
with them. Later in the year we also held our October
Board meeting at Bimba's Universiy Park facihity
near Chicago Atthough Bimba joined the Group only
In January. the team there has embraced our
contintious improvement culture with great
enthuslasm and our Lean processes are already
becoming apparent throughout the busmess

The Board also took the oppertunity to wisit IMI CC
RSM in California During our visit we toured the site
and learned about the continuous improvements
heing made across the business as well as s plans

* 1o expand the product offering to gain market share.

We were also shown remote inspection technologies
provided by IM! and increasingly accepted by
customers as a means by which the product
approval process can be made even more efficient
Dy reducing unnecessary site visits by engineers.

Board and Governance

During the year two new non-executie directors
Jjoined, bringing considerable and relevant
SHPENENCS as well as fresh perspectives o the

IM! Board. Themas Thune Andersen joned the
Board on 1 July 2018 and also became a member
of the Nomnatians and Remuneration Commuttees.
Thomas has extensive knowledge and expenence
in some of the key sectors we operate in, including
ail, energy and critical infrastructure. Katie Jackson
also joined the Board on 1 July 2018 and became
a memper of the Nominations and Remuneration
Committees. Katie has deep knowledge of the
international Ol & Gas market, and significant
corporate finance and business deveiopment

. experience. Further mformation about Thomas

and Katie, and the other members of the Board,
is set out on page 52 to 53,

We acknowledge the infraduction of the 2018
UK Corporate Governance Code and during the
year we ook appropriate steps to prepare for
compliance with the new requirements which
came nto effect fram 1 January 2019,



In November 2018, we announced the
appointment of Birgit Nargaard as non-executive
director with respensibility for workforce
engagement This important role, which 18 1n
line with the revised Code's recommendations,
will build on the various mechanisms we
already operate to ensure we continue to
engage effectively with cur people.

We have also revised our corporate governance
framework and the business cycles for the Board
and s commuttees to reflect the 2018 Code and
appropriate traning has been provided to the Board

Chief Executive succession

Mark Selway will be stepping down as Chief
Executive at the Annual General Meeting in May
and retring from the Board on 31 July 2019,
He wiil be succeaded by Roy Twite, currently
Digional Managing Director of IMI Critical
Engineenng.

Under Mark’s leadership IMI's market position
has been significantly enhanced The Group's
infrastructure has been modernised, its
operational performance radically improved
and its customer offering refreshed. As a resull.
IMl is now a much more robust and sustainable
business. Gn behalf of the Beard | would like

to thank Mark for his leadership, drive and
commitment He has made a significant
contribution 1o the Group, and while fully
respecting his decisien to return home o retire,
we are very sorry to see him go We wish him
well in his retirement back in Australia,

Roy was appointed following a comprehensve
global search process that included both internal
and external candidates Roy joined (M1 in 1988
and has been a member of the Board since
2007. He has held senigr management roles

in all parts of the Group ncluding President

of IMI Hydronic Engineering, President of IMI

Precision Engineering and, since 2011, Divisional
Managing Cirector of IMI Critical Engineering.
The Board is detighted to appoint Roy as IMI's
next Chief Executive. He is a strong and
experienced successor who has been pivotal

to the Group’s continued success He has
extensive operational experience, deep
knowledge of our core markets and

outstanding leadership qualities

Dividend

Reflecting the continued confidence in the
Group's prospects, the Board 1s recommending
an increase In the final dwidend of 3% to 26 Op
(2017 25.2p) making a total dwidend for the
year of 40.6p, an increase of 3% over last
year's 394p

5
2
=
o
a
£
a
=
o
>

MeIne oibereng

SOUBLIBACY) dieCdins

SUWRIRIG PRI



g4 IMI plc

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Group overview

IMI eco-SysStem
inside

\+>

IMI plc is a specialised engineering company that
designs, manufactures and services highly engineered
products that control the precise movement of fluids.

IMI

Critical Engineering

IMI Critical Engineering 1 a world-leading
provider of criical flow controb solutions
that enable vital energy and process
industries to cperate safely, cleanly,
telfably and more efficiently.

>

M Critical Enginsering operatiopal review
Tum to page 28

IMI

Precision Engineering

£916m
£153.2m

IMI Precision Engineering specialises
in developing motion and fiuid control
technelogies for applications where
precision, speed and reliability

are essential.

|> l IMI Pracision Engineering operational review
Tumn to page 30

IMI

Hydronic Engineering '
T £52.0m
IMI Hydronic Engineering is a leading

global suppler of products for hydronic
distribution systems which dehiver optimal and
anergy efficient heating and cooling systems 1o
the residental and commercial bunding sectors.

1,800

> IMI Hydronic Engineering operational review
Tum W page 32

Revenue by geography
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Group revenue by geography
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B

E IMI’s global faotprint

hitp /Awww Imiplc com about-imi‘four-divisions/imi-at-a-glance aspx

Key brands

IMI Bopp & Reuther, IM§ GG,

IMI Flud Kinetics, IM{ InterAtiva,
IMINH, IMI Orton, IM} Remaosa,
IMI 871, IMI TH Jansen, IM{ Truflo
Marine, IMI Truflo Rona, IMI Truflo
Haly, I} Z8J, INMI Zikesch

Main markets

Ol & Gas, Fossi Power, Nuclear
Power, Petrochemizal, lron & Steel,
Desalination ang Process Industries

Major operational locations
Brazl, China, Czech Republic,
Germany, india, faly, Japan, South
Korea, Sweden, Switzerland, UK,

and USA

Key brands
IMI Norgren, IM: Buschjost, IMIFAS,
1M1 Herion, IMI Maxseat, Bimba

Main markets

Commercial Vehicle, Energy, Food
and Beverage, Industrial Automation,
Life Sciencas and Rail

Major operational locations
Brazil, China, Czech Republic,
Germany, India, Mexico, Switzerland,
UK and USA

Key brands
IMI Flow Design, IM] Heimeer,
IMI Pneumatex, IMI TA

Main markets

Water based healing and cooling
systemns for commercial bulldings,
and temperature controf for
residential buldings

Major cperational locations
Germany, Poland, Slovenia, Sweden,
Switzerland and USA

©

Power

01l & Gas

©

Petrochemical

®

Actuation

We are the world leading
suppher of engineered to
order turbing bypass valves
for critical apghications in
conventional and nuclear
power plants — helping to
provide the safest, most
reliable and efficient power
generation,

2018 revenue: £266m

Industrial Automation

We supply anti-surge valve
and actuator sysiems to
the world's largest LNG
compression faclities

Qur systerns are capable
of ultra-fast respanse 10
maxirmise LNG production
while protecting the
COMPIassor.

2018 revenue: £224m

e

Commercial Vehicle

We design and manufacture
integrated flow control systems
for entical applications in Fluid
Catalytic Cracking. We also
supply bespoke valves into the
ethylene, polypropylene and
defayed coking preguction
[ocesses

2018 revenue: £117m

Qil & Gasg

We focus on the design

ardl production of complete
actuation systems to operate
industrial valves for the most
demanding applications ard
processes n terms of forces,
speed ana accuracy and
harsh environments

2018 revenue: £25m

e

Life Scences

We supply high performance
progucts ingluding valves,
valve islands, prepartional ang
pressure menitoring controls
and air preparatien preducts,
as well as a comprehensive
range of pneumatic actuators

2018 revenue: £525m

(2]

Balancing & Control

We design and manufacture
arange of cab chassis

and powertrain solutions
which deliver fuel efficiency,
emissions reduction and
faster assembly times for the
waorld's [eading commercial
vehicle manufacturers

2018 revenue: £196m

Thermostatic Control

We cffer a comprehensive
range of products which deliver
precision control in even

the harshest environments,
ncluding stainfess steel

valves and regulators, nuclear
class valves and emergency
shutdown controls.

2018 revenue: £77m

D

Pressunsation

We supply precision flow
controi solutigns used in
medical devices, diagnostic
equipment and biotech and
analytical nstruments, Our
products help to reduce
the size of equipment,
whig enhancing accuracy,
throughput and fluid control
performance

2018 revenue: £77m

0

Water Quality

QOur hydreniz balancing and
control solutions enaile
bulldings 10 keep comfort at
the right level while improving
HVAC efficiency by up to 30%
Our expertise covers constant
and vanaide fiow and both
static and dynamic balanging

2018 revenue: £151m

We design and manufacture
thermostatic control systems
which guarantee direct or
automatic control of radiators
and underfloor heating
systems to perfectly control
indragdual room temperatures.

2018 revenue: £98m

Rahiable pressunsation 1s a basic
requirement for a trouble-free
operatien of heating, cooling
and solar systems Our robust
range of pressure maintenance
systems with compressas or
pumps and expansion vessels
mainlaing the nght pressure n
the system at all times,

2018 revenue: £32m

The single most important
component (ih any hydronic
system 1 the water itself When
compromised, the effacts can
be felt throughout the system
Cur dirt and arr separators
and pressure step degassers
prelect Ihe installation

by keeping water free of
mcrabubtles and shudge

2018 revenue: £10m
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IMI

tiogale
valves

Refinery

We keep the world moving
from petrol 1o diesel and et
fuel, our specialist valves
refine crude ol to provide
a wide range of products.

Conventipnal
controf vafves i [ 1-9}—[9!':3___
L

Specraiist
tripic cccentric :
butterfly valves Industr la_l HoLme™ actuntor
100PMT choke vaive Automation
We develop solutions for our
customers in the machinery;

food and beverage, printng; and
Offshore platform factory automation ndustnes
We design and provide valves
tor the most criical applcations

ncluding offshore

Excelon® ¢
preparaty

Brinba

tntellsense
Specialist
ball valves
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Data centres

We ensure stable pressure and

clean water for high cooling intensity
applications, preventing premature
equipment falure and costly downtime,

Pressurisation

Dirt separation

Hospitals

Our products help to deliver
gualty, energy-efficient HYAG
systems, which ensure optimal
pahent comfort

rd
Balancing vaives

Medical

devices and

instrumentation

We

performance of therr
systems, enabiing cutiing
edge devices that improve
health and the environment

help OEMs increase

Cadent 3 pump

Brimba Versagrip™
solenoid piveH valve

Bifferential
pressure - :
contrels Thermpsatic
controls
i
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Tripic eccentrc
butterfly valves

LNG

We provide the control and
safety systems to ensure
safe delivery of lquefied
natural gas to power crties
across the world.

Isplation

cryogenic
ball vakes

Anti-Surge valves

Family house

We provide a comprehensive

Cor

range of thermostatic centrol x Qur ra
products, ensuring optimal q&gm solutic
temperature control and - T . reduct
energy efficiency.
vndcrfioor Man
keating frav
it . manrfolds comt
i —
e
Radiator valves s
Thermostatic  Hgn sl Multipurpose
controft

O

commercial building

combine highly precise mechanical valves

ur balancing and control solutions

Pressure
and digital actuation allowing complete ndependent
electronic integration and greater efficiency wodulating
in complex heating and cooling systems. control

Combined )

control &

balancing -
Drgrtal
actustion

"y




Engineering
GREAT the

Combined cycle
power plant

Products designed to cope with hugh
pressure and temperature differences

in the most critical applications ensures
power 1s available when needed

nmercial Vehicle

nge of cab, chassis and powertrain L
ns deliver fuel efficiency, emissions SRR
on and faster assembly times. 4 e

wal

Engrne control Turb "
5,:}?“9" multi-vaive block V:Ivcr:'c bypass 2
M " = -
L) '____—-—'___7 =
. — - \ :
’ l // l Desuperticaters
Rail AMT compressed
air dryer

We offer customised solutions for
all types of rail applications.

controf systewas  Dppr controi )
valve systeins

4 %

Il

\I[ﬁ_
bﬁ el
ELF

/“fl/q

P

YA I T v

|

[/

farg




10 iMi plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

IM1 Critical Engincering are
renowened for design and
manufucture nf specialist
products in affshore applicvations,
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12 IMI plc

Chief Executive’s review

An increasingly

robust portfolio

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

In 2018 IMI delivered a solid operating performance with growth in
sales, earnings and margins when compared to 2017. We enter 2019
with an even more robust portfolio of businesses, a healthy balance
sheet and significant opportunities for future growth.

Mark Selway
Chief Executive

Overview

It 1s pleasing to report the continuation of the
progress achieved in the first half of 2018

Our strategic plan to drive sustainable long-term
growth continues to make a real difference acress
all parts of the Group. Our new product pipeline

15 developing well, our manufacturing operations
have further improved and the new systems

and processes being embedded throughout

the business are delivening gains in efficiency

and competitiveness.

Integration of Bimba Manufacturing
Company (‘Bimba")

The acquisiticn of Bimba for & total consideration
of £138m (US$198m) was completed on

31 January 2018. The transaction has increased
our US revenues while extending IMI Precision
Engineening’s presence i its core Industnal
Automation segment. Good progress has been
made with the integration of Bimba intc Precision
Engtneenng's North Amencan operations. We have

| also accelerated some of our plans for Bimba

to iImprove its operations and {T infrastructure
in readiness for the apportunities for growth
and margin improvement

Trading environment

Trading conditions across our three divisions
continued to be mixed throughout 2018 with
growth in IMI Precision Engineening's end
markets offsetting declines in New Construction
Fossil Power and Energy markets in IM)
Critical Engineering.

For iMI Cniical Engineering, the Petrochemical
market again produced some encouraging
opportunities which reflect the division’s success
at extending s reach into a broader range of
applications. The improving outlook in some
parts of the Cil & Gas sector again contrasted
with the challenging outlook for coal-fired

power generation

In 1M1 Precision Engineering, all of the division §
verticals and regions showed further good
progress in the year, This was achieved despite
tougher comparators and increased market
volatity, particutarly n Industrial Automation,
through the latter part of 2018

Within IMI Hydronic Engineermg where European
construchion represents over 79% of the division,
markets were marginally stronger than the
previous year. Although less sigmiticant for the
dmaston overall, the Nerth America and China
construction markets also continued to grow

While we have a broad international manufacturing
footprint and less than 5% of sales in the UK,

it would be remiss not 1o mention the potential
impact of Brexit on the Group's operating
performance Despite prevaling uncerfainty,

the Group has developed a number of Brexit
related contingency plans Including a programme
of bullding long lead-time inventories to support
customers in the event of increased border
controls or delays in getting clearance to and
from the UK. While we hope that these increased
inventones will not be required, it 1s essential that
we do as much as we can to minimise potential
supply chamn disrupticn and ensure our customer
delivery commitments are met.

Results overview

2018 was another year of important progress for
IMI A now well-established culture of continuous
improvement, both within our gperations and In our
product offering, further enhances our competitive
posttion. irrespective of the market environment.

Adjusied Group revenues were 9% higher at
£1,907m (2017 £1,751m). Excluding adverse
foreign exchange and the acquisition of Bimba,
Group revenues on an organic basis were 5%
higher when compared to the prior year. Adjusted
segmental operating profit was 11% higher at
£266m (2017 £241m} Excluding the impact of
adverse foreign exchange and Bimba, segmental




Strategic timeline
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operating profits were 9% tigher on an organic
basis. The Group's operating margin was
14.0% against 13.8% in 2017 and adjusted
earnings per share were 12% higher at 73.2p
(2017. 65.3p).

Adjusted cperating cash flow of £222m (2017
£218m) followed a strong performance last year
and reflected higher working capital to support
growth in Precision Engineenng and
comparatively higher advanced payments
received by Critical Engineening n 2017.

Both debtor and inventory days showed modest
improvement wiile creditors reflected the impact
of lower pre-payments in Critical Engingering.
Net Debt of £405m (2017 £265m} reflected

Rurke i A2 B antim ot Wit ke

payment of the consideration for Bimba and
resulted in a Net Debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio
of 1.3x against 0 9x at the end of 2017

We continue to be proactive in our efforts to
manage the Group's pension habilities and in
2018 successfully completed the transfer of a

further £409m of habilities ta Insurance partners.

This brings the total value of pension schemes
removed from our balance sheet over the last
two years to £838m The UK schemes remain
in surplus and the overseas deficit remaingd
constant at £80m in the year

Good strategic progress

Qur strategic plan to drive Jong-term sustainable
growth 1s making a real difference across all
parts of the Group. Significantly improved
operational parformance, new systems and
processes that are helping us operale more

+ efficiently and a new product pipeline all

continue to gnhance our competitive position.
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Executive Commitiee

Mark Salway Daniel Shook Roy Twite Massmmo Grass. Phil Chfton Paut Roberts Geoff Tranfrekd John O'Shea

Chiet Exaculve Finance Grrector Dris.onal Marraging Disional Managing Drasional Managng Group Business Group Human Group Legal Director
Dwrecior IMI Cntizal Director Ml Precision Dwector IMIHydrome Development Diractor Renourcas Director and Company
Engmmeennyg Engineeng Engneenng Sucretary

i

Improving our operational | New product pipeline I} am very proud of what the team at IM[ has
performance 1 For each dwision targeted New Product | delivered and t would like to thank our employees
During 2G18 gach of our dwisions further " Development intiatives remain a key focus. | for thewr hard work, commitment and passion.

enhanced their operational performance

At the year-end the Group's average Lean score
increased to 75% compared 1o 71% at the same
pointin 2017 Scrap rates, on-time-celivery and
Inventory management all improved and the
benefits were evident in the Group's results

In the year Most importantly. this improved
performance provides an important foundation
for our increased competitiveness and
responsiveness to customers

They have contributed significantly to the
progress we have made 1n recent years.

| am confident that the solid foundations put

In place n recent years position the Group

well for the future and { would like to wish all
our employees around the world much success

We launched a significant number of new
products dunng 2018 covering a range of
applications All three dwvisions have ambitious
plans to continue their focused product
development strategies in 2019 and beyond.

By increasingly combining New Product
Development initiatives with Value Engineering
processes, we have continued to expand our
addressable markets and are competing in
segments that were not previously accessible

Qutlook

In the first half of 2019 we expect erganic
revenues 1o be lower than the same perncd
in 2018 due to the phasing of Critical
Engineering's order book and slowing market

Pasitioning our businesses

for growth Business development

In the past four years much has been done Alongside our organic growth intiatives, targeted - gemand in the Industrial Automaticn sector In

to stmplfy the way our businesses operate acquisitions that meet our clearly defined and | pragision Engineering, Margins are expected

and make them more efficient, disciplined criteria continue 10 represent a core to be hroadly simitar, supported by our operational

We have invested healy in new systems part of our strategy. We seek opportunities that nitiatives and an improved performance from

and processes which are essential if the Group 3:Ef;'ﬂ:gf:g,?,g:;ﬂ;ﬁgﬁtﬂs gt,'f,x& | Hydronic Engingerng, Rigultsf for the ful year

s to deliver fong-term sustanable growth, As wias the case wih the acquisition of Bimba will also reflect the benefits of restructuring
and our normal second-half bias.

An increasing number of our businesses in January 2018, we aim to engage early with

are Upgrading therr core |T systems to modern potential partners with the ambition of securing

dwvisional platiorms that autormatically manage preferred buyer status anead of any formal

business processes to deliver consistent. process being started.

accurate data As a result, we have better visibility

across the production process and we are able Our people

to manage our day-to-day operations more cost
and time effectively and make our product and
service offering more competitive

This 1s my final IMI Chief Executive's review
Choosing to leave IMI has been a tough
decision, but the tme 18 now right to hand
Across all of our operations we have embedded over 10 a successar to continue the Group's

disciplined and efficient processes, including development. Roy will do a great job leading
New Product Development and Value Engineering the business through its next phase of
These consistent processes support our development and growth

continuous Improvement culture and help
ensure that our investments ultimately deliver
an earlier and grealer return

LORONEOAY| i

2]
=
=
s
a8
b
=3
o
)
©
=,
[
E

oURBLIBAOD) 28104i00

SIUAWIIEIS [BIOLBL |




16 IMI ple Annua! Report and Accounts 2018

Our strategic model

Ouwr business model is built around our core strategic priorilies

of capitalising on growth opportunities, operational excellence,
investment in product development and targeted acquisitions.
Continuous investment in these areas is delivering, more innovative
products and services to our customers and has helped us increase
our competitive advantage. By meeting our customers’ needs and
investing in our leading market positions, we are well placed to grow
profitably to the benefit of all stakeholders including our shareholders.
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boration between divisions

res hest practice shareg
ross ol functions.

arid-class engineering in M|
‘moss, Haly refies on the best
nls and processes. -
At noieering okpertise throwgh
V. lue Enginearing has X
helped transform IM4 Critical
Engingering's vampatitivenc sy,

Stra’ggl_c growth
enablers

To dehver our strateyle
tiowlh objecthives while
capitalismg on the yeographic
and operaticnst capabilitics

ol the Group we continue to
focus on the Tollowing key
strateyic enablys,

Maintaining financial discipline
As we execute our strategy to deliver accelerated
growth, we continue 1o maintain financiat
discipline. Capital s allocated to drve organic
growth, maintain a progressive dwidend policy
in line with earnings and to fund acquisitions,
Whlst retaning flexibiity 1o develop IMI's full
potential, we continue to focus on maintaining
an efficient balance sheet and, i the event of
us having cash n excess of the Group’s current
needs, we will return this excess capital to
shareholders. Through the Ife of our five year
plan we will work to maintan net debt to EBITDA
of ne more than twe times through the cycle

Net debt to adjusted EBITDA
2017 0.9x 2018 1.3x%

Working together as one
simplified IMI

To harness the Group's full potential we remain
determined to maximise the opportunity that
our scale provides us by acting as one IML.
Estabhshing core precesses has provided

a strong platform that underping a framework
for creating consistent Group—wids standards
and behaviours The impact goes far heyond

" manufacturing with industry best practice

now consistently adopted across back-office
functions. The Group intranet 1s a catalyst for

* knowledge and best practice transfer and the

conferences and Leadership Programmes help
build a strong and collaborative environment
across the whole of IMI

Investing in Group-wide IT and
infrastructure

Since 2014 we have significantly enhanced

our IT enabled business capabilities, We are
standardising the ERP systems, business
processes and reporting in our Bivisions 1o
provide us with access to accurate and consistent
data. As a result, we have better visibiity across
the production environment, can manage our
day-to-day operations more efficiently and

make our product and service offerings

more competifive.

IMI Hydronic Engineenng rolled out new systems
across Ifs sales and service offices in Spain, laly,
Switzerland, Austria, Czech Republic, Austraha
and the Netherlands and also installed a new
system at its plant in Fullinsderf in Switzertand.
Today 50% of the division's plants and over
40% of its sales and service offices shara

a common IT system.

Over the past three years, the Group has also
established a sokd foundation of IT secunty
capabilities and contrels across the busimness
This Investment will continue to 1dentify and
remechate new and emerging threats through

a 24/7 Security Operations Centre The Group
nelicies include a requirement that all busingsses
maintan a robus? backup of all critical operating
data so business continuity can be maintained
even in the event of a system failure

The delivery of standardised ERP solutions in each
of our dvisions continues to be a high priority in
terms of major systems investment. In IMI Critical
Engineenng, implementations have taken place in
China, Germany, Switzerland and ltaly IMI Hydronic
enginezring has rolled out new systems in its
Swiss factory and its sales offices in Switzerland,
Austnia, Netherlands, Czech Republic. Spain and
Italy IMI Pracision Engingering has finalised ERP
solutions at its core US sites and will commence
ERP implementations in Asia during 2019

IT infrastructure investment extends far beyond
manufacturing In Engineering and New Product
Development, IMI Precision Engingenng’s

new AutoDesk capahilty allows engineers to
collaborate on product design and specification
regardiess of where they are located, enhancing
our service through drvang out complexty.

This globalisation of the division’s design capabihty
generales several benefits including making the
design process more efficient and cost-effective
Most importantly, it also makes It easier to develop
the optimal product for a specific market and
locahse the manufactuning process accordingly.

Innovative marketing campaigns and digital
communication tools in both IMI Pregision
Engineenng and Ml Hydronic Engineenng are
improving the quality of contact we have with
our customers and allowing them better access to
our progucts and services, much more efficiently
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IMI1 plc

Strategic growth
priorities
Our strategic plan to

accelerate growth is focused
on four key growth pr| ‘

A

Capitalising on Improving
significant organic operational
growth opportunities performance

Our priority is to capitalise on Qur self-help Lean journey
end-markets where we already is underpinned by the

are, or have the potential to be, engagement of management
in a leading position. and employees at all levels.

J J
Turn {0 page 20 Turn to page 22
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Increasing investment = Expanding our
in New Product addressable markets ;
Development through targeted ’

acquisitions
Alf three divisions are Beyond our exisling business o
increasingly delivering on portfolio, we have the potential
our promise to introduce great to expand through the careful
new products and solutions for execution of value enhancing
our customers, more quickly acquisitions,

and more effectively than
ever heiote.
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Strategic growth priorities
Capitalising on [\
significant growth
ngq_r_'tunities B

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

The Group currently operates in a number of attractive end-markets
and to achieve our ambitions we must focus on those that offer the
greatest potential in terms of delivering top and bottom line growth.
Our priority is to capitalise on those end-markels where we already
are, or have the potential to be, in a leading position - markets
where we can grow and where there are significant higher margin
aftermarket opportunities.

S

New facility - Japan { Strengthening our position in

|
\

Capitalising on growing
Over the last four years IMI Critical Engineenng has growing markets market demand
successfully repositioned its business In particular, IMI Precision Enginagring 1s continuing to The glabal underfloor heating market 1s expected
its glohal footprint has been realigned and today | strengthen its presence In growth markets around I to grow at a compound annual growth rate of
the dvision has world-class manufacturing facilies | the worle During 2018 the dwision completed nearly 5% over the next five years, drven by
in the heart of the industry's fastest growing the relocation of its plant In Noida near New Delh | & number of factors including increasing legisiation
markets Building on the success of its new facilies | to a new purpose-built facility. nearby The new ‘ aimed at reducing carbon emissions M Hydronic
in Ching, India and South Kerea, in 2018 the division | facility, which 1s three times the size of the old " Engineering’s product pertfolio includes a range
committed to relocating its existing factory in West plant provides a core low cost manufacturing of products that control underfloor heating
Kcbe, Japan to a new purpose-built facilily near and engineering capabilty to Precision systems, Including manifalds which incorporate
Kobe Airport, Aside from offering a much more Engineering’s, already competitive Asian the division‘s Automatic Flow Control (AFCY
efficient layout. the new plant will focus on the operations Qur New Delhi operations include sales technology. This unigue AFC technclogy ensures
design and manufacture of large valves and and customer service, production, distnbution and that the correct flow rates of water are delvered
hydraulic actuating systems — products that the a technical centre, and provides increased to each room thereby ensuning precise
existing faciity 15 not equipped te manufacture. production capacily to meet the growing demand temperature contrel. In the last 12 months the
This investment wilt enhance IMI Crtical for IMI Precision products in the Indian market division has won a number of significant contracts

Engineering’s offening in the attractve to supply its underfloor heating products and
Petrochemical market in Japan. * technology to both new build and refurbishment
projects across Europe. In particular a number
of municipal and social housing authorities across
central Furope, Including Austria & Germany,
have installed IMI Hydronic Engineering's AFC
technology solution to help save energy across
their building stock
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1 Precision Engincering’s newy Indian
manafaciurimg taciity in Nowa, kndia,

2 IMI Critie.al Engineering’s newes Lean factory
i Japan will suppoert regional growth,

3 Hydrenie Enginceting's fcading underfloor
heatimg manilold, Dynacon Eclipse, notl anly
helps 1o <ave energy in hemes, bul 5 also
casy o install

4 Cardipeard enmneering i action, with
scale rephea of Precision Engineering's
new Indian manufacturing facility.

4 Hydromic Enameering's underlloor heating
soluticns are providing comfort to home
gwncrs and lenants across Gentel Eure)se.
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Strategic growth priorities

Improving operational

performance

As we improve how our businesses operale we are better utilising

Annual Report and Accounts 2018
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capacity, enhancing our competitiveness, reducing working capital
and generating cost savings by operating more efficiently. By doing
this, we are improving our service to customers. We are well on our
way in the self-help Lean journey, underpinned by the engagement
of management and employees at all levels and we remain absolutely
confident that by embedding Lean across the whole of IMI we will
improve our competitiveness and sustain our achievements.

Better operational
performance enhances
customer offering

Across the Group we have continued to optimise the
use of Obeya, the visual tool which faciltates project
management by bringing together multiple work
streams and encouraging collaborative working
practices. The IMI Remosa team in ltaly is now using
Obeya to manage s aftermarket business more
effectively. In partcular, current and future field
service workload, together with field engineering
capabilty and availability, is now clearly mapped to
ensure that the appropriate engineering service 1s
available when required. As a result, the time taken
1o sdentify and match the approprate service
engineer to each job has reduced by 62% and
service engineers, spares and 100fs are more
effectively utifised.

74%

Lean score up 50%
from first assessment

‘

]

i Enhancing Bimba's

‘l operational performance
We completed the acquisitien of Bimba in
January and shortly thereafter launched a Lean
implementation programme 1o begin the process

. of transforming the cperational performance
across Bimba's eight sites The first assessment
process started in March where Bimba's
operations achieved a 19% Lean score, At the
end of 2018, this score had impreved significantly
to 27%. In particular the business’ accident
rates have fallen by 86% and more generally a
continuous iImprovement cuiture 1 now becoming
embedded across the Bimba business, Bimba's
University Park site underwent an accelerated
transformation and mproved their assessment
score from 20% to 44% in under 10 months.

75%

Lean score up 42%
" from first assessment

' Embedding the voice of the

customer in our operational
processes

IM! Rydromic Engineening's facilities in Olkusz
Poland. and Brezice, Siovenia were two of the
first plants tn the Group to achieve werld-class
operational benchmark performance. The dwvision's

i effective application of Lean within its production

faciities 1s now being extended across 1ts sales
offices and distribution hubs to ensure that
customer requirements are consistently delivered.
Additionally, the IMI Hydronic Engineening senior
operations team now meet regularly with sales

" teams and customers out in the field, to befter

understand their needs and collaborate on projects
to address any customer issues or opportunities
which might anse. One such project focussed

On improving our quailty processes to drive

down average respense times and has reduced
unresalved complamis by 85% i1 the final
quarter of 2018

78%

Lean score up 41%
from first assessment




1 Indwvidual valve qualty check al Hydronic
Engmeering’s plant in Ljung, Swoden,

2 IMI Remosa’s werld-clre Hydraulic Powr
Control Units enabl pemals menitannen

to ensure optmused planl i rlormanes
for our custoemers.

3 Bimba's IntelliSense is an mdustry
4,0 product that tegrates directly into
pheumatic systoms, enabling prediclive
mtesligence.

4 Five Hydronic Erginecning siles now have
4 Lean score above 70

5 IMI Remo s has pro filoanes designs

enabling their prado 1 e D it ant

relatulity and oporit-conal s ments,
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Strategic growth priorities

Increasing investment
in New Product
Development

Over the course of the pasli five years, we have successfully embedded
New Product Development systems and disciplines across the Group.
These systems and disciplines include a Group-wide advanced product
quality planning process (APQP}, continuous competitor product tear-
downs, Value Engineering and an increased focus on transformational
technologies. All three divisions now have strong new product
pipelines and are bringing new products and solutions to market
quicker and more effectively than ever before.

N

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Value Engineering delivering Industry 4.0 at the centre of l Maintaining our position at
competitive advantage New Preduct Development the forefront of innovation
Valug Engineenng 1s a core component of the Digitisation 15 at the centre of IM! Precision In the last five years IMI Hydronic Engineerning
division's New Product Development actheties and, Engineering's New Product Development has faunched numerous new products, many
over the last two years, our enhanced skills and ‘ pracess where investrent 1S being focused of which incarporate software that allows them

capability in this area have significantly improved . on product control and data monitoning.

our competitiveness. Despite challenging market This in essence, allows our products o0 be
conditions, since 2016 IMI Critical Engineering has | used as Integrated components N a customers’
won nearly half a billion pounds of new contracts l connected application.

through the apphication of Valug Enginesring tools
and processes On average, a 15% cost reduction
for our customers hag been delivered. Included In
the division's 2018 contract wins was an order for
IMI Remasa to provide a package of products for
nstallation n a Spanish oil refinery which was
being refurbished. The product package included
control systems, actuators and shde valves, which

1o be digtally enabled and connected 1o other
components and systems. This software 1s
developed by the division’s dedicated in-house
Electronic Research & Development team which
focuses on creating solutions 1o satisfy customer
demand and maintain IMI Hydronic Engineering’s
leading position at the forefront of innovation.
During the year the division continued 1o expand
its digrial product portfohio In December we
exiended cur exisiing market Yeading TA-Shder
actuator range to include a number of new
products suttable for smaller applications such

‘ During the year the division expanded its portiolio

’ of high performance, platform and bespoke
products which offer enhanced digial capability

and connectivity. New connecled products inciude

arange of glectric actuators which are expected

10 launch In Spring 2019 at Hannover Messe,

the world leading technology trade farr,

operate together in extreme temperatures of up to | Dugital technology 1s providing a competitive as ceiling cooling. These new actuators, which
980°C. These products control and shut down the | dynamic in {MI Precision’s commercial activities. open and close valves to control the flow of
flow of liquids and gases dunng the critical "crude | The dvision's IMI Norgren Express™ App, which water in HVAC systems, connect to building

ol 1o liquid fuels” conversion process. Using Value enables customers to find and buy products management systems and gather large amounts
Engineering, IMI Remosa was able to re-develop quickly and easily using therr smariphone, of data ultimately used io drive energy and

its products which significantly reduced welting 15 now avallahle worldwide. Ttus efficient and cost efficiencies.

and other manufacturing costs and created
a compelling solution for the customer at a
competitive price.

effective digitised customer service, which
provides access to over haltf a million parts,
15 enhancing our customer suppor offering.




1 Discipling in design with operator input
ensures successful competitive products.

2 IMI FAS launched the new Microsal MS-E
at the Merlic.s 2018 fair in Dusseldort.

3 1ML Critical s strarg repuatalion means
customers work with our businesses
. todevelop products that improve
- Ahwir processus.
The extended TA-Slider digital actuator
range was developed across four different
sites by Hydronic Engineering R&D teams.

1M Norgren’s new electric acluator will be
Jaunched in 2019.

Since launch, TA-Sliders have boeen installed
In hundeeds of buildings world-wide,

3
g
o
The INH Norgren Express app. E':)
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Strategic growth priorities

Expanding our
addressable markets

through targeted acquisitions

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

©)]

Our ambition remains to supplement our organic growth with targeted
acquisitions that enhance our husiness and market reach and leverage
the process and integration capabilities developed in the last few years.

As a result, each division maintains an active bul relatively short list of
potential acquisition pariners. We engage with these companies very
early 1o ensure relationships are established well before any potential
deal. Financial discipline is maintained throughout any process to
ensure a deal has a clear integration plan that will deliver acceptable
returns, including a financial return in excess of the Group’s weighted
average cosl of capital within three years.

Our acquisition strategies for the divisions are:

7

IMI Critical Engineering

Within IMI Critical Engmeering, focus remaing on
extending the division’s reach into new, adjacent
markets and applications to caplure a greater share
of customner spend Such an expansion might
include severe and semi-severe applications and
could also involve extending our geographical
footpnint. M| Critical Engineering’s capabilrtias in
Value Engineering and New Product Development
would support value ¢reation in any completed
acquisition, Many of the potential acquisitions in
this segment are small and mid-sized businesses
with a specific market niche and would fit well into
the IMI global network and culture

1

IMI Precision Engineering

As IMI's largest diwision, IMI Precision Engineenng 1s
also the division that otfers the greatest potential for
a more significant acquisition. A number of potential
pariners in the market are of a larger size and
match our criteria of cultural fit and combnation
logic. Given the size of the market and IMI's strength
of process and market expertise, we are confident
In our ability to successfully deliver value from an
acquisition 1n this industry. The advancement of
the Bimba integration in 2018 provides further
confidence of the significant potential achievabla
through conselidation in this market

This feedback from one of our custormers attests
to the success of the acquisition and integration
of Bimba.

“The acquisition of Bumba by IMI plc brings
together two of the most recognised brands
in the industry. Bimba is very well known as
a leader in actuators uath extensive product
options and a wilhngness to create unique
solutions for even one customer. Combimng
the Bimba and IMI brands solidifies IMI as

a market leader in the preumnatics industry
as well as in electric and hydraulic. This
acquisition has put the indushy on notice that
IMI is sertous about being a solution provider
Jfor pneumatic and overall motion products

. ona global level” i

Brendon Connelly
Aur Inc, US industrial distributor

IMi Hydronic Engineering

For IMI Hydronic Engineening, we believe that
an effectve way to expand the business in

new geographies 1s to acquire businesses in
our desired locatiens that have similar strengths

| to those we eryoy i OUr GWnN, COTe regians.

Those target busingsses tend 1o be smaller,
often privately-owned enterprises. The most likely
value to be generated from such a combination
would be derved from the synergies available
by sharing complementary routes to market
and product ranges
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IMI

Critical Engineering

IM! Critical Engineering is a world-leading provider of flow control

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Operational review

solutions that enable vital energy and process industries 1o operate
safely, cleanly, reliably and more efficiently. Our products controf the
flow of steam, gas and liquids in harsh environments and are designed
to withstand temperature and pressure extremes as well as intensely
abrasive or corrosive cyclical operations.

£682m

£88.3m

Key achievements

» Value Engineering secured £180m of
new orders and underpinned excellent
order win-rates

» Further success in secunng new
business in adiacent markets

» Profit growth supported by successful
restructuring programme

» On-time and on-pudget ERP
implementation across fourteen sites

» Increased average Lean score 1o 74%

/@] Find cut more wwwami-gritical.com

Performance
In 2018 the division continued to expenence a

| mixed trading environment in some of its most

impoertant markets. Value Engineering and New
Product Development programmes continued
to provide competitive fevers which have enabied
us to cutpace the market, Qur continuing high
order win-rate (ndicates that we have been
capturing more of the available projects than
our competitors

Full year order intake at £652m (2017 £658m)

| was flat on an organic basis and, as expected,

included a strong second half recovery. The
Value Engineering process, which 18 now fully
embedded within the division and used on all
New Construction quates of scale, supported the
delivery of £180m or 60% of New Construction
orders in the year.

Strong order growth from Water contrasted with
softer market conditions elsewhere. HIPPS orders
were also ahead of 2017, partially ofisetting lower
Upstream and Midstream orders. Aftermarket
orders were 11% higher and reflected a 22%
increase in upgrades and a 6% increase in parts,
when compared to the prior year. At the year-end,
the order book was £474m (2017 £510m) with
marging slightly higher. compared witht 2017.

Revenues of £682m (2017 £648m) were 5%
hgher on an adjusted basis and, after excluding
£6m of adverse foreign exchange and £3m from
disposals, were 7% higher on an organic basis
Segmental operating profit of £88.3m {2017

I £84.0mj was 5% higher on an adjusted basis and

6% higher on an organic basis. Margins were flat
versus 2017, reflecting the division’s ongeing work
to counter softer markets with the benefits from
restructuring and Value Engingering

Lean scores improved significantly in the year
from 70% to 74% and our core customer
satisfaction metrics alsc showed continued
progress The diision progressed its long-term

footprint reorganisation which has resulted
in the closure or transter of thirteen lower growth
operations These imtiatives delivered £12m

of benefit in 2018 and have strengthened the
dision's compettive position by realigning 1ts
manufactuning footprnnt with customers m higher
growth markets

In addition to the product and operational
investments, the division continued (ts programme
of ERP roll-out Thus system 1s now fully embedded
in fourteen of IMI Cniical Engineening’s sites

Outlook

Based on current order book phasing and the
comparatively large Petrochemical deliveres in
early 2018, we expect first half crganic revenues
and profits to be lower when compared to 2018
Results for the full vear are expected to reflect
a more favourable second half phasing and

the bengfits from restructuring.



World-class engineering expertise,
innovative technologies and reliable
cost effective solutions are at the heart
of IMI Critical Engineering’s customer
offering. During the year these key
attributes were key enablers to the
division’s success at winning a diverse
range of significant contracts,

In September, IMI Truflo Italy and IMI Critical
China wan a new crder to supply pneumatic
actuated hall valves for a petrochemical plant
in Dalian. China. The plant. which is owned
by Hengli Petrochemical. processes purified
terephoomiainl s PTAS. winch is used

oy progace & e of malenals e

tend sl dood pod e koprckong oy

Previously Hengli Patie e friidd

contracts to o*hor husinesses within the

1M1 Critical Engireering divis:on including

1M Z&J and IMt Remosa. Prior knovidedge

and experience of IMI's technical engineering
capabilities. our products anil customer service.
heiped IMI Trufle ltaly secure the Dalian contract

Working closa voth Invista, the company that
licenses thi: PTA techinolagy to the Dahan plant.
IM! Truflo Italy developed customised ball valves
capable of operatny witn extremely viscous and
corrosive fluids The technical specification and
know-how associaled with the product’s design
were originated at IMI Truflo Rena's plant in
Belgium, and then transterred to IMI Teuflo ltaly.

Hengli's plant in Daliuan, Ching,

is une of the world s largest
Petrochemicad operations.

new quo

procedures. tireat new
products at lower costs

has increased our success
rates which protect product
margins.”

Roy Twite
Dvisional Managing Diregio
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IMI

Precision Engineering

Annual Report gnd Accounts 2018

Operational review

IMI Precision Engineering specialises in the design and
manufacture of motion and fluid control technologies
where precision, speed and reliability are essential to
the processes in which they are involved.

£916m

‘ world-class manufacturing and engineening
capabilites and enhances the division's ability
o serve gur rapicly expanding market positions

across Asia.

Performance

IMI Precision Engingering had another year of good
progress and defvered scfid grawth across af!
verticals and regions Revenues of £916m (2017
£791m) were 16% higher on an adjusted basis and, J The implementation of Lean throughout the division
after exciudng £10m of adverse foraign exchange has continued to make excellent progress. At the
and £88m from the Bimba acguisiion, were 6% J end of 2018 Precision Engineering’s Lean score
fugher on an organic basis increased te 75% compared to 70% at the end
] of 2017.

£153.2m

Strong Industrial Automation sales in the first halt
of 2018 slowsd in the thira quarter and dechned Qur focus on New Product Development to enhiance
shghtly in the fourth, leaving the full year up 2% our market competitiveness gathered momentum.
when compared to 2017 Commercial Vehicle refated | The addion of integrated intelligence and

sales of £196m reflected stronger than anticipated conngctivity across our product range remains
markets and were 8% higher in the year, despite an important element of that sirategy In 2018

£8m of contract completions. European Commercal new products were introduced across the entire

Key achievements

» On-time and on-budget completion
of world-class facility in India

» Commercial Vehicle contract wins

support growth Vehicle revenues were slightly higher whilst North range and represented an increase in the vitalty
» Improved underlying margin despite America grew by 15%. Energy sales were 16% Index {sales from new protiucts introduced in the
cost pressures higher than 2017 while Life Sciences and Raif last three years) 10 12%.

0 0
were 12% and 14% higher respectively. In-sourcing actions already completed combined

Segmental operating profit of £153 2m (2017 with improved market conditions have heiped
£133.5m) was 15% higher on an adjusted basis and, | increase utilisation in the year. Localisation and
after excluding £2m of adverse foreign exchange and | low-cost manufacturing transfers continue to
£7m from the Bimba acquisition, was 11% higher on | reduce lead times and improve custemer service
an organic basis. Operabng margins of 16.7% (2017+ | and compeatitiveness.

16.9%) reflect the impact of the Bimba acquisition
in the year Excluding Bimba, underlying margins
compared favourably to last year at 17.7%.

» Increased average Lean score
to 75%

» Bimba integration progressing to plan

In addition to product and operational investments,
the division continues to implement its new ERP
system and now has a world-class, fully integrated
Good progress has been made with the integration T system which 1s now planned to be rolied-out
of Bimba into Precision Engingering’s North Amencan | in our Asian operafions

operations. We have also accelerated some of our
plans for Bimba to improve its operations and IT
infrastructure, in readiness for the opportunities
for growth and margin improvement.

Outlook

The industrial cutlook has become more volatile
with leading indicators pointing to continued hut
slower growth in the Industrial Automation and

Operationally, the division continued to make sohid :
the Commercial Vehicle markets in 2019,

progress and the combination of Lean, New Product
Development and cost-reduction initiatives all
contriputed to a good performance in the year.

We alsc completed the relocation of our Indhan
operation 10 & new and larger facility in New Delhi
which was officially opened in Octolser. This new

I ] plant expands Precision Engineerng’s low-cost,
ﬁ Find cut more www.mi-preclsion.com 1

Based on current market conditions, we expect
first half grganic revenugs o be slightly higher,
with broadly flat marging, when compared to

the first half of 2018. The benefits of new product
Jaunches and operational improvements are
expected to support improved results for the full year,




The Rail industry is highly competitive,
Reliability, safety and cost control are vital -
and the need to maximise operational
efficiency is a key priority. IMI Precision
Engineering, with more than 30 years'
experience in the rail sector, provides a
range of products and technologies which
enahle roliing stock to operate effectively.

Inparicular the division's innpvative and
patented AMT air dryer system removes
risture and impurities from compressed air
¢risuring that pneumatlically operated systems,
such as doors. suspension and brakes operale
reliably and safety, Tne AMT system offers
markat-largling fevels of performanee

ant retiahility,

During 2018 demant for the AMT system
continued to grow and IMI Precision Engineering
<N a number of new orders including a
conttac: to s.pply Metro Trains Melbourne Phy
Ltd m Austealha wath 270 AT air dry systems
and a major OEM: cider covenng approximately
90 new Metro traing from Biaoding iv China.

Aconstantly imgnisatig production progess
has been requirey tu hely hie division meet
increasing demard. i aienlly, At the Leeds
facility where tho AMT svatemiis manufactured,
afully engages team ana their passion for
continuous improvement and Lean have
delivered the required impravements.

I ead times have been reduced. inventory
management improved and standardisation
of the build process has reduced the
production cycle time,

Metro Trains Melthourne Pty 1id in

Austiedios will he supplicd with 270
AME qir dvy systems.

“2en & weas a year of further
suceess for INT Precision
Engincering. Great new
producis. improred
operational performance and
the addition of Bimba were
all highlights in the year.”

Massimo Grassi
Fenborind W g 0
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Operational review

Hydronic Engineering

' Performance Outlook

Down;; IMI Hydronic Engineering's 2018 performance Based on current market conditions organic revenue
was a tale of two halves with the first half 15 expected to grow n the first half of 2019 with
heing focused on the actions necessary to margins shghtly improved when compared to the
deliver significant Improvements in the second first half of last year. Results for the full year are
half of the year. The actions faken successfully expected 1o reflect the benefits of our 2018
recovered margins and consolidated the ~ restructuring and our normal second half bias

division’s position as a market leader In
our core geographies and secters.

Recovering substantially from the decline
Key achievements experienced in the first half of the year, revenues
on an aduusted basis of £309m (2017 £312m)
were 1% lower than 2017 and, after excluding
£3m of adverse foreign exchange, were flat on

» Second half margins improved to
18.4% (2017: 15.9%)

» Successfully re-established an organi; basis The result was affected by '
foundations for sustainable and the actions taken to return to satisfactory
profitable growth marging, Including the closure of a loss-making

service business and the decision to avoid
product and project sales that generated
unacceptable margins.

» New product launches continue
to build sustainable competitive
advantage

* Segmental operating profi of £52.0m (2017

» intai
Maintained excellent Lean score £49 7m) was 5% higher on an adjusted basis and,

f 78%
or78% after excluding £1m of adverse foreign exchange,
» On-time on-budget implementation 6% higher on an organic basis, Margins improved
of divisional ERP t0 16 8% (2017. 15.9%) for the full year, with

a significant improvement in the second half
to 18.4% (2017 15.8%).

In our ¢ore territories market shares have remained
strong. Our key distributors, installers and specifiers
have responded positively to our refreshed product

offering, constantly improving customer service

and ongoing commitment to customer support.

New product investment continued and contributed
£69m, or 22% of sales, in the year. The division also
maintained its excellent Lean score of 78%, with the
Polish plant once again achieving the highest Lean
scare in the Group. !

The roll-out of the new JD Edwards ERP system
continued throughout 2018 with the system now Iive
It three manufacturing businesses and thirteen of the

[ /@, division’s sales offices
Find out rmoere www. imi-hydrenic.com




IMI Hydronic Engineering has a long and
successful track record of working closely
with designers and consultants to create
some of the mosl energy efficient and highly
successful commercial and residential
developments in the woerld.

These credent als. moluding the d v.sion's wiork
on he Maracang Stadaim in Brazil, vhich
hosted the 2014 Vo Cup final helned 1R
Rydiante agmeenng we conlnw!s o deagi
and install temperature control systenis in
four of the World Cup 2018 sladia, The systems
installed at ¢ach stadum. nciuding the

St. Petersburg Stadium which has a seating
capagily of 67 000, incorporated products from
IMI Pneumatex. IMI TA and IME Heimeier. three
nf t1e division's market leading branss In
adgition. through effective cross-divisional
collaboration with IMI Precision Fngneering
Norgen solenoid valves were also Incorporated
into each temperature control sy

Feor Russian 2o~ World Cup
stacdivems were fittodeith Hhydronde
Fnainverimg products (o provide
groat temperature vandrol,

“Our in depth hydronic
experience in many varted
projects around the world
and our ability to share the
knowledge across the local
market and engineer;
teams, gives ﬁdence: .
fo our custo 5% q

“Phit Clifton .
:Divisional Managding Director
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M1 ple

Corporate
responsibility

Our ambition is for IMIl to become a world-class
business - a truly great company that leads its
marketplace, that thinks long-term, that delivers
sustainable value to all stakeholders and operates
all aspects of its business in a responsible way.

To help ensure we achieve this ambition we focus on:

Creating a positive
and collaborative
place to work

We are committed to creating

a positive and collaborative
workplace where our culture is
underpinned by core values and
hehaviours which promote fair
and ethical working practices.

J
Turn 10 page 36

080

"

Attracting the best
people and developing
and engaging with
our employees

Our performance is dependent
on developing, retaining and
recruiting the best people with
the most relevant skills and
experience who are aligned

with our values and behaviours
and who can contribute to
delivering our strategic ambitions.

&J
Turn 10 page 38



Prioritising health
and safety

The health and safety of our
employces, contractors and
visitors is a primary priority for
the Group. Our combined Lean
and Health and Safety audits
underpin Group-wide rigour
and conlinuous improveinent
throvighout our operations,

Q
lurri 1o page 40

Menmtbers of T Ren
where IMTs inwestin
with telented employ
creafed e world-clas

EWC

Ensuring that
we minimise our

environmental impact

We have a responsibility to
minimise the environmental
impact of our day-to-day
operations. Our products helip
our customers operaie thei
systems and processes safely.
cleanly and cost effectively,

B
lurntc page 42
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Corporate responsibility
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Creating a positive and
collaborative workplace

We are committed to creating a positive and collaborative workplace
where the culture is underpinned by core values and behaviours which
promote fair and ethical working practices. Not only are we convinced
that creating this culture is the right thing to do, but it also enables us
to operate more effectively, while attracting and retaining great people.

[ Culture
We have a clear purpose and a well-gstablished
[ set of values and behaviours that help shape
our culture and guthine the standards and conduct
{ } expected of everyone across the Group. Our valugs
and behaviours are embedded n afl our internal
J processes and procedures, including our
Code of Conduct, and they are integral ta the
“The IMI Way" which defines haw we do busSiness.

N

‘We deliver GREAT solutions for par
customers tackiing the world’s wmost
dcmanding engincering challenges”

oar mindset \

|

| Our purpose

|

|

|

i

J

|
ook We@‘_% M Critcal ‘ “Engincering GREAT together.”

We employ around 11,000 people around the world

Breakdown of employees by geography Breakdown of employees by division

RoW —
Engineenng
N 29% - -
Emeraging mé! Procision
rkets ngneenn
it e | Ourvalues
P — IMI Hyrdromic
North Engineenng
Amorica 16%
24 4

Intearity Excellence Inmovetion Collaboration

UK Gender Pay Gap Summary for the year encing 5 April 2018*

Human rights, equality, diversity
and inclusion

We are committed 16 creating a diverse and

incluswve working environment where everyone
s treated fairly and with respect.

UK Gender Pay Gap 2018 2017
Mean Gap 32.6% 36.5%
Median Gap 21.7% 25.1%

* As highhghted in the graphic above, we are a global buginess emplaying around 11,000
people around the world The above summary only covers cur 1,046 UK employees
Further infosmatan about our UK gender pay gap, together with an explanation of
how these figures were calculated, 15 provided on our website www.imiplc.com.

We are a signatory to the UN Global Compact
which establshes standards for human nights,
labour practices and anti-Corruption. We also
depioy our own policies and procedures, which
set out how people should be treated and how
we should conduct our business,




We believe 1 1s essential that across all parts

of our business we employ people from diffgrent
backgrounds and cultures to serve our global
feotprint and our diverse customer base

To ensure that our workplace s inclusive and
that all employees and workers are treated fairly
in an environment which 1 free from any form
of discrimination, we operate a Group-wide
Diversity and Inclusion Policy We implement thig
policy using a number of mechanisms including

» the principles that underpin our Diversity and
Inclusien Policy are embedded in all our human
resource processes and procedures which
are regularly reviewed for both appropriateness
and competitiveness;

» We run diversity awareness training
programmes, including an E-learning module
{translated into core languages) which
employees can access via our global intranet,

» when creating shorthsts for internal and external
vacancies, we Ingist that external recrurters
provide giverse shortlists,

» as part of our internal management
performance precess, each Dvisional Managing
Director 1s set and further cascades objectives
and local metrics aimed at improving diversity
and inclusion in therr division,

» we are commitied to employing and developing
local employees i cur geographies to align with
our customers and Lhe communities in which
we work. As a result, we have a very small
and focused expatniate pepulation, and

» we have piloted workshops to pramote diversity
of thought acress key areas of our business
Including in relatign 1o product develogment
and innovation.

Gender mix across the Group*

Female Female % Male Male %
All 3,281 ?8% B.617 72%
employees
Managers 237 20% 921 £0%
Senior 124 19% 518 1%
managers
Board 3 33% 6 67%

* Including agency and contractors

The WISE Campaign

Having a diverse workforce is essential
to delivering our business goals, During
the year the Group joined the WISE
Campaign, a UK initiative that is focused
on increasing the participation, contribution
and success of women in science,
technology, engineering and mathematics
('STEM'). Being part of WISE helps

to demonstrate our commitment to
encouraging gender diversity and we
aim to be a preferred employer for anyone
{ooking to build a career in engineering.

' Ethical behaviour

It 15 essential that we run our busingss in an ethical
way with the highest standards of ntegrity.

As part of ther induction, every employeg who
joins the Group receives training n relation to
the IMI Way and our Code of Conduct which
covers, amongst cther things, anti-bribery and
anti-corruption. Refresher training on our Code
of Conduct 1s provided reguiarly and Is renforced
through our annual IMI Way Day, as well as
face-to-face and on-ling traming sessions.

During the year, 7,000 employees undertook an
onling training module in anti-brbery and around
4,000 partcipated in a similar programme
covering compettion law In addition, we have

a senes of policies and procedures inciuding
regular on-site legal and compliance reviews
which are designed to help instil the hghest ethical
standards and regulatory compliance These are
embedded 10 our risk assessment processes,
further details of which are provided on page 46 |

We encourage all employees to report to therr
manager any Incident that 15 not n keeping with our
values and behaviours We operate a confidential
independent hotline in 12 languages, which allows
anonymous reporting Hetfing actity 1s reviewed
each month by the Group’s Ethics and Compliance
Committee An overview was presented to the Audit
Committee 1n 2018 and wili go to the full Board in
2019, All reports are nvestigated thoroughly and,
where required. appropnate action 15 taken to
resolve I1ssues fully and quickly, During 2018, 49
cases were reported via the hotline which compared
t0 52 In 2017 and 48 in 2016

We conduct advanced due diigence on cur .
business partners including our agents and :
distributors. We do this using a software tool
that covers a range of areas including nitial :
and ongoing background checks, screening i
* agamst sanctions lists, a comphance certification
process and the signing of a formal agreement.
In addition, all our businesses carry out checks
{incluging sanctions screening) to understand
potential customers and to identify risks that
may be involved In supplyng to them,

., Managing our supply chain

I Qur commitment to human rights extends across
. our supply chain. We conduct regular audits to

. make sure that child or forced labour 15 not used

+ In our supply chain and that suppliers’ workplaces
- are safe. If suppliers are unable to comply with

* our strict rasponsible business reguirements

, we terminate our relationship with them.

We use a combination of ganeral corporate
responsibility policies and specific supply chain
* compliance actions to avoid any potential for
madern slavery in our supply chain Qur full
statement on the Modern Slavery Act and detail
about the steps we take to ensure that slavery
and human trafficking do not take place within
our supply chain or any parl of our business
15 avallable on our website at www.imipic com

37

Community activities

We recognise our respongibility te the communities
around the worlg in which we operate. We support
a range of local chanties and contribute funding

to organisabions who provide emergency suppor

in crisis situatons Ouring our annual ‘M| Way Day’
our employees across the Group spend time
supporting a local community charity or project.
These intiatives contribute to the local community,
help build trust and reinforce our team building
and collaborative approach.

Some of our IMI Way Day
2018 activities

» Planting trees in SriCity, India to
coincide with World Environment day.

» Donating blood in India / raising
funds for medical equipment for a
care home for the elderly.

» Donating bicycles to a charity which
supports neglected and disadvantaged
children, (Farmington, USA).

» Developing an outdoor space to
be used by school children and their
families (Birmingham, UK).

Promoting science,
technology and engineering
excellence

During 2018 we eniered into parinerships
with three muscums located near our
headguarters in the Midlands. They all
have links to our engineering heritage
and they are also actively promoting
Science, Technology, Engineering and
Manufacturing. In the year we supported:

The Derty
Museurn

The Derby Museum of Making's new
Midland Maker Challenge Prize which will
be launched in 2019. Schools and higher
education providers will compete to design
solutions to address environmental and
societal challenges;

The redevelopment of the Irenbridge Gorge
Museum Trust’s Enginuity centre which is
a national design and technology centre
and interactive museum; and

ThinkTank in Birmingham'’s restoration of
The Smethwick Engine, the world's oldest
working steam engine.

Simethw. k
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Corporate responsibility

Attracting, developing and
engaging the best people

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

The Group’s continued success is dependent upon our people. We
recognise the need to attract and retain great people, provide them
wilh opportunities to make a difference in a positive work environment
while supporting their personal and professional development.

Recruitment

Qur performance and ability to execute our
strategy relies upon recruiting the best people
with the most refevant skilis and expenance who

share a passion for our values and behaviours and
are aligned with our strategic ambition We operate
a robust process for selecting and integrating new

empioyees We foliow the principles embedded
in our Recruitment Policy which aims to ensure
our process is farr, transparent and consistent
with our ambition to develop our own talent
and feaders for the future.

Development and succession
planning

| Overview of our development and
‘ training programmes

“L eading the Way to Engineering
GREAT” programme

Delegates: our leadership group

Obijective: to ensure we have leadership skills
across the Group capable of supporting our strategy
and growth

Number of participants:

since faunch in 2075 around 230
people including 70 n 2018.
Target for end of 2019 — 300.

Our graduate programme

Each year around 30 graduates, predominantly
with engineening backgrounds, jom our busingss.
Recrurted from around the world, our graduates
participate In a two-year structured programme
which includes ditferent rotations and mvalvement
in five projects across the Group.

Our apprenticeship schemes

We operate our apprenticeship schemes in many
of our European based businesses including

in Germany, UK and Sweden Around 50 new
apprentices 1oin us sach year and for each of them
we create a career development plan which covers

on and off the job trairng across a range of relevant

“Being a GREAT IMI Manager” technical skills.

Delegates: newly promoted and existing managers

At Ml we have a strong talent pipeline and traning
and procedures which enable our employees o

enhance their skills and progress their cargers Here some of our apprentices explain

We operate a wide ranging platform of training
ang development programmes designed to
increase employee skills across a number of
disciplings. Curing the year the internationally
renowned Brandon Hall Group awarded our
“Leading the Way 10 Enginegrmng GREAT”
programme a gold award for exceflence

in leadership development.

In addition to our training and development
programmes, all employess are provided with
on-the-job training and where appropnate,
personal mentoring. We also operate a
Performance Management Process to ensure
that all empioyees are appraised in a far and
consistent way. This process provides employees
with regular opportunities to discuss their
objectives and personal development plans
guring the year.

In line with our ambition 10 deveiop our own talent

for future leadership roles we set and achieved
our target of 40% for our 2018 igadership group
ntermna) succession rate (32% n 2017). For 2019
we are aiming To improve this further.

|
|

Objective: to buld a pipeline of management talent
capable of supporting our strategy and growth

Number of participants: since faunch in 2015
around 1,150 people including 400 in 2018.
Target for end of 2019 - 1,450.

“IMI Learn” - our Group-wide
E-training platform
Delegates: all employees across IM!

Objective: to provide accessible and effective on-fine
training to support traming and developrtent acrass
IMI globatly

Number of participants: we have 8,000 registered
USEIS Gn our lealning Management system

“IMI Lean”- the key to operational
excellence

Delegates: senior organisationa! leaders

Objective: 10 equip site leaders to acceferate their
lean improvements

Number of participants: 300 people have completed
the trainmng and taken the learning back to their sites.
Targat for end of 2019 — 480.

how their careers have developed

NAME AND CURRENT ROLE:

Maria Collins
Apprentice, Junior
Applications Engineer,
IMI Precision Engineering
Fradiey.

WHY | JOMNED:

| wanted to gain workplace skills and experience
that [ could put into practice while studying and
my interests in science and problem solving led
me to choose a career in engineering. | wanted
to work at (i for several reasons, including the
continuous Improvement culture which provides
lots of opportunities for me to get involved in
reafly interesting projects.

MY EXPERIENCE:

I have gaingd so many skills including machine
operation, computer aided design, lean and
ergonamics. | have also worked on a number of live
assignments Incuding several factory improvement
programmes and a project 1o design a large-scale
model for use at a trade fair in Germany. At the
same time, | have gainad further qualifications and
have also been able to promote engingenng to
pupils at local schoels and careers fairs.



Engagement

Gwen how important people arg 1o cur success,
maintaining an active dialogue waith them is
essential We keep them informed about the
Group’s performance and develgpment as
well as specriic matters that affect them as
employees And we listen to therr feedback

to identify the key issues that matter to them

To facilitate this dialogue we operate a number
of regular and ad hoc mechanisms, same of
which are detailed on this page. In addition,

In November 2018 Birgit Nergaard, one of our
non-executive directors, was designated as the
Director responsible for undertaking Beard ievel
workforce engagement In this role Birgit waill
participate in our Group management conference
and our European Communicatiens Forum as
well as other events mvolving employees

NAME AND CURRENT ROLE:
Nils Nesladek

Trainee Production
Designer, IM| 784,
Germany

WHY | JOINED:

IMI has a reputation for being a good employer
that offers an excellent training programme
And because the Company recruits quite a
number of apprentices, | knew there would

be a good support network and lots of
opportunities to share experiences.

MY EXPERIENCE:

I .am currently a frainee production designer
My role covers both product design ang
production engineering Every day we're
looking to improve our custormer offering which
means always evalving what we do and moving
forward, | am impressed by the future focus
of the company and the emphasis on
continuous improvement. | am pleased

to feel part of a secure, yet constantly
Improving work environment.

at M1 HO.

2 Investing a ond devaloping
s kmy to futare

How we engage with our employees

Forum Engagement

IMI Way Day All employees participate 10 this annual event. Serior management
provide a business update, and employees then have an oppertunity
to ask questions and discuss a range of 1ssues. Dunng the day
employees complete an employee engagement survey which covers
therr views on a number of Important business subjects. Survey resulls
are recorded and the data is shared with employees, Action plans
are developed and used to measure and track progress. Further and
ongoing survey work 15 conducted where appropnate to mantan
positve momentum.

Group Conference 300 sentor employees from across the Group meet for an update
on strategy and intiatives for the coming year The agenda includes
a Q&A session with the Executive Directors and Divisional Managing
Directors and the Chairman also addresses participants, Feedback
18 gathered during and after the event with the conference’s key
messages and outputs then communicated to all employees.

European Employee representatives from arcund ten European countries meet
Communications regularly with senior management 1o discuss strategic progress and
Forum {"ECF"} performance compared to our key performance objectives.

The discussions cover updates on key inibatives such as IT secunty,
New Product Development, Lean and Value Engineenng. Following
the meeting, minutes and newsletters are produced and used by the
employee representatives to share nformation with their colleagues.

Town hall meetings  Our Divisional Managing Direciors hold guarterly online town hall
meetings covenng recent results and current nitiatives. Employees
are invited to ask guestions and provide feedback on their own
concerns and/or share best practice on current inhiatives

Pulse surveys Where required we use quick and effective localised real-time surveys
to gather specific msights from employees. We use the findings to
inform our plans for mprovemnent.

IMI Eye Qur cross-divisional magazine 1s published twice a year and covers
news stones and best practice shanng from around the Group

Group-wide and Our global and divisional ntranets are used to communicate key
divisicnal intranet developments and share best practice across lhe Group quickly
and effectively,

In 2018 over 8,900 employees participated in our IMI Way Day
survey. Results were consistent with the encouraging feedback
from previous years. In particular, 71% would recommend IMI
as a good employer to family and friends and 87% are clear
about the key priorities their division is focused on.
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Prioritising health
& safety

The health and safety of our employees, contraclors and visitors
to our facilities is of paramount importance and integral to our
ambition to be a world-class business with a world-class health
& safety record. To achieve this ambition, we take a proactive
approach and strive to continuously improve our performance.

Our proactive approach ‘ Progress during the year

Health and safety is our key priority and monitering and improving our performance is a core metric which During the year we improved our health and
15 embedded i our reperting systems at multiple levels across the whole of IML All areas of our business | safety performance i a number of areas
cofmmum;sllly ?ssess therr operatutms etmd twwc;e ﬂiarly we underlaketa forrPaI Grloup-W|de heatlth ?nd w » During the year the total numbser of LTAS reduced
safety audil at every major operation to monitor the progress against our formal improvement actions. | more than 20% to 18 agaist 23 1 2017.

Details of this review process are outlined below. The 2018 tigure includes 3 LTAs recorded by

Bimba, which was acquired in January 2018

Our bi-annual review process The Precision Engineering dmision is currently

Timing Activities Obijectives and outputs executing a range of plans and intiatives to

integrate fully Bimba into their North American
November/ Local assessment of key » Audit current benchmark scores. operations and our key prority is to embed the
December® operational and safety

» ldentify business-cntical issues, IMI health and safety culture and supporting

and areas, focused on business . ) ,
May/June* performance ssues and rate develop ImDFOVGFT(eni actions to procedures across Bimba's entire business
of improvement. Undertaken progress and track KPI trends.
‘ » There has been a shght reduction in the number
by independent IMI Group = Agree further improvement activines TAs (799
or dwisional specialist heaith with local and divisional leadership. of sites reporting zero LTAs (79% compared

with 83% n 2017). This reflects the restructuring
of IMI Critical Engineering’s manufacturing
footprint and the acquisttion of Bimba

and safety experts. » Monitor improvernent activities.

January and July Publication of Lean - HSE » Identify commonly recurrng » The LTA frequency rate impraved considerably
g?gﬁg%?::‘:g data on Group-wide hazards. (26%) 1n 2018 and across IMI there was 0.8
’ » Develop remedial pians to address. LTAs for every million hours worked compared
to 1,110 2017,

» Share best practice,

» In 2017, we launched a Group-wide campaign
to prevent hand injunes which were the largest
volume of injuries reported in 2017, In 2018 IMI
Critrcal Engineening detivered a 65% reduction
in hand injuries and IMI Precision Engineering
and IMI Hydrenic Engineering reported reductions
ot 35% and 56% respectively.

* Combined with semi-annual Lean benchmarking reviews

In line with our established policies and procedures we strive to ensure that accidents are avoided and
that our operations are nsk assessed to be as safe as possible. All employees, as part of their induction,
receive health and safety training relevant to their rale in ing with health, safety and environmental
comphance principles Further on-site training in relation to hazard identification, nsk assessment

and action planning is provided to employees engaged in manufacturing operations

We report, record and investigate every incident requiring first aid, or medical intervention and in addition,
a full root cause investigation of every Lost Time Accident {"LTA") is presented 1o the relevant Divisional
Managing Director. Following a formal review at divisional level, a remediation plan is agreed and
implemented, and safety alerts are issued to share lessons learned and increase safety awareness
across the Group




2018 Health & Safety initiatives

Qur passion to continue to improve our health
& safety porformance resulted in the launch
of a number of new procedires and training
intiatives during the year including “Learning
to See” and “Lock Out Tag Out”.

“Learning to See”

In all our manufacturing operations
management routinely undertake * Gemba
Walks” = a Lean term used to describe the
dctailed observation and identification of
potential hazards and risks. During 2018
we launched our “Learning to See” training
programme which equips our operational
management with further knowledge and
skills to make their Gemba Walks even
more effective. The two-day training
programme takes place on site and
provides practical instruction on taking
the process beyond completion of health
and safety checklists to 2 more interactive
discussion with employees. This process
allows questions to be asked, encourages
suggestions for improvement and creates
more effective and proactive engagement
on health and safety issues. During the
year over 600 employees based at our
manufacturing sites participated in

the Learning to See programme.

“Lock QOut Tag Out”

Lock Out Tag Out is a safety procedure
used to ensure that machines are properly
shut off and not able to operate during
maintenance and repair work. Prior to
2018 every IMI business operated its own
Lock Out Tag Out procedure and as a result,
standards of protection varied across the
Group. In an effort to reduce the risk of
serious injury in the high-risk shutdown
procedure, we introduced a new and

more stringent Lock Out Tag Out procedure
which all our operations are required

to adopt.

wd
[l
1 Bimba miantins an (~zn.ms|‘re actuntor
lesting {al 10 ensure that parls meet
wpecifind perforimonce characteristics
2 The Groupy'~ continuod foous on woaring

approprate gloves resutled in a sigmibicant
reduction n hand wpune in [MI Criucal

3 Throughout 2046, Learning fo Sco traming
wiis delivered 1ol Hydronic Enaincering
manufacturmeg s,

A Ensurning safe practices and the correct
clollimeg protoct our prople.
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Corporate responsibility

Ensuring that we minimise
our environmental impact

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Our purpose is to deliver great solutions that tackle the most demanding
engineering challenges and help our customers operate their systems
and processes safely, cleanly and cost effectively. We are committed

to doing this in a way that minimises the impact on the environment.

Our operations

We operate globally with manufacturing facilies
in moré than 20 countries. We are committed to
operating these facilities in a sustanable way

and to minimise ther impact on the envirenment

We monitor and report our environmental
performance at the monthly Executive meetings
with a view 10 delvenng continuous impravement
and reducing our CO, emissions year-on-year

Energy efficiency

Gven the nature of pur production processes.

our main focus is energy efficiency and our
Group-wide energy efficiency programme delivered
a number of improvements during the year. Detalls
of some of the key projects are set out below

» IMI Critical Engineering insialled a new
award-winning heating system in three of the
manufactunng halls at IMI Z&J's facility in Duren,
Germany. As a result, gas consumptien in the
three halls has been reduced by 30%.

» IMI Precision Engineering introduced a
renawable power system 0 parts of its facility
in Alpen Germany, Following the nstaliation
of solar panels and heat pumps the facility's
€0, emissions and energy consumption
have reduced.

» IMI Hydronic Engineering installed new LED
Ighting throughout its Swedish plant in Ljung
which has helped reduce CO- emissicns and
electricity consumption,

Wa support the Carbon Disclosure Project {“CDP™)
climate change initiative and submit annual CCP
reports which cover our risk management approach
to cimate change and our emissions performance.

Since 2015, on a hke for like basis (excluding
Bimbay), we have reduced our CO, emissions by
over 4%. In line with our continuous improvement
culture and Investment in our operations, we are
committed to further reducing our emissions

in the future

CO,emissions

‘000
ionnas
2015 2016 2017 2018

" Reduction in waste and scrap

As outhned on page 22, improving operational
performance 1s one of our key strategic priorities.
By running our business more efficiently we
enhance our competitiveness, save costs ang
reduce waste and scrap levels Each of our divisions
has made significant pregress m this area including

» M| Critical Engineering: at IM| 78J's facility
in Germany, [ ean methodology problem solving
techniques were used to identity three main
areas for improvement, including welding errors.
Processes in the plant have been adapted and
improved and as a result scrap ievels have
reduced by 58% vear on year.

IMI Precision Engineering: since 2017, IMI
Precision Engineering Fradley's scrap levels have
recfuced by 67%, driven by the implementation
of Lean process design and the Fradley team
undertaking regular problem selving and Kaizen
continuous improvement activities Lead times
and invertory levels have shown radical
improvement as a result.

¥

IMI Hydronic Engineering: the division's facility
at Erwitte, Germany has continued to reduce its
scrap Building on the 50% reduction achieved

In 2017, the plant reduced its scrap levels by

a further 10% in 2018. The application of Lean
methedology and problem solving to identify

the root cause and implementing improvement
actions underpinned the improvement.

 Our producté

Our preducts and technologies help our customers

operate therr processes safely, cleanly and

efficiently and help address some of the biggest

global challenges facing the world today including

climate change and resource scarcity. Below are

some of our products that help reduce emissions
[ and energy consumphion.

» IMI Critical Engineering's EEEasy-Seal™:
this innovative sealing system for control valves
prevents the leakage of emissions in oll refineries
and petrochemical plants.

» IMI Precision Engineering’s PET
blowing blocks:
this market leading product reduces the amount
of air, and as a result energy, required to
manufacture piastic bottles,

| » IMI Hydronic Engineering’s Halo:

launched :n 2018, this thermostatic rathator
head, which has a budt-in sensor, controls the
temperature of individual rooms by automatically
adjusting flows, depending on ambient
temperature. Compared with a manual radiator
head, it can reduce energy consurnption by as
much as 28%
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b | I.NIII Preci§ion Engineering's new plant in
- yuida near New Dethi has i1s own sewage
¥ . treatment plant which converts sewiqe mto
3+ Wiodegradable waste. The faciity also ho a
L4 ".nrﬂn water hatvesting system which collecty
wain id feeds it back into the ground.
¥, sFarther information about the new plant can
vw bd"m’md on page 20.
2 Hy« nlu Eﬁginecring‘s nevs thormostatic
d Halo not only helps Lo achieve cnergy
avings bgr homeowners, it alse has a
rtylish thidern design.
3few chefgy efficant and environmentally
friendly LED lighting in Hydronic
+ Engineeding’s plant in Sweden.
{4 ’4IMI Norgren PET blowing black,
X
M 5 PET bpttle manufaciuring.

& EEEasy-Seal™ will ensure a significant
reduction in valve akages.

o
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Measurements and targets

Our business performance is measured through a programime
of Group-wide targets and improvement measures. Every (M|
business participates in an annual round of planning meetings
with the Executive Committee, during which performance

and future plans for that business are reviewed and updated.
The Key Performance Indicators (‘KPIs’} set out below
represent financial and non-financial targets which are
integral to the delivery of our strategy.

I Organic revenue growth ( Segmental operating profit
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Organic revenue growth exciudes the impact

of acquisitions, disposals and foreign exchange
movements, The revenues from acquisitions are
only included in the current year for the period
during which the revenues were also included in
the prior period. in 2018 the Group's continuing
huginesses delivered 5% organic revenue growth.

In 2018, Group segmental operating profit was
£266m compared to £241m representing an
increase of 11% on an adjusted basis. On an
organic basis, after adjusting for the impagt

of exchange rates, acouisitions and disposals,
segmental operating profit increased by 8%.




Health & Safety lost time
accident rate

007 an

RS 2017 2018

The health and safety of all our employees is
paramount, We measure our progress in this
area by tracking our =1 day lost time accident
frequency rate (‘LTA rate’ In 2018 our LTA
rate reduced te 0.08. reflecting the Group's
contnued focus on identfying and reducing
workplace hazards

— 66% Y%
- “Year-and Year-end Year-end
2016 2017 2010

During the year we continued to improve our
operational performance and Lean scores

Our six monthly benchmarking process Is now
fully embedded, and scores continue to reflect
the improvement which 1s being achieved across
all Group operations. Cur highest score 18 now
95% and the average has increased from 31%
when we first benchmarked the business in
2014 16 75% at year-end 2018.

Skifledwagnon ip ensure
world-class quulity products
OT OUr CUSIOMETS.

12.5% 12.4%

2016 2017 2018

Return on capital employed {'ROCE') 15 defined
as segmental operating profit after tax divided
by capial employed Capital employed 1s defined
as net assets adjusted to remove net debt,
dervative assets/liabilities deferred tax and

to reverse historicat impairments of goodwill
and amortisation of acquired intangible assets
In 2018, ROCE was 12.8% which compares

" 10 12.4% In 2017 and reflects the Group's ability

to deliver improved profitahility despite mixed
markel conditions
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How we manage risk

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Our risk management processes are embedded in all our
businesses and are designed to identify, evaluate and manage
the risks which could impact our performance, our reputation
or our ability to successfully execute our growth strategy.

Qur risk management framework

The Board has overall responsibiity for ensuring that we manage our
risk exposure appropriately to achieve our strategic objectives and build
sustanable shareholder value.

The Board determines our nsk appetite and monitors and reviews the nisk
management processes we operate. The Board delegates responsibility for
implementing and monitering internal contrels and cther elements of risk
management 1o the Chief Executive and the Executive Committee The Board
has also tasked 1ts commitiees with responsibility for key areas of risk, as follows

» oversight of financial reporting, internal financial controls and assurance
processes — the Audit Committee.

» SUCCESSian risk - the Neminations Committee, and
» remuneration and incentive structure nsk - the Remuneration Committee

Further information about the roles and responsibiities of the Board and each
Committee 1s set cut on pages 52 to 79.

How we approach risk management

Qur risk appetite
In determining our nsk appetite, the Board considers a number of factors
including our strategic oppertunities, the risks that could affect our business

" and our ability to mitigate their impact. Our risk appetite, the nature and level
\ of risk we are prepared to accept to achieve our strategic objectives, Is divided
|

Inte three categories. prudent, balanced and receptive.

Risk appetite
|
|
| T
L

Across the Group we operate a “top-down, bottom-up approach” 1 risk management which 1s liustraled in the graphic below. This approach allows the Board
and the senior leadership team to actvely assess strategic nsks and monitor the measures used to mitigate, transfer or avoid such nisks. It also ensures that
operational nisks are identified and managed at multiple levels and that key nsk information is communicated effectively across the Group.

Dur risk management process 1s embedded n all our businesses. It provides guidance on how 10 wentify, evaluate and manage risks which could impact
our performance and our ability to implement our strategy.

STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

» Determines nsk appetits, Board » Reviews br-annually 3 detalled analysis of the Group's risk profile ingluding supporting diasional
« Reviews prncipal nisks. N data and the actions undertaken 1o ensure compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
» Monitors and reviews risk management procasses » Reviews annually the effectiveness of the Group’s irternal controls.
» Responsible for ensuring nsk management culture 18 Integrated Dvisional » Develops b-annually a detalled Group and dwisional nsk profile which is based on information
across ther division and akgned to the Group's chiectives. and uploaded to the Group (ntranet by each manufacturing operation This profile analyses each
» Determmes principal risks and mibgaton srategies Executive division’s most significant nsks and outlines mingation strategies.
Committee
» Monitors changes in the risk profile
» Monitors quality and effectiveness of business level nisk
management processes.
» Operates and mamitors an active and effectve sk Operating » Mantains an up-to-date nsk piofile which ilentifies 1he key nsks facing ihe business, assesses
management process, companies mitigating processes and controfs, operates key perfomanie indicatars to vahuate ihe
» Updates operat:ng companies on principal nigks and effectiveness of those contrals and 1dentifies areas for improvamant
mitigation strategies, » Publighes nisk profiles for each manufactunhg operation © the Group ntranst twice a year,
~ Dperates reporting systems that increase management W = Prowiges monthly updates on Key nsks, mmigation and contols through incorporation of risk

ownersh:p and accourtabiity profile data in monthly managament reporting process



Our principal risks

STRAVEGIC Capitalising on sigrificant organic
GROWTH growth opportunities
The principal nisks facing the Group are shown in arder of prionty in the table below PRIQRITIES
This analysis covers how each nsk could impact cur strategy and explains what we KEY @ ggf"ﬂ‘;‘g“a% gge'a‘m"a'
are doing 1o monitor and mitigate each nsk area
increasing investment in
The Group 15 also expesed to broader inancial market risks, n particular, currency @ New pr'ogu'm“maoumem
exchange rate volatilty following the Brext referendum. A description of these risks
and our centralised approach to managing them is described i Section 4 4 of the [l Expanding our adidressable markets
through targeted acquistions
financial statements
STRATEGIC GROWTH
PRINCIPAL RISKS PRIORITIES THAT WHY WE THINK THIS HOW WE ARE MANAGING
— CHANGES DURING 2018 COULD BE AFFECTED 1S IMPORTANT THE RISK
GLOBAL ECONOMIC » The theeat of a ‘no-deal Brexit 15 the risk » Build f.gxibility to respond to markat cenditions and
OR POLITICAL INSTABILITY @ of hoth EU and UK ports net coping with the potential Impact associated with Broxit
- the add:ional volume of customs work ~ Disional project teams formed 1o identfy ‘ne-deal
RISK MOVEMENT: o which could impact our supply chain Brexit risks 2nd build mitigation contingency plans
INCREASED and sales delvery EL-UK cross-border Iransact on flows have been

» The possibilily that the UK lzaves the EU with
nerther a transitien perod nor a free trade
agreement In place continues 1o pose a risk
to the supply chains. ongoing operatiors and
profitabdity of the Group,

IMI Crtical Engineenng continued 1o face highly
compehtve markets and an angeing slow-down
in the New Construction Fossil Power sector
The mpact has been managed tMrough ongaing
restructunng actions ncluding expanding the
divisions Valug Engineering actvities and
entering new less severe markel areas,

Whilst rerraining 1n a strong compétitag
postion, IM} Precision Engineenng has akso
cxpenenced volatilty i suie yeuytaphles

and sectors

I Hyrronic Engineenng markets remamed
stabie with steady growir 11 most markets an
right-si2ing actiens were undertakey {o ensure
e business coukd respond 1o market changes

¥

¥

200

» The Group eperates n diverse global markets
and demand for our products is dependent on
economic ang sector-specific environments

= A dawnturn in a glokal of regional economy
of pelitical nstatilty coukd impact end market
demand, negatively impacting revenug and
our ability to delver our strategy and achieve
market expectations

mapped and ¢ritical supply chain risks identfied by

customer and part vath specific action plans put m place

Qur main objective and the focus of owr cantingency

planring 1 10 minimMise interruptions ta our supply chan
and snsure our cLstomer delvery commitments are met

Mainta n a balanced portfgho gperating across a
range of markets, setiors and geographies with
no single depencency

In their demands

Uthse core forecasting processes that ensure
opzrat onal output ca» be right-sized to ma-ket
deand

=+ Lindartake enhanzed stress testing and sensitwity
analy=1s of busingss plans and regularly review key
market and sactar matnes

Focus on enhancing competitivengss Cy INCIEASING
nvestment in New Product Sevelopment and Value
Enginesring and improving cperatonal parformance
» Develep 1obus’ conbingsncy plans to ensurc agility
to realign the cost Lase as required

«

Mamior key customers ang respong quIckly 10 changes

FAILURE TO DELIVER MAJOR
TRANSFORMATIONAL PROJEGTS
ON TIME AND ON BUDGET

» Syccessful ERP implementations across the
Group mn 2018 continued fo dsmonstrate the
proficiency of our system implementation teams
and praven eftective control

» IM Cribical Engmeernng has successfully
managad a number of sigmiicant réstructunng
orojects over the course of 2018 ~ including
several plant closures - on lime ang 1o budget

RiSK IAOVERR T
HO CHANGE

» The Group 18 continually evolving, both in
response to external market pressures and
o achieve our strategic goals

= Chiange grojects mclude husiness
reorganisations and implemgnlations
of complex new 1T systems

» Failure 1o delver these change projects on
time and on budget, and farure to respond to
changing market conditions, could adversely
impact our financiat performance

Operate rchust systems and procedures to manage
and monito’ ousiness projects icluding clear anc

measurabile rilgsio~es which are reviewed regularly

by Divisicnat Managing Directors

N

Rewiew major project progress at momthly Executve
Comm ttee meetings

Contnug ta enhance nsk assessment processes and
migation action plans.

ot major IT crojects
» Develop detaled contingency plans

meetings which ngorously réview project pragress

Post go-Ive audits to réview progress on
imglernentation plans

- Undertake specialist IT and Group Assurance reviews

> Hold menthty operational and ERP steenng comnmuties

QUALITY 4SSUES LEADING TO
PRODUCT FAILURE, RECALL,
WARRANTY ISSUES, INJURY,
DAMAGE OR DISRUPTION To
CUSTOMERS' BUSINESS

[HRESATITE MR
BOCLARL T

= Qur oparational performance cont nugd 16
improve over the course of 2018, Detalls of key
developments car be found on £age 22

» Duning the year, we suscessfully launched a range
of new products mantainng eur high standards
far quality andt cus-omer satis‘action The level of
ris< Nas remained the same year-on year due to
the strength of the procedures and controls in the
New Product Development process

X

06

= Developing safe, innovalve and technically
agvanced products is at the heart of what
we do.

» Failure to delver the quality required
could result In negative financial and
reputational damage

Established Group-wide stanvard for Advanced
Produe” Qualty Planing process (APOP} which
every businzss repeits o weekly and monthly
Th s wentilies mprovements in the early phases
of the development fracass

Contnued focus on Quality Management Systams
anc asoits

> Test firished protiucts and secure customer sign-o
on the most critical products

Deploy targeted | ean events to improve quality,
ncluding plemantation of Ohoya revows
Reviewrn avery 6-months with Grour-wirde

| £zt assessment programime

» Contmug 1o upgrade talent with a focus on gualty
and product development experise and expensnce
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Our principal risks

STRATEGIC GROWTH

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

PRINGIPAL RISKS PRIORITIES THAT WHY WE THINK THIS HOW WE ARE MANAGING
- CHANGES DURING 2018 COULD BE AFFECTED 15 IMPORTANT THE RISK
FAILURE TO INTEGRATE - Anntegral part of our strategic plan 1s 1o make » Underake annual review to identify potential target

ACQUISITIONS SUGCCESSFULLY AND
DELIVER THE REQUIRED SYNERGIES

>

= Qur post acquisition miegraticn process which
deploys @ mocof dwisional and Group resources,
ensures that the nght péople across all disciplnes
are avadable to successfully project manage
acquisttion imtegration,

» Successfully depioyed the infagration process to
monitor and manage Bimba Manufacturing post
acquisihion. Progress has been tracked using a
struetured integration plan with key milestones
and responsibiites

RISK MOVEMENT
WO CHANGE

value gnhancing acquisiions

» Failure to delwer the post-acquisition strategy
could reduce the value of acquired businesses

acqusitions that align with our strategy

= identify hard and soft synsrgies within targeted
acquistion oppertunites

= Adhers to formal acquisition approval dug dilgerce
and post-acgquisition Integration processes

» Deploy a nigorous 100-day process to effectively
monitor and manage pest acquisiion INtegrasion

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH
LEGISLATION OR A BREACH OF OUR
OWN HIGH STANDARDS OF ETHICAL
BEHAVIOUR

RISK MOVEMENT
RO CHANGE

» We do not engage with customers, suppliers
or any other third parties who are not aligned
with our own code of conduct and strong
athical standards

» During the year we infroduced internal controls
and procedures to ensure compliance with the
U General Data Prolection Regulation

= Prior 10 the November 2018 deadiing, we closed
down all rading activities with Iran following the
re-impostion of US sanctions.

= The challenging terrtozies in which we operate

make the nsk of regulatory breach a continued
area of fgous. As such, our sk profile remains

+ The global markets and regulatory environment
demand the highest standards of conduct and
adherence 1o comphance rules and procecures.

- Failure to comply with legislative requirements or
a breach of our Code of Conduct could sesult in
signiicant financial and reputaticnat damage

> AS we expand our operations to achieve growth il
18 essential that we mantan our high standards
of cenduct and compiiance procedures

Legsslative requirements in relation to tax,
anti-bnbery, fraud and competition law include
rigorous moniterng and trainng of new and
£ngting employees

- Committed th fstering a postwe culture untisrinned
by core values a1d behaviours that premote far and
ethncal working prachices,

» Continug a robust internal ontrols declaraton
process

» bstablighed dedicatsd compliance resouries at aioup.
thiwisional and Jocal levels Each thvision have specif ¢
complian.g plans in place which are exec.ted over
the course of he yeur

» All erployegs are provided wirth easy access o
pohcies, manuals, guidelines and standard gperating
procedures via our gicoal intranet,

- Undértake regular employee training focuses on key
sk argas such as fraud a~tbribesy and corruption
and how to apply the IMI Way in evaryday situations

» (perale a confidential mdegendent hathng to
report conzerns

» Undertake rigorous due diligence and approval
proceduses on third party agents Termirate all
non-compliant agents

» Operate sinngent procedures and processes for
dealings with ugher ik terricrias nclucing formal
trawung for refevar | employees

» Actively monstor and manage trade sanctiens,

unchanged
FAILURE TO MANAGE
THE SUPPLY CHAIN

RISK MOVEMENT o
INCREASED @
» The possibility that the UK leaves the EU wilh

neither a ransihon penod nor a free trade @

agreement in place continues to pose a nsk fo
the supply chains, ongoing operations and
profitapibity of the Group

» Growth in our IMI Precision Engineening markets
fhas placed pressure on our suppliers, n some
cases impacting on cur delivery performance
0 2018 In response, the division upgraded s
supplier management processes and 15 executing
specific iprovement plans for criical suppliers

» We depend on & siganficant numiber of suppliers
who provige essenual products and services.

» Failtre to manage our supply chan, especally
n respect of quakty or on-time delvery to our
customers, could have a material impact on cur
financlal performance and reputation,

» Autharise the purchase and eranufacture of long fead-
bme components o and frium our UK/EY supply base

» Fxgcute our cantingency plans i the case of 4 'no-
deal' Brexrt and continue to monitor the stuation and
react accordingly,

» Monitor risks on a regular basis ang develop
contingency plans to mitigate the 1mpact of supplier
failure, increased pricing or any other supplhier
associated risk.

» Assess specific Supphar Code of Conduct rsks duross
dvisenal supply chans and audit high-nisk suppliers for
all aspects of supply cham nisk moludng Modern Skvery

» Opgrate preferred supplier fists for all major matenals
and components. Where appropriate, cértam supplers
are operating undér a framework agreement

» Regquiar review megtings with key suppliers and
as refjuired, deploy escalation mestings

= Momtor key suppher performance using
suppher scorecards.

« Carry adequate safsty stock andier maintain
duai supply sources for crtical components



STRATEGIG Capttahsing on significant crgant
GROWTH gowmoportnes.
PRIORITIES
KEY Improving operational
performarice
Increasing nvestment n
New Product Development
@gj Expanding our addressable markets
through targeted acquistions
STRATEGIC GROWTH
PRINCIPAL RISKS PRIORITIES THAT WHY WE THINK THIS HOW WE ARE MANAGING
- CHANGES DURING 2018 COULD BE AFFECTED IS IMPORTANY THE RISK
UNAUTHORISED ACGESS TO »While we have 2 well-developed strategy o » Continug our 1T Security Improvement programms
QUR IT SYSTEMS @ keep abreast of new threats and continually across the Group This noludes 24/7 netwiork
improve the Group's IT infrastructure, we MONIgnng via a security Operanans centrg,

RIZR MOV TR
iHCHE AnEL

= The cigital and secunty threat emvironment in
«glation to our IT systems and infrastructure s
sonstantly and quickly evolving We continued
to nvest In strengihening our IT systems
and protecting our gata, alongside raising
swareness of cyber secunity across all parts
of ur busmess

During 2018 the Group significantly upgraded
our anli-malware, intruder detection, USB
device control and intemet filtenng capatibiies
In addition, we have deployed laplop encryption
and completed a significant number of firewall
replacer-ents 1o re-nfores our infrastructure
aAnst new andg pmerging thredts

» A security awareness campaign, ‘Be Cyber
Safe’ commenced roll out during 2018 and
will continue te run throughout 2019

O

cannat guarantee that aur actions are keeping
pace with the constantly evohang threat
envircnment

» Unapproved access to our [T systems could
result n loss of inteliectual property fraudulent
activity, theft and business nterruption

» Cenwralisgd secuity ssftware in place Continued
emphasis on upgrading and strengthening our
existing hargware and software agamst new and
amarg ng threats

» Monthly raviews with Divisionat Mansging Directors
1o 485085 Prograss and moniter future a~tons
ang pricaties

» Continug 10 raise awareness ¢” cyber securty through
fegular employee communications

» Instigated disaster recovery plans on all essential
IT assets including skengent system Hack u.
procedares at &l of our busingsses

INCREASINGLY COMPETITIVE
MARKETS

RISK MOVEMENT o

THCREASED

» Market dynamics continues 10 be a significant
consideration for the Group and impacts al
three dvisions We have expenienced increases

in material, labour and cther costs which
impacted our business over the course of 2078,

» Value Engineering processes enabled IMI
Crincal Engineenng to win £180m of new
orders in 2018,

» Diisional restructuning activities continug 16

efficiently manage our fixed cost base and
wil remain an ongoing focus over the

&

06

» Increased competition could lead to loss
of customers and/or pricng pressures
resulting in lost sales, reduced profits and
margin deterigration

» Continue 1o embed efeclive New Product Development
processes noluding ompetror lear down testing,
banchmark ng Lompretdor producls and Value Engnsenng

+ Actve participation in wternational trsde fars and shows

= Ltiltse cur metnics to track perfor~—ance and wentiy
areas for Improvement

= Contnug to review Sit: Lapacity 1o ensure best
utibsabie~ ane imerove protuctivily,

» Developed standard costings 13 ensure thoro.gh
understand ng of product cost and internal processes
to track and manage costincrease appropniately,

= Continue to enhance operational performance qualty
delvery ano service stendards through Lean implementation

= Undzrtake regular custome- feedback performanca
surveys and impleament action plans where
Improvements are required

» Continue Yalue Engirggnng actvities n all three
disions to deliver better mare cost-efective proaucts
to the customer

= Operate market speciic pricing strategias 1o

maintain margings and continually rewisw supply ¢chain
performance te mibigate or defer nput cost inflation,

course of 2019
NEW PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT
BISK MOVERIENT
N0 CHANGE @ @

» Our end to end Advanced Praduct Quality
Planning {APGP) and New Proguct Development
processes have successiully delivered
competitively priced new products to market

» During 2018, processes covering design
prolotyping, testing, costing and launch
to markets, were embedded across alt
three cvisions

» A New Product Development and Future
Inncvation strategy was put in place for
each gsion i 2018

» Further infermation about our New Product
Development actv.bies are detaded on page 24,

» Our sustainable long-term growth 1§ reliant
on delivening a pipeling of nnovative
new progucts

= Falure 1o delver market lzading products
on time and on budget wall Impact our ability
10 Qrow,

> Embed New Product Development into strategic
planning process with technology and product
roadmaps incluged in each division’s five-year plan

» Gontinue to nvest in research and development te
ensure we targel the most profrable vpporunites,

» Estabiished centres of design and
technological excellence

» Track new product mtroduction plans and achions
on both a weekly and montaly basis

« Tack key porformance metncs incliding sales
fram new prorugts and research and dovelopment
spend ananst sales

» Continue compet tor product tear down dnd testing

UeIINPONU;
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Lord Smith of Kelvin
Charman (74}

Natronality
Bntish

Committee membkership
Nominations Comrmittee - Char

Date of appointment
2015

Expertise
Signhicant UK and international
board expenence

Extensive knowledge of both
engineenng and manufactunng

Strong track record in private
equity, mergers and acquisiticns

Speciahst capabiity in finance

Key external appointments

Non-executive Gharman of
Alllance Trust plc
Non-executive Charman of the
Brush Business Bank plc

Mark Selway
Chuet Executive’ (59}

Ausiralan

Erecufive Commiitee

2013

Experenced and proven
Chief Executive

Sold track record running
international engineenng
businesses

In-depih knowdcgge of relevant

enc-markets including ol & gas,

energy and automotive

" Roy Twile assumes Chief Executive role Irom Mark Sehway ar 9 May 2019,

Board of Directors

Roy Twite
Executive Director’ {51)

British.

Executive Commitiee

2007

Froven organisational and
engineenng expertise
Management capability naving
run all of IMI's drasions
Extenswve knowledge of
end-markets ard

customer base

Non-executive director of
Halma ple

@ Fid out more. www.imible.com/about-imi/le adership-ahd-gevernance/board.aspx

Daniel Shook
Finance Dwector (51)

Amencan Brtish

Executive Commilteg

2015

xtensive financ.al
managemeant gxperence
Extensive knowlfedge of complex
process manufaciunng across
a range of Ndustrial sectors
Strong international
perspective, having worked in
a number o key geographues
dunng ris hme with two leading
global businesses

Annual Report an}i Accounts 2018

Carl-Peter Forster
Senior Independent
non-executive director (84)

German

ALt SOmmtee
Norminaticns Committee
Remuneration Committee

2012

Experienced international
business leader

In-gepth knowledge of
the autemotive sector

Expert in operational excellence
and Lean manufacturing

Significant expenence in
technolegy management

Non-executive directer of Geely
Automobiie Holdings, Hong Kong

Chairrnan of London

Taxi Company
Norn-execultivg director of
Volvo Cars Corporation

Chairman of Chemning Group plc

Member of the PWC
Adwisory Board



Birgit Nergaard
Independent
non-executive director (60)

Nationality
Danish

Committee membership
Remuneration Commikttee
—Charr

Audit Committee
Nominatcrs Commitee

Non-gxecitive director for
employee engagement

Date cf appointment
2012

Expertise

Expenenced non-executive
Held senior executive positiors
N engineering congJtancy
Wide ranging sectoral
expenence ncluding energy
water. infrastructure and
bulding Industnes

Expenence in strategy as well
as finance and accounting

Key external appointments

Non-executive director of
DSV A/S and NCC AB
Non-executive director of
WSP Global Inc.

Isobel Sharp
independent
non-executive director {G3)

Brtish

Audt Cummittee — Chan
Nommnations Somimittee

2015

Consideranle accounting audt,
governance ana transactions
experence incluging tirme as the
Senior Technical Fartner at
Deloitte n London, President

of the Instiute of Charterad
Accountants of Scotland

ang membership of the UK
Accounting Standards Board
and the Reporting Review Fanel

Non-exec.tive drector and
Audit Cemmittee Charr of The
Bankers Investment Trust PLC
Non-executive director and
Audit Committee Charr of
Winton Group Limited
Honorary Professor at
Edinburgh University
Business School

Thomas Thune
Andersen

Independent
non-executive director (63)

Danish

No~inations ommirtes
Remuneration Cormimittee

208

Expenenced international
business leader in sectors
INcluchng o, energy manne
and critical Infrastruclure
EBroad expenance as a non-
executive director ot vanous
puble comgpanes

! Charman of Lloyds Register

Group Non-executive director
of BW Cffshare Limited and
Chairman of Orsted A/S
Member of the Danish

Committee for Goed
Corporate Governance

Katie Jackson
Independent
non-executive director (45)

British

MNorrinations Lommittee
Remuneration Comrmittea

2018

Senio’ executive expenerce
N Maor ¢if companies and
nvestment banking

Speciahst knowledge of ine ol
and gas sector ard excellent
corporate finance expenence

Executive Vice President
of Commercial and New
Business Development at
Royal Duten Shell

53

Board
experience

International
business
responsibility

Engineering

Public
company
board

Finance

Regulatory &
tegal

Mergers &
acquisitions
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Corporate Governance introduction

Chairman’s

Governance letter

Dear Shareholder

I am pleased to present the Corposate Goveirnance
Report for 2018, As Chairman. my focus continues
to be on ensuring that the Board provides effective
leadership and mamtains the highest standards of
coiporate governance and integrity at all times. In the
Corporate Governance Reporl un pages 55 to 79,
we describe oul governance arrangements and the
praclical workings of the Board and its comimitiees.

Leadership

I am now in my fourth year as Chairman and very much enjoying my role.
During the year two new non-executive directors joined the Board bringing
considerable and relevant experience as well as fresh perspective.

The Board 1s fully engaged, able to bath support and challenge the exscutve
team, and has the skills and experience 1o oversee governance, financial
controls and risk management. The quality of debate at megtings 1s high
and we get valuable input frem all of our non-executive direclors, | benefit
from a strong working relationship with the Chief Executive and we keep
in close contact on a weekly and more frequent basis as necessary.

Culture

The Board sets the tone at the top and has established clear leadership values
and behaviours which are underpinned by a comprehensive Code of Conduct and
governance framework. The IMI Code of Conduct s given tc every employee
and features in induction and cther training and the annual IMI Way Day.

Our values and expected behaviours are built nto our leadership development
programmes and performance assessment processes. Excellent leadership
behaviours are a pre-requisite for satisfactory performance and career
advancement in the Group. We have also embedded policies and processes

to set clear standards for compliance and doing business in the nght way.

During 2019 the Board will commence an increasingly formal review of the
Group's culture by reference to a range of key indicators incligding Group-wide
employee survey data and other stakeholder feedback.

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Governance highlights

» Following a ngorous selection process supported by Russell Reynalds that
included both internal and externa! candidates, the Board agreed to appoint
Roy Twite as IMI's next Chief Executive,

» The new charrs of the Audit and Remuneration Committees were fully
ingucted ang have made an excellent start in their roles

» Following wide ranging search processes led by the Nominations
Committee, Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie Jackson were appointed
10 the Board as non-executive directors.

» A review of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy was completed by the
Remuneration Committee following stakeholder consultation and the
resulting proposals were approved by the 2018 Annual General Meeting.

| = We conbinued to refine the detaded plans behing the Group's slrategy and to

oversee progress in the implementation of the strategy at a busingss level.

» We completed the significant, complementary acquisition of Bimba
Manufacturing Company for £138m and fellowing the Bimba acquisition.
the Board visited the principal manufacturing site rigar Chicago.

» An audit tender process was run by the Audit Committee which resulted
In & decision 1o reappoint Ermst & Young LLP as auditor subject to
annual shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting.

» We continued to maintain goed investor relationships and the
directors met with major shareholders as part of our ongoing
investor relations programme.

Compliance with the 2016 UK Corporate
Governance Code (the “2016 Code”)

1 am pleased to report that IMI comphed with the principles ¢f the 2016 Code
throughout the year. We alse complied with the 2016 Code provisions save
for a penod when our Remuneration Committee membership was reduced
to two while we brought other non-executives on hoard following the sad
death of Bob Stack late in 2017,

We acknowledge the introduction of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance
Code (the “2018 Code") and during the year we took appropriate steps to
nrepare for compliance with the new requirements which came into effect
from 1 January 2019. In Novernber 2018, we announced the appointment
of Birgit Nergaard as non-executive director with responsibibly for workforce
engagement. We have also revised our corporate governance framework
and the business cycles for the Board and its committess to reflect the
2018 Code and appropriate training has been provided to the Board

Yours faithfuily

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Charrman

28 February 2019
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Corporate
Governance Report

of Boh Stack in December 2017 Two new non-gxecutives joined us on
1 July 2018 and became members of the Committee

3 Executive arettors

5
Set out below is the Board's formal report on corporate g
governance and separale reports from the Audit, g
Nominations and Remuneration Commitiees.
2016 Code - Compliance statement Non-executive / Gender Nationality
executive directors*

The Board 1s committed to maintaining good governance and confirms thal
throughout the year-ending 31 December 2018 the Company has appled K e -
the principles contained i the 2016 Code and complied with its best o s ¢ @
practice provisions save for a temporary shortfall n the membership of the a EL ? _é * B
Remuneration Committeg, The 2616 Cade provisions require a Remuneration k . , E 5
Committee to have at least three members and there was a period of six ) %
menths when the membership was reduced 10 twe following the sad death i 5 Indzpendent non- #Feniae A Brirsh 2

1 exeLutn e dirgctors & Male 5 Other

[

!

* Under the 2018 Code, the Charman g excluded when considering

Further detatls of how we have applied the 2016 Code appear below, in the the Independert ron-executive composilion of the Board

Directors' Report and other cross-referenced sections of this Annual Report,
all of which are incorporated by reference into this repert A description of the

main features of the Company’s irternal control systerm and disclosures on Dates of appointment for the Chairman and §
other regulatory matiers mcluding statements on going concem and vablty — non-executive directors g
can be found in the Directors' report on pages 139 to 142 A summary of our i f,
risk management systems and information about the risks and uncertainties Length of tenure at 31 December 2
that relate to cur business 1s detailed within the ‘How we manage risk’ g
saclion on pages 46 to 49. Information on corporate responsibility can Thomas Thune Andersen §
be found In the Carporate Responsibility section on pages 34 to 43 Carl-Peter Forster @
Katie Jackson
Board composition Birgit Nergaard
Seven directors served on the Board throughout 2018 the Charman, the Isobel Sharp 3
Chief Executive, three independent non-executive directors, the Finance Lord Rabert Smith 3
Director and one operational executive director, In addition, two new non- ! e ! z 3 N s © 7 ;%
executive directors were appointed with effect from 1 July 2018 The Board Years g
now comprises ning directors All contmuing directors stand for re-glection z
at each Annual General Meeting. &
, Date of appointment Date of current letter of
! appelntmant
Independence of non-executive directors Thomas Thune Andarsen 1 July 2018 12 December 2018
The Board considers that all of the non-executve directors arg freg from Cari-Peter Forster 1 Cotober 2012 12 December 2018
any husiness or other relationship which could materially interfere with Katie Jackson 1 July 2018 12 December 2018 -
the exercise of thair ndependent judgement and all meet the critena Birgit Nergaard & \ovember 2012 12 December 2018
for ndependence under the Code Al of the non-executive directors are Isobed Sharp 1 Seplember 2075 12 December 2018
regarded by the Board as independent The Charman was also regarded Lord Robert Smith 7 May 2015 12 December 2018
as independent at the date of his appointment to the Board.
Board diversity Share ownership for the Chairman and
The non-executive directors are a diverse group from different backgrounds non-executive directors
and natonalities and bring with them a wide range of skills and experience The Chairman and non-executive directors are encouraged to hold
In commerce, finance and industry from around the world. More than half the some shares i IMIwithin a reasonable period after their appointment,
Board are non-Briush and there are five different nationalities on the Board. As at 31 December 2018 the Chairman and non-executive directors
Three of the nine directors are female (e 33%). Our approach to diversity all held tMI shares as set out in 1he table on page 77.

1 set out In more detall in the Corporate Responsibility section on pages
34 o 43 and n the Nominations Committee Report on pages 64 and 65
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Corporate Governance Report

Meetings and use of Board time

The Board met on six occasions during the year in¢luding two results
reporting meetings, a day dedicated to strategy discussiens and regular
review meetings at which updates are provided as appropriate covering health
and safety, operational and financial matters, investor relations, nsk and legal
affairs. In addition, there were several days spent on Board site wisits and
attendance at other events.

2018 Board cycle

In addition to the regular agenda items for operational matters, business
performance and corporate affarrs, the following matters were deatt with
at Board meetings in the year.

February

Approval of the prelminary results announcement and Annual Report
Approval of the final dividend recommendation

Approval of the notice of Annual General Meeting

Review of the first monthly phased forecast {the “Q1 Forecast™

Rewview of a significant possible acquisition

May

Review of trading and other updates

Approval of the Interm management statement
Preparation for the Annual General Meeting
Strategy update

Review of the Q2 Forecast

Bimba ntegration update

Bopp & Reuther post-acquistion reviaw

IT update

July

Approval of the half year results announcement
Approval of the interim dividend

Intenm risk review

Review of the Qi3 Forecast

September
Strategy review

Five year business plan review

October

Site visit to US operations
Corporate Governance Update
Rewview of the Q4 Forecast

Approval of the intenm management statement

December

Budget for 2012
Annual risk review
Board evaluation
Strategy update

Board evaluation report

Post-investment reviews

Apnual Repgﬂ and Accopntsr 201 8

Board attendance

Director Board % attended where

meetings eligible
Thoemas Thune Andersen’ 474 100
Carl-Peter Forster 6/6 100
Katie Jackson' 474 100
Birgit Nergaard 6/6 100
Isobel Sharp 6/6 100
Lord Smith 6/6 100
Mark Setway 6/6 100
Daniel Shook 6/6 100
Roy Twite 6/6 100

Joined the Board on 1 July 2018

In 2019 to date the Board has met once with all members in attendance.

Board roles and reserved matters

A description of Board roles and reserved matters is included in the IMI
Corporate Governance Framework (which can be found on the Company
website} and 1s summansed in the Directors’ Repert on pages 139 to 142.

Induction and continuing development programme

A formal induction process for new non-execubive directors 1s well established
and (s the responsibility of the Chairman with support from the Chief Executive
and Company Secretary.

Business familianisation 1s at the core of induction and continuing dgvelopment
for non-executive directors at IMI and s centred around gaining an
understanding of the busmness and getting to know the wider management
team The twe new non-executive directors appointed in July 2018 have had
induction meetings with all of the members of the Executive Committee and
the auditor. In addition, all new non-executive directors will attend a corporate
induction day for senior managers held at head office. There is also

a committee inducticn process designed to brief new committee members

on the relevant committee and the issues it faces

Non-executive directors are required to visit busingss units around the Group
and to meet face-1o-face with senior operating management and key corporate
staff. There 1s regular contact between management and non-executive
directors during site visits, formal meetings and other company events.

During 2018 all of the non-executive directors made site visits and the whole
Board wisited US operabions including IMI CCl in IMI Critical Engineering and
Bimba in iMI Precision Engineering. Feedback cn Board and individual site
visits 1§ discussed by the Board.

Appropriate traming and other continuing professional development 15 available
to all non-executive directors and regular updates are given during the year
where relevant to the business arising at Board and committee mestings.
For example, approgriate best practice updates were provided to the
Remuneration Committee and to the Board during 2018 including training
on the 2018 Code. Non-executive directors are encouraged to undertake
additional training and several did attend external training during the year.




Beard visit to US operations

Site wisits are an important, reguiar feature of the Board calendar.

In Gctober 2018 the Board visited IME CClin Califormia and Bimba

in Hhingis where it held meetings and toured the manufacturing sites.
IMI's core processes were seen fo be well embedded at IMI CCl and
the business has made excellent progress with its Value Engingening
programme Bimba 1s progressing well as a business and has achieved
the integration milestones as planned

IMI has a substantial presence In the USA which 1s home to business units
i all three dmisions In particular, IMI Critical Engineering has four business
units n the country including, IMI CCl in Cakformia, and IMI Precision
Engineering has 10 business unis including Bimba in ineis 1M1 CCl is

a powerful brand for IMI Critical Engineering and offers a range of valves
for power plants and other severe senvice apphications. Bimba 1s a key player
In the US Precision Engineening Industrial Automation market which joined
the Groug from January 2018,

During the factory tours, management and staff had the opportunnty to
showcase a wide range of improvements and local management made
bugmness presentations. Senor managers from US businesses joined
the Board for discussions over dinner, Each visit provided an excelient
opportunity for the Board to meaet a wider group of employees and gan
a more in-depth understandng of the busingsses

Board evaluation

The Chairman arranged an internally facilitated evaluation process in 2018.
An externally facilitated evaluation was last conducted in 2017 with Egon
Zehnder Based on that review Egon Zehnder's overnding conclusien was
that the Board is run in an effective manner Fetowing discussien of the
report by Egon Zehnder the Board noted some argas for development
ncluding routine feedback on site wisis, continuing development of strong
relationships among Soard members and regular strategic pregress
updates for the Board to be expanded. All of these development areas

have recewved appropriate attention during the year.

The 2018 nterna! evaluation exercise was camed out through a guestionnaire
process run by the Company Secretary and by the Chairman canvassing the
views of directors individually. While the findings of the internal evaluation
were overwhelmingly pesitive, in keeping with the Group's commitment to
continugus improvemant, the Board agreed that it will make it a prionty to
allocate a generous proportion of tme to strategy. In addition, external training
opportunities for directors will be expanded and participation encouraged.

As senior independent directar, Carl-Peter Forster conducted a review of
the Chairman with the gther non-executive directors and shared the results
with the Chairman. During the year the Chairman also met with the non-
executive directors iIndividually for performance review and feedback
sessions and as a group to review the performance of the Chief Executive,
The Charrman passed on to the Chief Executwe appropriate feedhack

from the review of his performance

The Chairman 1s satisfied that the Board is fulfilling its responsibilities
appropriately and that the Board and its commiltees are effective and
that each director demonstrates a valuable contnbution and 15 committed
1o therr role

57
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Annual Report and A'?E"BJ‘LS 291§

Standing committees of the Board

The standing committees of the Board are the Audit Committeg, the
Nominations Committee and the Remuneration Commitiee Each of these

Separate reports frem the committees appear in this Arnual Report as follows

committees operates under written terms of reference which clearly set
out their respective delegated responsitilities and authorities. The full terms
of reference of these committees are part of the IMI Corporate Governance
Framework (which can e found on the Company’s website) The committees
report to the Board on their work, normally through their respective chair.

following each meeting.

Audit Committee

Isobel Sharp
Chair

Membership
Carl-Peter Forsler
Birgit Nergaard

Main responsibilities

Financial reporting

» Oversight role In relation to financial statements

» Reviewing significant areas of judgement and
accounting policies

» Reviewing the proposed statements on
going concern and viatility t0 appear in the
Annual Report

» Advising the Board on whether the draft Annual
Report s fair, balanced and understandable

» Monitoring announcements in respect of
financial porformance

Financial controf and risk

» Monitoring the effectiveness of intarnal
financial controls

» Reviewing financial nsks including fraud risk

» Oversight of internal audit and other key processes
for montorng nternal financial control

» Overseeing the external audit process,
its objectivity, effectiveness and cost with
responsibility for setting the audit fee

= Making recommendations to the Board for the
appontment of the auditor nc¢luding oversight
of the audit tender process

» Reviewing the system for confidential
whistleblowing and the freatment of reports
receved (this became a Board responsibility
from 2019}

Nominations Committee

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Charr

Membership
Thomas Thune Andersen
Carl-Peter Forster

Kahe Jackson

Birgit Nergaard

Isobel Sharp

Main responsibilities

» Board and committee composition

» Oversight of succession plans for the Board and
the Executive Committee

- Search for and recommendation of candidates
for appontrment as non-executive directors, Chief
Executive and other executive director postions

» Diversity policy, promotion of diversity and
monitoring of progress

Audit Committee Report on pages 60 to 63, Nominations Committee Report
on pages 64 and 65 and Remunreration Commitiee Report on pages 66 to 79

Remuneration Committee

Birgit Norgaard
Char

Membership

Thomas Thune Andersen
Carl-Peter Forster

Kate Jackson

Main responsibilities

« Define and recommend the remuneration policy
for the Chairman and members of the Executive
Committee

- Datermine the ndwvidual remuneration packages
for the Charman and members of the Executive
Commiitee within the polcy approved by
shareholders

- Set annual and long-term incentive meatncs
and awards and determine the outcomes for
the members of the Executive Committee
» Report on remuneration matters and constructively
engage with shareholders
» Assess nsk in respect of remunaration
and incentive structures in particular




Executive Committee

The Executive Committee 1s chaired by the Chief Executive and the other
members are shown on page 15. The Commitiee meets monthly and more
often as may be required Regular attendees at s meetings include the
Group Financial Controller. Cirector of Risk and Compliance, and the
Head of Investor Relations.

The Executive Committee 15 the senior management body and as part

of the broad remit set by the Chiet Executive it monitors and manages
business performance, reviews progress aganst strategic objectives and
formulates budgets and proposals on strategy and resource allocation for
consideration by the Board The Executive Commiltee 1s a management
committee which takes 1ts authonty from the Chief Executive and 15 not

a committee of the Board.

The £xecutive Commitiee plays a key part in sk assessment, nsk
management and manitoring processes and receves regular reports

cn investor relations, human resources health and safety, mternal audil,
compliance. tegal and other corporate affarrs.

Investor relations

The Board oversees sharehalder engagement and mantains a balanced
understanding of the issues and concerns of major shareholders. The Chisf
Executive and Finance Director have primary responsibility at Board level
for mvestor relations and they. and the Head of Investor Relations, report
to the Board on shareholder 1ssues at every Board meeting duning the
year. Financial analysts' notes are circulated to the directors and the Board
receves regular feedback reports from the Company’s brokers and public
relations adwisers as well as from management. Dialogue 1s maintained
with the principal shareholders and the executive directors meet regutarly
with institutional Investors. During 2018 there were over 130 such meetings
with institutional shareholders The Charman and the senicr ingependent
director also are avatlable 1o shargholders as needed and both have had
contact with investors duning the year.

The 2018 Annual General Mesting was presided over by the Chairman
and attended by all of the serving directors. The Chairman and the cther
directors met shareholders informally afterwards. Each substantively
separate issue was put to the Annual General Meeting as an individual
motion, Notice of the Annual General Meeting was issued more than twenty
working days In advance of the meeting and the level of votes lodged for
and against each resoluticn, together with details of abstentions, are shown
on the IMt website. The Board vatues the support of sharehotders and the
poll results for all resolutions proposed at the Annual General Meeting
were well above 80% In favour In each case

In addition to the Annual Report, the Company issues prehminary
results and half year results announcements, as well as two intenm
management statements between results announcements The IMI
wehsite Includes recardings of results presentations made by senior
management, recent annual and half year reports, interim management
statemenits, other corporate announcements and links 1o the websites
of the Group's businesses

59

The Company has arranged a dealing service for the convenience of
shareholders with Equinti (details are shown on page 164). A sponsored
Level 1 American Depositary Receipt programme has been established for
which Citbank, N A acts as depositary (details can be found on page 164).

By order of the Board

John O’Shea
Group Legal Director and Company Secretary

28 February 2019
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Audit Committee

Re_p_prt

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Dear Shareholder

This report covers the Audit Committee's
composition and our main aleas of activity
and focus over the last year. Our role is to
monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial
reporiing, to review internal financial controls
and the effectiveness of internal audit, and to
make recommendations to the Boaird on the
appointment of our external auditor whose
independence, objectivity and effectiveness
is reviewed by us. The full terms of reference
of the Committee can be found in the IM1
Corporate Governance Framework on the
Company’s website and was revised with
effect from 1 January 2019 to take account
of the 2018 Code.

Two particular areas of activity for the
Committee in 2018 have been the acquisition
of Bimba and the audit tender process,
delails on which are given below.

Composition of the Audit Committee

Birgit Nergaard, Carl-Peter Forster and ! were members of the Audit
Committee throughout the year. All of the Committee members are regarded
by the Board as ingependent non-executive directors | have charred the Aught
Commitiee since 7 October 2017 and became a member on 1 September
2015. | spent my earlier career in the acceunting and audr professicn

and the Committes 15 satisfied that | have significant recent and relevant
financial expenence. | also currently chair the audit committee at The Bankers
Investment Trust PLC and Winton Group Limited, In my role as Chair | have

" had significant interactions with key senior executives and reviewed in

advance selected papers and agendas for meetings of the Committee
| also have met with our external auditor prior to Committee mestings

My colleagues on the Committee also have expenence at audit committee
level and collectively the Committee has the skills, experience and objectivity
to be an effective Audit Committes and to challenge censtructively. During the
year, Committee members receved updates covering changes in accounting
standards, best practice guidance and other key topics. Furthermore, we each
attend as appropriate external fraining sessions to update our knowiedge

The Committee asks the following to join all or part of its meetings. the
Chairman, the Chief Executive, the Finance Director, the Group Financiat
Cortroller, the Director of Risk and Compliance, the Group Assurance Director
and the external auctor, Ernst & Young LLP ('EY"). In addition, other non-
executive directors are welcome to attend,

The Gommittee holds at least part of several meetings each year alone
with the external auditor and with the Director of Risk and Compliance and
the Group Assurance Director. The Committee has the power to call on
any employee to attend. The Secretary to the Commities is the Company
Secretary, who is also the Group Legal Director.

Main areas of activity

The Audit Committee met four times in 2018. For two meetings the focus was
on the forthcoming results reporting and for the other two the focus wags on
planning and review matters.

The effectiveness of internal financial controls continues to be a key area for
the Committee which welcomes management’s continuing commitment to
improve the Group's internal financial controls Based on its review of selected
key controls, EY agreed with management's assessment that the level of



controf effectivenass at the locations assessed as full or specific in the audit
remains high at 95% Nonetheless, the Committee continues 10 assess with
management cppertunities for improvement, which has resulted in a number

of further control inhatives being identified for 2019 The IT investment and 1
infrastructure programme 1s continuing and its implementation facilitates
imprevemants in the audit efficiency as well as in internal controls

The Committes has reviewed reports on the six-menthly Internal Centrol
Declarations which are submitted by each business unit and cover internal
controls on financial affairs, IT, human resources and cther key areas, The
process is managed by Group Assurance, which follows up declarations wath
on-site visits to review scores and track appropriate improvement actions
During the year, the Committee has sought information on the accounting
systems and internal controls at Bimba and has been pleased o note the
progress achieved to daie and the way in which its staff have responded to
the additional financial reporting reguirements which come with being part
of a public company

A presentation on tax polcy and compliance from the Head of Group Tax
was received by the Commuttee, Treasury matters were discussed with the
Group Treasurer

The Commitiee approved the proposed external audit approach and

its scope hased on the size and level of risk of the entities concerned
The Group and FY take a risk based approach to audit and other assurance
activity, The key audit matters identified by EY are set out In its report on
pages 145 to 147 and were reviewed by the Committee in approving the
audit scope and plan.

The Committee reviewed and approved for submission to the Board the
statements on gong concern and wiakility, which are in the Directors’
Report on pages 139 to 142,

The Cemmittee advises the Board on the farr, balanced and understandable
requrements for the Annual Report and half year results statement, The Committee
has made positive reports to the Board aganst these criteria The Committee’s
review Included consideration by the Commuttee of aliernative performance |
measures and the presentation of adjusting items in accordance with the
Group accounting policy In respect of the Annual Report, the farr, balanced
and understandable critera are also a review area for the external auditor.
In redation to which 1t did not report any exceptions. The statement of
Directors’ responsibilities on page 143 includes confirmation by the

Board that 1t considers the Annual Report. taken as a whole, to be farr
balanced and understandable.

Oversight of financial reporting

The Committee acts in an oversight role in respect of the Annual Report
and other announcements with financial content. all of which are prepared
by management. The Committee received reperts on the annual and half
year statements from management and the external auditor

Significant judgements related to the
financial statements

In preparng the accounts, there are a number of areas requinng the
exercise by management of jJudgement and estimation These matters were
the subject of appropriate detalled analysis and commentary in papers and
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reports to the Committee by management and the external auditor
The Commitiee reviewed the most significant accounting areas involving
such judgements and estimates and these are described below

. Acquisition accounting for Bimba

Bimba was acquired on 31 January 2018 for a cash consideration of £138m
The Group had a 12-month measurement percd after the acquisiion date to
finalise the accounting for the acquisition of Bimba. Management exercises
Judgement on the types of intangible assets acquired and estimates were
made cf the fair value of all assets and habihes The provisional far value
amounts recognised at the half-year in respect of the identifiable assets
acquired and labilites assumed were mcluded in the notes to the hatf-

year financial statements. As sel out 1n note 3 4 to the financial statements
on page 108 one change in these provisional values was made at the

year end totalling £1.9m The external auditor provided confirmation that

the judgements made n this connaction, mcluding the assumptions used

to value the acquired cuslomer relationships and the Bimba brand, were
considered to be acceplable

impairment of goodwill and intangibles arising
from acquisitions

* The Committes considered the level of gocdwill and intangible assets held

on the Group s balance sheet in respect of a number of past acquisitions
and whether, given the future prospects of these businesses, the carrying
value in each material case remained appropriate

The year end balance sheet ncludes goodwill of £437m and intangible assets
ansing on acquisitions of £79m The Commitiee reviewed the assumptions
and catculations used by management in the assessment of any impairment
of goodwill and intangible assets and agreed that an impairment of the £2m
goadwill held relating to the IMI Fydronic Engineening service companies CGU
was required. Impairment was also a key audit matter for EY which reported
its fingings to the Committee. Section 3.2 to the financial statements on page
105 provides details regarding the Group's intangible assets and gooawill.

Revenue and profit recognition

The Commuittze discussed the tming of revenue and profit recognition on
some of the Group's larger contracts. in addition, this 1s & key audit matter
on which EY reported to the Committee.

Having reviewed management's precess and EY's report, the Commitiee
concluded that revenugs and profits were appropriately reflected in the
financial statements. Section 5.4 note C to the financial statements on
page 135 provides further information

Ihe Committze also reviewed managemeant's assessment of he impacl of
IFRS 15 ‘Revenus from Contracts with Customers’ which came into effect
from January 2018 and 1s discussed further n Section 1 on page 92

Inventory valuation

The year end balance sheet Includes inventories of £273m after £33m of
provisions. The Committee reviewed the Judgements applied to standard
costing valuations and provisions against excess and obsolete inventory and
cencurred with management’s assessment, This was a key audit matter for
EY, in respect of which it reported to the Committee that mventory valuation
across the Group 1s constdered appropriate Section 3 1 1 to the financiai
statements on page 104 provides details of inventory vatuation
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Other judgement areas

The Commrties reviewed the appropriateness of the accounting treatment in
respect of pension scheme liabilies, including the actuarial assumptions used
and the impact of one-off special pension events. The Committee aiso reviewed
reporting from the external auditor, which concurred with the accounting for
pensions proposed by management The Committee supported management’s
on-going efforts to de-risk the Group's pension obligations which n 2018
intluted the buy-out Dy an insurance company of £409m of UK defined benefit
obligations Further detalls can be found in Section 4.9 on page 122

In additicn the Committee reviewed the appropriateness of restructunng costs
disclosed as adjusting items, leasing arrangements and the impact of IFRS
changes, property sales and the adequacy of taxation prowvisions. Further detalls
on these matters can be found in Sections 2.2 and 2.4 respectively, on pages
98 and 100.

Internal audit

The Committee received reports from and manitored the work of the Group's
internal audit function, known as Group Assurance. Group Assurance reports
through the Director of Risk and Compliance to the Chief Executive Group
Assurance also has a direct reporting Iine to the Committee. Group Assurance
work is primarily directed towards financral control audits but also covers
other selected areas including project planning and imglementation for major
business changes and interal control declarations. The principal projects
reviewad in 2018 were major computer systems implementations n each

of the three dvisions and a review of the Bimba integration process.

Duning the year 46 internal audit reviews were completed with 42 of these
supported by dwisional finance managers Centrally the Group Assurance
team is led by experienced, senior internal audit professionals and across
the Group there are gver 70 staff trained to conduct internal finangial control
audits. Locations to be reviewed each year are selected on a risk assessed
basis, discussed with the Audit Committee and co-ordinated with the external
auditor, The completion of actions anising from internal audits and reviews

is monitored by the Committee and the track record is excellent.

Group Assurance works closely with the dwsions to implement monitoning

and review processes to complement the internal and external audit coverage.

The arnual plan and resourcing for internal audit were approved by the
Committee and take account of the enhanced monitoring and review actwvity
within the diwisions. From 2317 the scope of internal audits has been
extended to cover certain other operational and commercial risks.

To achieve this a co-sourcing model has been adopted, where expenenced
finangial managers from the dvisiens work with the Group Assurance team
on combined audits covering financial, operational and commercial matters.
Group Assurance has also trained divisional finance managers in financial
control auditing skills and provided a toolkit to enable them to carry out
financial control audits at selected sites in the internal audrt plan. Financial
control evidence binders have been introduced across the Group n 2018.
These tinders help internal audits become more efficient and support
transition and continuity in the event of the changes in finance staff

The Committee welcomed management’s decision to infroduce the
binders as a further step to ensure robust financial controls.

! The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of Group Assurance with
management and recerved input frem the external auditor. The Committee
was pleased with the further development of the co-sourcing model with the
Group Assurance Team and expenenced financial managers from the diwisions
working together to enhance the effectiveness of assurance processes

An area for improvement which was 1dentified 1s for Group Assurance

to do more to share best practice around the Group.

External audit independence and
performance review

The Committee approved the propesed external audit approach and its scope.
The Committee considered the independence and objectraty of the external
auditor 1o be satisfactory In assessing auditor ndependence the Committee
had regard to the Financial Reporting Council’s best practice guigance for
audit commitees. In addiion, the external auditer confirmed that its ethics
and independence policies complied with the requirements of the Institute

of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

The policy on the use of the auddor for non-audit work was reviewed and
updated by the Commuittee 1n 2016 to take account of developments in
regutatory requirements and ethical guidelines for the audit professior.

The palicy requires approval by the Committee Chair for any nori-avdit
engagement which 15 more than tnvial. The Finance Direclor monitors any
proposed non-aucht engagements of EY and refers to the Committee Chair
for approval as appropnate. The pohicy does not allow work to be placed with
the auditor if it could compromise auditor independence, such as functioning
in the role of management or auditing its own work. Non-audit fees paid to
the auditor were £0 tm {2017 £0.1m), which represents 3% of the audit
fee and demonstrates the ight control which is maintained in this area

One nen-audit engagement involved fees above £30,000 and the main areas
of activity were the intenm results review and an operating risk assessment.
The Committee considers the level and nature of non-audit work to be
modest and not to compromise the independence of the external auditor.
We are salisfied that EY is fully independent from the management and

free of confiicts of interest.

Benchmarking of the audit fee was conducted in the context of the full audit
tender process deseribed below and the fee 1s considered by the Commitiee
to be appropriate The Committee reviewed and approved the proposed audit
fee payable to EY.

To maintain the objectivity of the audit process, the external audit partner
responsible for the Group 1s rotated within the audit firm at ieast every five
years and the current Senior Statutory Auditer, Simen O'Neill, was appointed
following completion of the 2017 audit.

We formally reviewed the effectiveness of the external audit grocess.

As In other years, a questionnaire was used to review the external auditor's
periormance, In 2018 the Committee also received teedback on EY through the
audit tender process (discussed further below). As a result of the guestionnare
and audit tender feedback, the Commttee believes the external auditor's
performance has been good and effective. To enhance further the external audit
process, certain improvement actions were identified and plans have been put
in place by EY to address these. These included action to improve continurty of
Junior level staff on the audit and more rigarous structure in the audit process,
especally in relation to audit delverabie requests and progress meetings.
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The audit tender process

Pursuant to the statutory requirement for audit tendening after ten years

{1.e. in time for the 31 December 2019 audit) and as signalled in the 2017
Annuat Report, the Committee fed an audit tender process during the year,
the result of which was our recommendation to the Board to select EY as
auditor for the 2019 year The Board approved the recommendaton and 1s
seeking shareholders’ approval 1o re-appont £Y as the external auditor at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The term of appointment is annual
and there are no cantractual restrictions on the Committea’s choice of
external auditor,

The audit tender process invalved the following main steps

Considering how the tender should be conducted and
agreeing how the firms should be assessed

The Committee agreed that three firms should be invited to tender This
decision was reached after considenng the needs of the Group, the existing
substantial relationship with ene firm which currently prowides tax services
te the Group and Inal soundings taken from other first and second ter
infernational audit firms.

To support the Committee, the day-to-day running of the tendar process was
managed by a panel which consisted of the Audit Commuittee Chair, the Chief
Executive Officer, the Group Finance Director, the Group Financial Controller,
the Chief Financial Accountant and the Global Head of Procurement.

To assist in evatuating overall audit quality, the key assessment cntena were
the capability and competence of the audit team; the approach to, and
management of, the audit. relationships and cultural fit with the Group,

and quality of the propasal and management of fees. Throughout the process.
all relevant staff were provided with the detailed assessment critena and
asked to provige their feedback to the tender panel.

Running the process

The tender panel issued the Request for Proposal 1o the three firms and
made avallable, In a data room, information on the Group and its divisions
to assist the firms. Aftar receipt of the proposals, meetings were held with
Group representatives 1n cur major geographies and the firms’ staff. This
was followed by individual meetings with dwisional heads and with Group
representatives, including the Chief Executive, Finance Director and Audit
Committee Charr. The results were then collated and made available 1o
the Committee

In May 2018, the three firms were invried to meet with representatives of
the Audit Committee and the Group Executive to present their proposals
for the audit

Selecting the firm

Al its meeting in June 2018, the Audit Committee reviewed the process and
the information and views gathered therein and agreed 1o recommend to
the Board that, subject (o shareholders’” approval, EY should be appointed
audttors for the year to 31 December 2019 The Committee believes that

a rebust audit tender process was executed and that EY has the skill and
experience to ensure that a ngorous and challenging audit, led by EY's Simon
O’'Neill who has just compieted hus first year as Senior Statutory Auditor,

IS carried out

| Compliance hotline

During 2018 the Committee reviewed the operatien of the independent
compliance hotling for reporting concerns, reviewed the more significant
reports received and considered how these are investigated and followed
up. The Committee believes that the hotline process and nvestigations are
effective and that proportionate action 1s taken by management in response
In ling with the 2018 Code this responsibility has been transferred to the
Board from the start of 2019,

Committee attendance and evaluation

Dtrector Audit Committee % attended where
meetings eligible

Can-Peter Forster 4/4 100
Birgit Nergaard 4/4 100

i Isobel Sharp 4/4 100

The Committee reviewed its own perfermance and terms of reference
and receved positive feedhack from the evaluation exercise carned out
in relation to the Board and each of its standing committees As a resuit
of the evaluation, the meeting ¢ycle for future years been adjusted to
improve efficiency.

. The Committee approved this report on its work.

Yours faithfuily

Isobel Sharp
Chair of the Audit Committee

28 February 2019
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Nominations

Dear Shareholder

I am pleased Lo make iny report as Chair of
the Neminaticns Committee. This report s
intended 1o give an account of the Commitiee
and 1ts activity. The core responsibilities of
the Committee are succession planning and
appointments at Board level and oversight

of appointments to the Executive Committee.
The full terms of reference of the Commiitee
can be found in the IMI Corporate Governance
Framewocrk on the Company's website and
was revised with effect from 1 January 2019
to take account of the 2018 Code.

Committee Report

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

I Composition

| Garl-Peter Forster, Birgit Negrgaard, lsobel Sharp and | were members of the
Committee threughout the year Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie Jackson
‘ joined the Committee on 1 July 2018, For the purposes of the 2018 Code,

‘ all of the non-executive directors on the Committee are regarded as
independent non-executive directors

|

‘ Attendance

Director Nominations % attended

Committee where eligible

meetings

Thomas Thune Andersen’ 3/3 100
Ganl-Peter Forster 4/4 100
Katie Jackson' 2/3 87
Birgit Nergaard 4/4 100
Ischel Sharp 4/4 100
Lord Smith 4/4 100

' Joined the Committee an 1 July 2018. Katie Jackson had g prior comenitment an
appointment which prevented her attendance at one of the three meetings held since
har agpmntmant

Main areas of activity

Chief Executive succession

Follow:ng a rigorous selection process supported by Russell Reynolds that
included hoth internal and external candidates, the Board agreed to appoint
Roy Twite as IMI's next Chief Executive. He is a strong and expenenced
successor who has been pivotal 1o the Group's continued success. He has
extensive operational experience, deep knowledge of our core markets and
outstanging leadership qualties.

The Committee is also reviewing the succession choices for a new Owisional
Managing Director in the IM! Critical Engineering dmsion. An announcement
on that appomtment will be made 1n dug course.
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Board changes and recommendations for election and
re-election

The Commitlee commussioned Zygos Partnership to undertake a full search
process o recruit two new non-executive directors and recommended to the
Board the appomntment of Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie Jackson. The
Committee also recommended the appointment of Birgrt Norgaard as non-
exacutive director with responsibiliy for employee engagement All of the
directors standing are recommended for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting. The Board approved all of the recommendations made by the
Committee for the renewals of appointment for continuing directors

Succession planning
The Committee reviews Board composition and has formulated a structured
medium-term plan for Board succession

As already highlighted, during the year Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie
Jackson joined the Board, Originally 1t was envisaged that they would join
all three Board commitiees, but in the interests of better balance of overal
committee memberships, it was decided that they would serve on twao,
the Nominations and Remuneration Committees

During the year we reviewed talent development and succession planning
for the top 220 roles in the Group with the support of the Chief Executive
and Group Human Resources Director We were encouraged 1o see that
significant progress continues 1o be made 1n terms of cultivating a stronger
pipeline of high-calibre talent as demonstrated by the internal appaintment
of the new Chief Executive and the strong list of internal candidates for the
Cntical Engineening, Divisional Managing Director role Further details of our
leadership development and succession planning processes are set out in
the Corporate Responsibility section on pages 34 1o 43.

Review of time commitments and contributions

The appointments of the Chairman and non-executive directors are made
on the basis of a formal letter of appointment including a stated mimimum
time commitment judged appropriate by the Committee The Committee
considers that the tme given to IMI by each non-executive director 1s
sufficient. The Board 1s satisfied that | have the necessary ime to devotle
o my role as Charman.

Diversity

The Board racognises the benefits a diverse pool of talent can bring to a
boardroom and remans committed to increasing dversity acress IMI by
voluntary measures. We will continug to review the composttion of our
management teams and the Board to ensure that we have the nght

mix of skills and experience while maintaiming our effectiveness and
execution capatuities.

A Board level. more than half the Board are non-British and there are five
nationalities, Three of the non-execubive directors are femalg, representing
33% of the Board, and there 1s a broad mix of backgrounds and sxperience
We are supportive of the need to improve gender diverse representation

al Board and senior executive levels and are working hard to this end.
Further information on workforce diversity matters is given in the

Corporate Responsibility section on pages 34 10 43,

The Committee welcomes 1ts responsibiity under the 2018 Code for
promoting broader diversity at Board and senior management level.

Committee evaluation

The Nomunations Committee reviewed its own performance and terms
of reference and receved positive feedback from the evaluation exercise
carried out In respect of the Board and each of s commiitees.

The Committee approved this report ¢n its work,

Yours faithfully

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chair of the Nominatiocns Committee

28 February 2019
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Annual Statement from the

Chair of the Committee

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present
the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year
ended 31 December, 2018, In May 2018 the
Directors’ Remuneration Policy {the "Policy”}
was put {o shareholders for a binding vole at
the Annual General Meeting. The Policy, and the
annual remuneration report, were both approved
by almost 90% of votes cast at the meeting.

During the year we refreshed the composition
of the Committee. In July 2018 Thomas Thune
Andersen and Katie Jackson jeined IMI as
non-executive directors and became members
of the Remuneration Commitiee at the same
time. Information about Thomas and Katie is
set out on page 53.

I Pay for performance in 2018

| Our focus this year has been twotold to ensure consistent application of

our Policy and to ensure cur remuneration arrangements remain approprate
in the context of the challenging econemic and market conditions we are
continuing to facé 1IN a number of our key markets.

Al the heart of our Policy 1 pay for performance and a high proportion of
our exacutive drectors’ remuneration is closely tied to business performance.
The Committee sefect performance measures that align to strategy and
when setting stretching performance targets take into account a number

of factors, incluging the strategic plan, annual budget, analysts’ forecasts
and economic conditions, Our cbjective 1s always 1o set stretching targets

. while at the same time ensuring that strong underlying performance, which
can sometimes he obscured by external macrg-economic conditions, is
recognised When assessing the fevel of performance achieved the Committee
takes into account wider circumstances to ensure incentive outcomes are a
+ fair reflection of actual performance Further information about the process we
follow when setting targets and assessing performance (s Set out on page 71.

2018 has been a year of good progress for IMI despite continued mixed
economic and market conditions. Group adjusted profit before tax has
increased by 12% to £251 2m while organic revenue growth increased
5% to £1,907m on a constant currency basis. Cash conversion was 83%
in 2018, Subject to ther appraval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
shareholders wilf receive a total dividend of 40.6p — an increase of 3%
from last year.

Our various strategic Initiatives, which are aimed at harnessing the Group's
full potential, are progressing well. In particular we remain focused on building
hoth competitive advantage and shareholder vaiue by continuing to invest

in new product development and improving aur aperatienal performance.

I Qur cost reduction initiatives have been successfully implemented and our
integration pian for Bimba, the business we acquired in January 2018,

1S now beng executed.




How were pay cutcomes linked to performance
in 2018?

Annual Incentives paid to executive directors in respect of perfermance
In 2018 were based on strong financial performance and achievement
of stretching 1argets relating to Group adjusted profit before tax, organic
revenue growih, cash conversion and strategic and personal objectives,
Further infermation about these incentive arrangements is set out on
page 71 The Committee 1s confident that the annual incentive cutcomes,
which range between 58 8% and 75.0% of maxamum, fairly reflect
business and Indmidual performance in the context of our ongoing
challenging cperating envirgnment

2019 marks only the second year of vesting under the IMI Incentive

Plan {'lIP"). Mark Selway, Roy Twite and Daniel Shook were granted a
performance share award under the lIP in 2016 and the awards will

vest at 29 2% in March 2019.

What decisions were made during the year?

The Committee reviewed the base salary Jevels for executive directors
taking into account a number of factors including Individual performance,
2018 business performance, prevalling economic conditions and wider
circumstances. the Group's financial performance, and salary increases
for other employses The Committee concluded that an increase of 2.2%
for Roy Twite and Daniel Shook effective 1 January 2019 was approprate
and in ine with the wider employee workforce. The Committee concluded
that Mark Selway would not receive a base salary increase for 2019,

The Chairman and non-executive director fees were also reviewed and
were increased by 2.2%, with effect from 1 January 2019,

Looking forward

Chief Executive, Mark Selway, has given notice to the Board of his wish to
retire. Mark will step down as Chief Executive at the 2019 Annual General
Megting before retinng from the Board en 31 July 2019, Remuneration
arrangements relating to tis retirement will be in line with his service
contract and the shareholder approved remuneration policy In respect of
2019, Mark will be eligible for a pro-rated bonus for time served paid wholly
in cash in accordance with the IIP rules Full retrospective tisclosure of
performance against targets set will ke made n the 2019 Annual Report,
AllIP deferred bonus share awards will vest in accordance with policy.
Mark will not be eligible for a base salary ingrease or an iIP performance
share award n 2019 Taking into account Mark’s performance in the five
years he has been Chief Executive, and his departure being for reasen of
retirement, the Committee have agreed that aif outstanding ItP performance
share awards shall continue to thewr ordinary vesting date when performance
will be assessed against the targets st and any vesting will be pro-rated.

Roy Twite will succeed Mark Selway as Chief Executive at the 2019 Annual
General Meeting. Roy wall be apponted on a base salary of £720,000.
Additenally, the pension apportunity for Roy will reduce from the current
level of 35% of base salary to 11%" Roy Twite will participate i the annual
incentive bonus and iiP on the same terms as the previous Chief Executive,

' In orcler 1o align with the pension contributions of the majonty of the global warkforce

Finally, the Committee welcomes the changes introduced by the 2018 UK

Corporate Governance Code and updated remuneration reporting regulations
published in the Summer of 2018. Supporting our strategy, promoting
long-term sustainable success, fransparency and independent judgment

are already at the core of our remuneration policy but alongside the Soard
led review of the new Code requirements, the Cemmittee has discussed

at length the implications for remungrabion and taken steps in readingss

for ther application from 1 January 2019, | look forward to reporting next
year on how the Committee has comphed with the new Coede obligations.

Birgit Nergaard
Chair of the Remuneration Committee on
behalf of the Board

28 February 2019
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Annual Remuneration

Report

The Remuneration Committee {the “Committee”) presents the Directors’
Remuneration Report, which will be put to shareholders for an advisory
(non-binding) vote at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 9 May
2019. The report includes details of the Committee, the pay received
during the year in accordance with our current remuneration policy as it
was approved on 3 May 2018 and comparative internal and external data.
A copy of the approved directors’ remuneration policy is included in the

2017 annual report which can be found on the IMI website.

The Commiittee

Composition

The members of the Committes throughout the year were Birgit Nergaard
{Chain), Carl-Peter Forster, and from 1 July 2018 Thomas Thune Andersen
and Katie Jackson. in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code,
all of the non-executive directors are regarded by the Board as independent

Responsibility
The Committee determines the remuneration policy and rewards for the
execytive directors and other members of the Executive Commuttee and the

Chairman, The Committee alsc considers the levels of pay and benefits across

the Group. A copy of the Committee’s terms of reference, which has been
updated to reflect the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code, 1s included
in the IMI Corporate Governance Framework and avaitable on the IMI website

Internal advisers to the Committee

During the year, the Committee consulted the Chief Executive, regarding
the packages of the other executive directors and senior managers, H also
received support from the Finance Director, the Group Human Resources
Director. the Head of Group Reward and the Company Secretary, who is
also secretary to the Committee. None of these individuals were involved
In determining their own remuneration,

External advisers to the Committee

Independent remuneraticn consultant, Withs Towers Watson, is formally
appointed by the Committee and provided advice on executive remuneration
to the Committee in 2018. The Committee noted that the firm are actuaries
and administrators for the IMI Pension Fund. The Committee is comiortable
that these activities do not represent a conflict of interest and that chjective
and independent advice continues to be receved by the Committes from
the dedicated team servicing it at Wilhs Towars Watson

During 2018, Willis Towers Watson has also supported management on some
broader reward and human resource matters. The fees charged by Willis
Towers Watson in respect of advice and services to the Committee totalled
£79,594 in 201 8. Willis Towers Watson are signatories to the Remuneration
Consultants’ Code of Conduct n the UK

A summary of the Committee’s activities
during 2018

The Committee had three formal meetings during the year, attendance can
be viewed In the table below. The principal agenda items were as follows

» consigeration of shareholder feedback and engagement with major shareholders
In relahon to the proposed remuneration policy,

» final approval of the new Directors’ Remuneration Policy ('the Policy’) for
submission to the Annual General Meeting in May 2018,

» a review of total compensation packages of the executive directors and the most
senior management of the Group as well as a review of workforce remuneration
and related policies to ensure algnment with IMI's strategic growth plan,

» approval of achievements and outcomes under the incentive plans,
» consideration of the fees for the Chairman,
» setting the framework and target levels for the 2018 incentive cycie;

» approval of the granting of 2018 share awards to executive directors and certain
other levels of management including a review of the Total Shargholder Return
comparator group to ensure it remans appropriate,

» review of the performance targets in respect of the 2019 long term incentive
plan awards,

» review of IMI's gender pay gap results for the year ended 5 Apnl 2018
and ensured compliance with legislation (see page 36);

» review Of the UK corporate governance ang regulatory environment
following issuance of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code and
updated reporting regulations,

» review of the engagement of the independent remuneration consultants
to the Committee, and

» review of the Committee’s ewn performance, constitution and terms of reference

Attendance
Director Remuneration % attended where
Committee meetings eligible
Birgit Nergaard 3 100
Carl-Peter Forster 3 100
Thomas Thune Andersen' 2 100
Katie Jackson' ¢ 1 50

* Joined the Committeg on 1 July 2018
* Katie Jackson had a prior commitment on appointment which prevented her from attending
one of the two meetings held since her appointrent
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Annual General Meeting voting outcomes Voting outcome Votes for Votes against Votes withheld 3
The following table summarises the detaits of votes cast for and =
s Directors 89 1% 10 9% 01% 3
aganst the 2018 directors’ remuneration policy, and the 2017 Remuneration 3
annual remuneration report resclutions along with the number of Policy 2018
votes withheld. The Committee will continue to consider the views of, Annual 94.6% 5 4% 0.7%
and feedback from, shareholders when determining and reporting Remunaration
0N remuneration arrangements. | Report 2017
Executive single figure table (audited)
o
Annual Long-term Other tems n the nature %
Fixed pay varable pay variable pay of remuneration e
{€000) {£000) {£000) (£000) by
All- Dividend
Taxable Annual incentive iM} Incentive employee share equivalent Total
Director Base salary Pension benefits bonus Plan (IIP) plans payments {£600}
See page Page 70 Page 70 Page 70 Pages 71t0 73 Page 74 Page 75
2018 822 247 67 1,232 673 4 2 3,047 o
Mark Selway 2
2017 801 240 6a 1,525 138 5 1 2,773 b
o
2018 475 166 30 408 312 4 - 1,302 4
Roy Twite g
207 463 162 27 541 84 4 - 1,261 g
%]
2018 439 88 40 409 211 3 - 1,190 a
Daniel Shook ®
2017 418 84 39 506 43 3 - 1,003

Roy Twite served on the Board of Halma ple dunng the yedr and receved fees of £55,750 n respect of this appointment which he retained ‘3|'!
&

o

B

These figures have been calculated as follows: All-employee share plans  the value of free shares at award and dwdends under &)
the Employee Share Ownership Plan in the relevant %

Base salary the actual salary receivable for the year finaneial year and the intrmsic value of Save As You %
Pansion the cash aliowance paid In lieu of pension. Earn share options on the date of grant In the relevant g.

financial year {apphing a 10% dwscount as permitted
Taxable benefits the gross value of all taxable benefits (or berelts under the Save As You Earn Share Plan}

that would be taxable for a person tax resident in

the UK) receved n the year Dwvidend paymcents For lhtratIIF dlr: a;:’('i\lz)n.;é: rugnberé)fbsr;\z:‘:es e ot
roportional to the dividends paid between the date
Annual Incentive bonus the value of the annual incentive payable for g“,:’e award and the date of \rf)esllng are delvered on
performance in respect of the relevant financial year the vesting date (1o further dvidands are accrued
(g:;zﬁ;gjhsolrfuasué?ﬂzr‘:lgﬂgc;j;wﬁ;dt;?etzsggzmg after the vesting date) This applies to both the
performance share awards and deferred bonus share
does nol meet the share ownersnin requirement), awards undor e [IP Diadend equivalent payments
IMI Incentive Plan (1P} the value on vesting of the nil cost options that were anse from unexercised awards under the legacy PSP

subject to performance condmions over the throe-
year penod ending on 31 December in the relevant
financial year {see share price assumphcns below}

Share price assumptions  for shares vesting in 2018, that related to
performance in the three years to 31 December
2018, the average share price over the final three
months of 2018 (971.20 pence} Is used 1o estimate
the value of shares on vesting.
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Executive remuneration received in respect of 2018 | Benefits

Base salary

Salaries effective 1 January 2018 were agreed taking into account a

range of factors incluging the prevailing economic ¢onditiens, the financial
performance of the Group and comparative salary increases awarded from
other relevant employee benchmarks, The average increase for employees in
2018 was 3.0%, compared to 2.6% for the executive directors, Mark Selway's
and Roy Twite's salaries were increased by 2.6% to £822,000 and £475,000
respectively. As noted m last year's report, taking into account the progress
made during his three year tenure and taking into account relevant financial
director benchmarks Daniel Shook's salary was increased by 5.0% effective
1 January 2018 10 £439,000

Pension

The ‘Policy’ reducad the current maximum pension related allowance for new
hires from 30% to 25% of base salary for a Chief Executive and 20% for any
other executive director. The Committée considers th1s to be more closely
algned with the wider employee pension provisien al senior management
level within the Group and comparable with norms.

Under existing service agreements, execulive directors receved a taxahle
cash allowance instead of pension henefits Mark Selway receives a cash
allowance of 30% of salary and Daniel Shook receives a cash allowance
of 20% of salary. Roy Twite receives a cash allowance of 35% of salary
as a tegacy obligation from his appeintment as an executive director in
2007 which continues to be honoured.

Pension benefits for past service

Roy Twite was previcusly an active member of the defined beneft IMI Pension
Fund. He opted out with gffect from 1 February 2007, before he became an
executive dirsctor and as a result, he retains past pensionable service up to
that date in the IMI 2014 Deferred Fund {'the Fund",

The key elements of the benefits in the Fund are summarnised below

» the normal retirement age under the Fund 1s 82 and Roy Twnte may retire
from employment with IMI any time after age 60 without actuarial discount,

» on death after retirement. a dependant’s pension i1s provided equal to 50%
of the member’s pension

» should he die within the first five years of retirernent, the dependant’s
pension is increased to 100% of the member's pension for the remander
of the five year period.

» pensions N payment, in excess of any guaranteed mirmimum pensin, are
increased each year in bine with pnice inflation up to a maximum of 5% in
respect of pension built up before 1 January 2008, and 2.5% n respect
of pengion built up after 1 January 2006.

Accrued pension
in the Fund as at
31 December 2018 31 Decembeor 2017

£000pa £000pa

Accrued pensicn
in the Fund as at

Roy Twite 74 71
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Duning the year the executive directors receved a numper of benefits. These
are summansed below and amgounts less than £10,000 p a are combined

Mark Selway Roy Twite Daniel Shook

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Non-cash 22 14 13 10 26 24
benefits (£E000}
Company 20 20 17 17 14 14
car and fuel
allowance {£000)
Allowances and 25 29 - - - 4
reimbursement
(£000)
Total 67 63 30 27 40 39

In agdition to the above benefits and allowances that are included in the

single figure table (refer to lable on page 69), the executive direclors are
also beneficianes of company policies that have no taxable value, including

" directors’ and officers” nsurance, death n service cover, travel insurance

and persenal accident cover.
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» Group adjusted profit before tax increased to £251.2m in 2018 from

1. Set performance measures aligned with strategy £224.1m 1n 2017, representing a 12% ncrease

Annual Incentive Bonus é
In setting targets and assessing performance the following process Is adopted by the Committee §.
[=]
=
1. Set performance 2. Set stretching 3. Assess 4. Take account 3. Apply discretion
measures aligned performance performance of wider if required
with strategy and targets circumstances
budget
S . . o
As per the Pelicy, the Commitiee reviews and selects performance measures, ‘ 3. Assess performance §.
targets and ranges annually, which take account of the economic conditiens, | 2018 has been a year of good progress for IMI despite continued mixed &
strategy and the priorities of IMI at the time ' economic and market conditions §
| 3
!
and budget : o )
The Commitiee reviewed and sefected performance measures that were » Group revenue increased fo £1,807m in 2018 from £1,751m i 2017,
fully aligned to the business strategy and the annual budgel These » Cash conversion was 83% n 2018 compared with $2% in 2017
remain unchanged from prior year The 2018 annual incentive bonus » Adjusted Basic EPS increased 12% from 65 3p 10 73 2p,
focused on a number of financial metrics and non-financial metrics . The total dividend for the year ncreased by 3% compared to 2017 _83
considered central to straiegy These included and g
o
» Group adjusted profit before tax (40%). » Good health and safety performance and delivery of measurable B
» Organic revenue growth (20%). benefits from Lean and other health, safety and environmental %
» Cash conversion (20%). Initiatives. 3
=3
[z}
byl

» Strategic and personal objectives (20%)

There was a health and safety underpin to allow bonuses to be pad
anly when mimmum standards were achieved

4. Take account of wider circumstances

The Committee believes that the range of measures used to assess
performance of the annual incentive bonus ensures that performance

: 1$ assessed using a balanced approach, witheut due focus on a singte 3

2. Set stretching performance targets metric which could be achieved at the expense of wider nttiatives §

At the time of setting stretching performance targets the Commitiee Given the performance noted above and wider operational achievements 2

considered a range of influsncing factors that included the strategic noted the Committee 1S comfortable that the annual Incentive honus =

plan, the annual budget, analysts' forecasts, economic conditions, outcomes represent a fair reward for performance delivered 7

ndividuals' areas of responsibiliies and the Committee’s expectations 4

over the relevant period 5. Discretion to override formulaic outcomes and to

The performance targel range was eslablished based on the annual apply malus and clawback

budget, which required true outperformance for Executive Directors Depending on the nature of the measure e.g. health and safety, the

to achieve the maximum The Remuneration Commitiee has a fustory Committee may exercise judgement in assessing performance and T

of setting challenging targets, evidenced by the average Annuat Incentive determining the level of achievement The Committes has full discretion

Plan pay-out over the pravious five years of 59% of the established to override farmulaic outcomes. As per the Policy, the Committee also

target maximum has the power to operate malus and/or clawback provisions in the avent

that the Company misstated financial results. The Commilttee also has
the authority to give such permission for recovery of awards in cases of
serous reputational damage. corporate failure and other circumstances.
Ne such discretion has been applied in respect of the financial metric
outcomes to the 2018 annual bonus plan awards
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Summarised in the fable below s the achievement agamst Group targets for Mark Selway and Daniel Shook and a combination of Group adjusted profi
before tax and Dwvisional targets for Roy Twite

Director Measure Maximum Performance Targets Actuat Actual
opportunity (% of performance’ performance

salary) Threshold Targst Maximum {as % of salary)

Mark Selway  Group adjusted profit before tax® 80% £2110m £248.2m £273.0m £257.7m 55.3%
Group organic revenue growth* A40% £1,7139m £1.7785m £1,843.5m £1,844.4m 40.0%

Group cash conversicn* 40% 70.7% 83.2% 91.6% 84% 19.7%

Strategic personal abjectives 40% See table on page 73 87% 34.8%

200% 149.9%

Daniel Shook  Group profit before tax? 50% £2110m £248.2m £273.0m £257 7m 34 6%
Group organic revenue growth® 25% £1.713.9m £1,778 5m £1,843 5m £1.844.4m 25,0%

Group cash conversion! 25% 70 7% 83.2% 91.6% 84% 12 3%

Strategic personal objectives 25% See table on page 73 85% 21.3%

125% 93 2%

Roy Twite Group profit before tax? 52 5% £211.0m £248.2m £273 0m £257 7m 36.3%
Dwistonal operating profit® 22 5% £84 1m £9% Om £108 9m £88 7m 3 5%

Disional organic revenue® 22 5% 645 9m £672.8m £698 5m 688 6m 18.7%

Divisional cash conversion® 22 5% 81 2% 95 5% 105 1% 84% t 4%

Sirategic personal cbjectives 30.0% See table on page 73 B4% 25.3%

180% 85 2%

! Actual performance 15 stated at the exchange rates used In the targets,

" Adjusted Group profit before tax, as set out n Section 2 1 1 page 94, adjusted for the impact of foreign exchange ang acquistions

*Growth of organic revenue, as set out in Section 2,11 page 94, adjusted for the impact of foreign exchange

*This 1s calculated as management operating cash flow divided by management operating profit at the stated exchange rates used in the targets,
* Management divisional operating proft adjusted for the impact of foreign exchange

BThis Is a5 set out in Section 2 1 1 page 94, adjusted for the impact of foreign exchange




Strategic personal objectives

73

As part of the slrategic growth plan, the Commitiee sets each executive director a number of strategic personal objectives each year, Performance against these
objectives 15 assessed using a combination of quantitative and qualtative reference points to ensure a robust assessment process, Mid-way through the year the
executive 1s reviewed against their progress towards achieving the strategic personal objectives with a full review undertaken by the Commutiee al the end of the
performance period As well as performance aganst strategic personal objectives the Committee considers the wider performance of the Group. A summary of
the strategic personal objectives set for 2018 and the performance against them is provided in the table below.

Director

Strategic personal objectives

Commentary

Mark Selway

Strengthen orgamisation. Transition of IMI Hydronic Engmeenng
leadership and strengthen crganisaticnal structure, continue to
imprave operational performance through Lean with addiion of Pelicy
Deployment across the Group, and actively sponsor and support the
Group's diversity agenda,

Strategic growth: refine acquisition largets aganst clearly defined
and disciplined critena and build strong relaticnships with acquisition
targets, continue to bulld strong relationships with investors, and
ansure successiul execution of 2018 growth strategies

Deiiver projects: strengthen IMI capabiities through enhanced IT
mprovernent plans. revised go-to-market strategies, new prodict
portiolios and compeling customer solutions

Secured the appointment of Phil Clifton as Managing Director of
IMI Hydroric Engineering and sirengthened the management team.,
Lean improvernents continue 10 positively Impact the performance
of all areas of the Group, and Pcliicy Deployment now embedded
throughout the organisation Group and Divsions actvely engaged
with Diversity plans.

Acquistion target Iist 15 fully developed and relatonships with key
tarqets continue to develep, Significant progress made to continue
t0 build strong investor relationships with some notable successes

Continued successful ollout of enhanced IT systems in all three
divisions, and a significant upgrade of the Group's firewall,
authentication and third party prowders completed on tme and on
budget. Supply chan mprovement plans in Precision Engineering
now fully developed with additional resources embedded across
the regions. All three dinisions have now established strong sales
and marketing plans to suppor go-to-market strategies

Daniel Shook

Strengthen finance organisation: eéxecute srong succession
planning, robust transition arrangements with clear visibility of
resources and capabilites around the Group, support the
achievement of best practice documentation for the divisional audit
teams, and dehver agreed outcomes for Group Finance Control,
Treasury and Tax.

Delwer projects: strangthen IMI capabilities through enhanced
T improvement plans e.g ERP, IT loT advancements, deskiop
collaboration standards, and the secunty enhancement programme

Strong succession planming in place at senior levels, with robust
transttion plans established across the orgarisation. Divisional audit
teams’ controls processes further enhanced through best practice
documentation processes Inventory and fixed assets controls
processes further enhanced Strong performance from treasury
and tax functions

Successful delivery of IT projects inchucing ERP, Security
Enhancement Programme and loT advancement, ensuring that
divisions continue 1o effectively develop focused initiatives to
advance IMi's connected products,

Roy Twite

Strengthen division: delver rationahsation projects in ine with the
approved business cases, further enhance team diversity when
oppertunities anse, Improve Lean scores by the end of the year,
collaborate with other Divisional Managing Directors to drive
growth and technology agenda, and build strong relahonships
with acquisition targets.

Delver projects: develop plan to support continued margin
growth in 2018, delver 2018 ERP milestones, and develop
arthicial intellgonce strategy

Rationakisation projects delivered on time and on budget in Ine with
approved business cases Al dwsional diversity targets including
recruitment targets) met, Lear scores across the Cniical Engineerng
dwision have ncreased significantly 1o an average 74% from 70%
In 2017. Strong relationships have been developed with key
acguist or targets

Scenaric plans have been developed to support budgeted margin
growth in 2019, New ERP installations delvered on tme and on
budget. New artificial intellgence strategy now fully developed to
support growth agenda

Based on the perfermance described above, the annual incentive bonus outcomes for 20718 are set out below

Total bonus
awarded

Total honus
awarded {£000)

2018 maximum
bonus epportunity

Achievernent of share
cwnership guidehnes

Bonus delivered
in form of share

Bonus delvered
in form of cash

(% of salary} {% of salary} at 31 Dec 2018 {£000) awards {£000)
Mark Selway 200% 1,232 149 9% 114% 616 616
Roy Twite 150% 405 B5 2% 253% 405
Daniel Shook 125% 409 93 2% 65% 204 5 204.5

Detals of the share ownership guidehnes for Mark Setway Roy Twite and Daniel Shook can be found on page 74
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In March 2016, performance share awards were made to the executive directors under the HIP. The vesting of the awards was subject to the achievement of
three independent performance conditions as descnbad below. measured over the three-years ending 31 December 2018, The 2016 UP award will vest in

March 2019 at 29.2% of maximum

Initial award Value on date of Number of initial Additional dividend Total shares  Value of shares on

award? (£000) shares vesting equivalent shares vesting vesting? (€000)

Mark Selway 213,007 1,962 62,198 7,182 69,350 673
Roy Twite 98,553 908 28,777 3,309 32,086 312
Darvel Shook 66.751 615 19,491 2,241 21,732 211

! The three day average mid-market price on the dale of award was 921 33 pence

< The prce on vesting 15 unknown at thus ime and sa the total number of shares vesting 1s valued at the average poos over the last auarter of 2018 @71.20 pence)

Return on capital employed (ROCE)

25% of the award was subject to the achievement of ROCL. This measure is defined
as segmental operating profd as a pescentage of the captal employed duning the
ftnancial year ended 31 December 2018 Capital employed being Intangible Assets
(excluding Acquired Intangibles and Goodwill), Property Plant and kquipment and
Waorking capital, it compares the earnings of the Company with the capital nvested,
ROCE was chosen as a measura as it represents how well the Company has used
Its investment made by shareholders and capital from creditors 10 generate a profit.

The portion of the share award that will vest related to ROCE depends on ROCE in the
final year of the performance penod. For ROCE of less than 40% no award under this
elenent will vest, 25% of the award will vest for ROCE of 40%, nsing on a straight-line
basis 1o full vesting for ROCE employed of 50% At the end of the performance penod
return on capital employed was 38.4% resulting in this elemient vesting at nil

Total Shareholder Return (TSR)

25% of the award was subjec! lo the achieverment of a relative [5R performance
measuie against a defined group of companies adusted duning the performance period
to take account of merger and acquisition activity dunng the performance penod in line
with the Committee’s established guidelines. TSR is defined as the movement in share
pnece dunng the performance penod, measured in local currency, with adjusiment 1o
take account of changes i capital structure and dividends, which are assumed to be
reinvested in shares on the ex-dividend date TSR was chosen as a measure as 1t is

an external, relative benchmark for performance that aligns executives' rewards with
the creation of shareholder value,

The pertion of the award thal will vest related to 15R depends on where IMI ranks

in the comparator group. For a TSR 1ank that ts below median, no award under this
element will vest. 25% of the award will vest for median ISR, nsing on a straight-line
asis to full vesting for upper quartile TSR, Al the end of the three-year performantce
period, the Company ranked in the lower quartile of the peer group The resultant
vesting outcome for this element of the award 15 nil,

Group adjusted profit before tax growth

50% of the award was subject to the achievemnent of the Group adjusted profit before
tax growth measure, This measure is defined as the profit before tax before adjusted
itemns as shown in the auditad accounts of the Group, adjusted 10 reflect changes

in the Company's capital structure and any adjusted items, at the Remuneration
Committee’s discretion.

Adjusted profit before tax growth 1s 2 key measure for IMI as 1t gives an indication of
the strength of the Company’s financial performance and shows the amount availzable
to reinvest into the business, and pay a retuen (e sharehalders thraugh dividends.

Fer growth of less than 2.5% per annum, no award under this slement will vest.
25% of the award will vest for growth of 2.5% per annum nising cn a straight-ling
basis to full vesting for growth of 7.5% per annum

Over the three year performance peniod ending 31 December 2018 IMI delvered
a compgund annval growth rate of 4 7%. The resultant vesting outcome for this
element of the award 15 29 2%.

Deferred bonus share awards

In March 2016 deferred honus share awards were also made under the IIP which
vest in Margh 2019, These are the form of share award used for mandatory bonus
deferral into shares of up to 50% of annual honus payable where the executive
director 1s yet ta reach therr shareholding guideline.

Discretion to override formulaic outcomes and to
apply malus and clawback

The Commuttee has the discretion to ovemnde formulaic outcomes and may
apply discretion to adjust the number of shares which would otherwise vest 1o
effect recovery in circumstances where 1t sees fit, and it has the authonty to
give permission fer recovery of awards in cases of serious reputational damage,
corporate fallure and other circumstances, No such discretion has been apphed
to the 2016 IIP award outcome for executive directors.

Share ownership guideline

It is a requirement of remuneration pelicy that executive directars are subject to
guidelines which require them to build a sharehclding in IMI worth at least 250%
of salary for Mark Selway, 150% of salary for Daniel Shook and 200% of salary
for Roy Twite. The Policy permits the Commmliee discrelion to determine that 50%
of any annual bonus earned 1s deferred into shares until the share ownership
guidetine 15 achieved together with 50% of any vested share awards. Each

| executive 1s then required to maintan this share ownership guideling (subject to

allowances for share price fluctuations and changes in base salary thereafter),
When assessing comphance with this guideline the Committee reviews both the
level of bensficial share ownership and vested but unexercised share incentive
awards on a post-tax basis. Although Mark Selway and Daniel Shock continue

to make progress lowards this guideline, and have a material interest in the
Company's shares, the Committee has determined that half of the annual honus
payable te Mark Selway and Daniel Shook as outlined on page 73 will be deliverad
in the form of deferred bonus share awards which must be held for a penod of at
least three years and until the share ownership guideline has been met. Further,
the Committee has determined that halt ¢t the performance share awards made 1o
Mark Selway and Damiel Shock in March 2016 and due to vest in March 2019 must
also be retained until such time as the share ownership requirement 1s met. At the
end of the year Roy Twite significantly exceeded the share ownership guideline.



Share interests granted to executive directors during 2018 (audited)
Grants made under the lIP The following performance share award grants were approved and made

Performance share award grants under the IIP were made on 12 March 2018 n in 2018.
the form of mil-cost ophons. Awards are due to vest on 12 March 2021, subject

. } IIF shares Value on date Award as a
lo performance in three core areas aligned to our longer-term strategic priorties awarded of award' percentage of
ROCE (25%}, relative TSR {25%j) and Group adjusted profit before lax (50%). (£000) salary
The performance targets and vesting scale that appty to the 2018 (P awards Mark Selway 181,644 2055 250%
are as follows Roy Twite 83,971 850 200%

| Daniel Shook 58,205 658 150°%
ROCE Relative TSR Group Levei of
adjusted vesting ' The three day average mid-market price on the date of award was 1,131 33 pence

profit before

tax growth' ! The IIP 15 also used to grant deferred bonus awards exercisable after
Threshold 40% Median 25% 25% | three yaars to satisfy bonuses delivered in the form of shares. Details of
Maximum 50%  Upper quartle 75% 100% these additional [P awards made in 2018 are shoewn in the table on page
Weighting D58, 55% 5002 -, 77 under the ‘without performance conditions' column: No performance

conditions apply to these awards
' Annuahsed Compound Annual Growth Rate over 3 years i
|

Further details of the above performance targets can be found in the awards
vesting under the IIP section on page 74 1

For share awards granted :n 2018 the TSR group ncluded 17 companies to ensure complete aignment with our peers and comparison to companies with
similar products, customers and global spread. The 2018 peer group includes the following companies and these have been adjusted to take into account
merger and acguisiion actraty during the parformance period in Iing with the Committee's guidelines

TSR comparator group companies

1 ArTAC 7 Ingersoll-Rand 13 SMC

2 Belmo 8T 14 Smiths Group
3. Curtiss-Wnght 9 Morgan Advanced Materiala 15. Spectris

4. Eaton 10 Parker-Hanrufin 16. SPX

5 Emerscn Electnic 11 Rockwel Automation 17 Waer

6 Flowserve 12 Rotork

GKN has been remaved from the TSR comparator group faliowing its acquisition by Melrose Industries PLC in May 2018

All-employee share plans
Executive directors are eligible to paricipate in the all-employse share plans on the same terms as other eligible employees at IMI. in 2018, Mark Selway,
Roy Twite and Daniel Shook received free share awards under the Employee Share Ownership Plan,

All Employee Share Ownership Plan SAYE
Nurnber of shares Value of free Numper of options Value of SAYE Total value under the
awarded share award awarded options Dividends all-employee share
{£000) (E000) (£000) plans {£000)
2018 336 4 - - - 4
Mark Selway .
2017 278 4 813 1 - 5
2018 336 4 - - - 4
Roy Twite
2017 278 4 - - - 4
2018 304 3 - - - a
Daniel Shook
2017 235 3 - - - 3
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Payments to past directors {audited)
Its the Committee's intention 1o disclose any payments to past directors, including the vesting of share-based awards post departure on a basis consistent
with the continuing executive directors. There were no payments to past directors during the year

Chairman’s and non-executive directors’ single figure table (audited)
The following table summanises the total fees and benefits paid to the Chairman and non-axecutive directors in respect of the financial years ending
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,

Director 2018 (£000) 2017 (£000}

Base fees Additional Taxable Total Base fees Addiional Taxable Total

fees benefits” feas benefits”

Lord Smith of Kelvin 320 - 5 325 312 - 5 37
Carl-Peter Forster* 64 11 8 83 62 1 3 66
Birgt Nergaard® 64 1B 8 88 B2 1 B 7
Robert Stack’ - - - - 62 26 3 N
Ross Mclnnes? - - - - 47 iz 5 64
Isobel Sharp? 64 16 5 85 62 4 2 68
Thomas Thune Andersen® 32 - 5 37 - - - -
Katie Jackson® 32 - 1 33 - - - -

' Incluides fees for bewng Chaw of the Remuneration Committee and Senior independent Drector untl 7 Deceniber 2017
* Inclutles fee for beng Charr of the Audil Commuittes
*Resigned as Director effective 30 September 2017
? Includes fee for Senior Independent Director effective from 11 December 2017,
Includes fee for heng Char of the Remuneration Commitlee effective from 11 December 2017,
* Pro-rata fee from date of appointment on 1 July 2018,
" Taxable benehts includes travel and hotel expenses plus tax costs associated with Board meebings held at IMIHD
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Directors’ shareholdings and share interests {audited} 2
The fofiowing table summarises the share interests of any director who served during the year as at 31 Decarmber 2018 or at the date of leaving the Board. §
Curing the perod 31 December 2018 to 28 February 2019 there were n¢ changes in the interests of any current director from those shown save for E
purchases within the IMI All Employee Share Ownership Plan on 8 January 2019 of 13 shares each on behalf of Mark Selway, Roy Twite and Daniel Shook at
965.00 pence per share and 12 February 2019 of 13 shares on hehalf of each of Mark Selway, Roy Twite and Daniet Shook at 963 50 pence per share
Director Total Beneficial Scheme interests
interests interests Nil-cost options All-employee - .
With performance conditions Without performance conditions share plans %
Unvested® Vested but Unvested Vested but %
unexercised unexercised b
Mark Selway 784,787 9,900 593,573 16,271 139,581 24,334 2,128 §
Roy Twite 405,316 123,107 274,514 - - - 7,695
Danief Shook 241 Gz24 7,807 187,295 - 45,424 - 1.208
Lord Smith of Kelvin 14,300 14,300 - - - - -
Carl-Peter Forster 2.625 2.625 - - - - -
Birgit Nergaard 2625 2.625 - - - - -
tsobel Sharp 3,000 3,000 - - - - -
Thomas Thune Andersen 28625 2625 - - - . -
Katie Jackson 2.618 2,618 - - - - -

" Vesting dates of share awards are shown in Section 4,71 en page 130
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Relative importance of spend on pay

The following information is intended to provide additional context regarding
the total remuneration for executive directors.

2018 2017 Change
{£m) (£rm)
Dividends 1079 1056 2%
Total employment costs for Group 615.8 578.7 6%

{see Section 2.1.3.1 on page 97)

In 2018, the total dividend for the year of 40 6 pence represented an increase
of 3% over last year's 33.4 pence

Relative percentage change in remuneration for
Chief Executive

The Committee actively considers any increases in base pay for the Chief
Executive relative 10 the broader IM! employee population. Benefits and bonus
payments are not typically comparable given they are driven by a bread
range of factors, such as geographical persuasion, locat practices, eligiplity,
individual circumstances and role.

Chuef Executive Employeas’
Base salary 2.6% 3%
Benefits 6% 4%
Annual honus -19% -24%

' All UK head office employees This comparison excludes our international workforce which
we believe would not provide a true companson given differing local market factors

|
|
|

The following table summarises the total remuneration for the Chief Executive over t
a percentage of maximum

Annual Report and Accounts 201§

Historical performance and remuneration
In addition to considering executive remuneration in the context of internal
compansons, the Committee reviews histoncal outcomes under the vanable
pay plans.

The graph below compares IM!'s total shareholder return (TSR) 1o the
FTSE100 over the last ten years. We compare performance to the FTSE100
as IMt has been included in the index in the past and 1t 15 a position where IMI
aspires to be TSR measures the returns that a company has provided for s
sharenolders, reflecting share price movements and assuming reinvestment
of dvidends (source DataStream). with data averaged over the final 30 days
of sach financial year As the graph below illustrates, IMI's absolute and
refztive TSR performance has been strong over the jast ten years.

Value of a hypothetical £100 investment
LB

L1000
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1200

Paleh]

<A

2712

01 Pt

BIM mFTSE100 RF SE2R0

Wz ennr

he last ten years, and the outcomes of short and long-term incentive plans as

Financial year-ended 31 December 2009 2010 20117 2012 203 20142 2015? 20162 20172 20182
Total remuneration {(single figure, £000) 2,647 4,439 12,289 7,954 6,688 1,567 1,667 1,801 2,773 3,047
Annual variable pay {% of maximurm) 9% 95% 85 47% 52% 36% 40% S50% 5% 75%
Long-term variable pay (% of maximum) 64% 97% a5, 100% 100% - - - - -
- Share Matching Plan

Long-term variable pay {% of maximum} A45% 100% 100% 100% B82.6% - - 3.5% - -
- Performance Share Plan

Long-term variable pay (% of maximum) - - - - - - - - 6 55% 29 2%

- IMI Incentive Plan

* Represents remuneration for Martin Lamb who was Chief Executive from before 2009 until 31 December 2013,

* Represents remungration for Mark Sehway whoe was appeinted Chuef Executive on 1 January 2014,



Application of the Policy in 2019

Executive director fixed pay

Mark Selway will retire from the Board effective 31 July 2019 and will not
receive a base salary increase for 2019, Mark will receve a payment in

ligu of notice, representing two months' basic salary. Roy Twite 1s appointed
Chief Executive from the conclusion of the 2019 Annual General Meeting
from which date tus salary will in¢rease to £720,000

The base salary for the Finance Director was increased by 2 2% consistent
with the average increase for 2019 awarded to employees.

To align with the pension contributions of the majority of the global
workforce, the pension opportunity for Roy Twite wili be reduced from the
current level of 35% of salary to 11% from the date of his appointment
as Chief Executve.

Incentive pay

Annual bonus
In accordance with the Policy, the annuat bonus plan will be operated
as follows in 2019

» As in 2018, the 2019 maximum bonus opportunity 1s set at 200% of
salary for Mark Setway and will be pro-rated for time served and paid
wholly in cash

» Roy Twite will be eligible for a maximum bonus opportunty of 200%
as Chief Executive and pro-rated in respect of 2018, The maximum
bonus opportunity for Daniel Shook 1s 126%

» Target bonus 1s set at 50% of maximum bonus opportunity.

» As in 2018, the annual bonus for Mark Selway and Daniel Shook wilk
be subject to performance in Group adjusted profit before tax {40%},
crganic revenue {20%), cash conversion {20%) and strategic and personal
ohjectives (20%j. Health and safety will serve as an underpin to ensure
bonuses are onky paid out when mimmum standards are achieved

» A5 1n 2018, the annual bonus for the Chief Executive (both outgoing
and incoming) and Finance Director will be subject to performance in
Group adjusted profit before tax (35%), IMI Critical Engineering operating
profit (15%). IMI Critical Engingering organic revenug {15%}. IMI Critical
Engineering cash conversion (15%}) and strategic and personal
ohjectives (20%).

» The Committee has determined thal the targets associated with the
performance measures will be disclesed retrogpectively on the same
hasis and to the same extent as for 2018 targets {see annual bonus
metrics table on page 72)

79

Performance share awards under the [IP
In accordance with the new remuneration pelicy, the IP wili be operaled
as follows in 2018,

» No award to be made te Mark Selway in 2019

» As Chief Exgcutive, Roy Twite will be edigible for a maximum cpportunity
of 250% of salary. The maximum opportunity for Daniel Shook wil be
set at 150%

» Awards wili vest subject to performance in three core areas aligned to
our longer-term strategic priorities’ ROCE (25%), relatve TSR (25%)
and Group adjusted profit before tax growth (50%)

» Awards will be subject 1o a two year post-vesting holding period, extending
the total time honizon to five years As per the Policy vested awards which
are subject to a holding period will not normally be forferted on termination
and the holding penod will continue to apply to such awards (although
the Committee may release awards sarly from the holding pened in
appropriate cases)

» The performance targets that will appiy to the 2019 IIP awards are as follows

ROCE Relative Groug Level of
TSR adjusted vesting
profit before
tax growtty'
Threshold 40% Median 25% 25%
Maximum 50% Upper 7.5% 100%
quartle
Weighting 25% 26% 50%

' Annualised Compound Annugl Growth Rate over 3 years

Service contracts
The unexpired terms of the non-executive directars’ service contracts can
be reviewed in the Board's Corporate Governance Repert on page 95.

Fees for the Chairman and non-executive directors

The Chairman ang non-executive cirectors’ remuneration increased by

\ 2 2%, with effect from 1 January 2019 This 110 Ine with the executive
directors and compares with an 3.0% increase across the wider workferce.

. Birgit Nergaard
Charr of the Remuneration Committee
for and on behalf of the Board

28 February 2019

uonanpouu|

mainay oibarens

Q
&
=
°
<3
£
@
=
@
[n]
o
=
@
£
3
w
3
o
)

SIUBWIRELS [EIDUBLIL



Mt ple ) 7 Annual Report and Accounts 2018

IXED Find oo Loargoicieviogg

SERTLRL

thilsig. i
g eted co

fle Bod prerperim




81

Financial
Statements

(J

82

Finance Director’s introduction

84

Primary statements

93

Results for the year

104

Operating assets

139

Directors’ report

162

Five year summary

V\ Enginecering
GREAT the
Ml Way

ucnoaNpodLy !

malrey dibelens ‘

BaUBLIBA0S B1RI0tIo |

o
5
H]
>3
o
B
@0
14
&
8
)
3
]
E
ES
I




Financial Statements
Finance Director’s Introduction

Annual Report and Accounis 2018

Introduction from Daniel Shook

Dear Shareholder, ‘

Welcome 1o the financial staterments section of our Annual Report.

My financial review commentary 1s set out in this section alongside the prmary statements. These financial statements are
presented with the primary statements first, followed by five sections: 'Basis of preparation’, 'Results for the year’, ‘Operating
assets and liabilties', ‘Capital structure and financing costs’ and 'Other notes'.

Despite mixed market conditions, IMI delivered solid results for the year, with revenue, profits and operatng cash flow all
growing in 2018,

The company has further mitigated the nsks associated with the defined bensfit pension schemes through the buy-out of
£409m of habilties durng the year. IMI continues to improve its overall control environment and risk management procedures
in 2018 through the implementation of a co-sourcing model for internal audits between Group Assurance and the divisions.

in 2018 IMI compieted the acquisition of Bimba Manufactunng Company, which is contributing in hne with expectations.

Daniel Shook
Finance Director

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information required by statute, accounting standards or the Listing Ruies
to explain a particular feature of the financial statements. The notes that follow will also provide explanations and additional
disclosure to assist readers’ understanding and interpretation of the Annual Report and the financial statements.
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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2018 i 2017
Adjusting I Agjusting
Adusted iterns Statutory Adjusted nems Statutory
. Notes £m £m Em | £m £m £m
Revenue 21 1,907 1,907 1751 - o
Seamendal o rateg prom £ 266.3 266.3 ! 2109 2449
Roever-al of net econcimie hedge contract lsses 'ga 2 1.9 1.9 | 0 g g,
Restructine g coste, v {0.8) (12.4} (13.2) | T 134 G 136 3
Gialty of b tal penn ot sehle LY 6.8 6.8 | 1 d 10y
A anired Ctangible cmuorhisat onoand Gthoe acopastion iteme 295 (28.8) (23.8); 119 5) 1135
Gt Moo sY on dispos Al ot subsichane., ERAC 0.6 0.6 iz 3 [
Gan o wopes sl of propserties, Rt 3.2 3.2 -
Imparrent ios & - 20" {2.0} {2.0) - -
b rec t laxes ansng On reonganitbation ) (3~?) 7!‘?;2) ,
Operating profit 265.5 (33.9) 2316 aciond o By g T
Sinan al | ome 13 5.8 16.1 219 | 55 12 1h G
Fitnatic 1al €xpeise 13 {18.7) (20.5} (39.2}! 116 8 [ 295
INE A el exe e tehatnie o dofincd Do it pensieen s emes Q053 (1.4) 1.4} 8 o
Net el v lal ex311 ¢ {14.3) (4.4) (18,7} 151 33 AR
Profit befare tax 251.2 (38.3} 2129 2241 [l ]
Taxation 215 (52.8) 9.3 (43.5), (171 110 1356
- - - 1
Profit from continuing operations after tax 198.4 {28.0} 165.4 1 170 [ AE] ‘453
Foobl or dea ontmonec: opsr ot e o ler ax P - - J [I38] 169
Total profit for the year 188.4 {29.0) 168.4 | 177D 18 ozl
T
Attributabie ta. !
Dwne of e parent 198.4 169,4 ' .64 G2
MNun=cCntrolling Hteros's ) 01 AR
Profit for the year 198.4 169.4 1T oL
Earnings per share L '
Baie - frorn oot tor e year 62.5p | 59 8p
Diuted - romn proft for the yed 62.4p | 539 Th
Ba:c - fiom continuing operations 625p | 03 6p
|
Dluied - fiom contr oing operation- 82.4p | 350
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Finance Director’s commentary on
the consolidated income statement

Results summary
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comprehensive income

2018 217
£m £m ! £m £
- —_— - —— - —_— e — . -—
Profit for the year 169.4 ey
ltems that may be reclassified to profit and loss
Charige ncan vahle of effer tue nat ncestment ~edgue -leneat s 19 3
Exchar ge diffieran ces en iranalabion of -oreign opo atens 7 el of hedas settler e t- and funding revaliaadg - (4,5} RN
Faw s e gam loss o asail=ble far - ale finan ol g e 0.2 LI
Relatod tax ofect or #oa s thiat o su seouently, be reclsssded to prott and ke (013) - R
27 B
Items that will not subsequently be reclassified to profit and loss
Ro-meduuromen: gan o ) o detined benent piarne, 116 103
Fan value foss anequry msiraments pat held for rad - g ($.8)
Relatod taxal on efiect {3.5) 17
EHer s ot taxation <ate chasge on previows byoeecogre cd i1, - 10 5
.7} [ATa
Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of taxation 4.4 193
Total comprehensive mecome for the year, net of taxation . 165._(_) G
Attnibutable to
Oamee s of the peeent 165.0 BRV:]
Nut-e o ntrede g o deor ' [l
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of taxation 165.0 429

Finance Director’s commentary on the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity

Movements in shareholders’ equity

Shurehalders equly of the end of 2018 was S666IN 2017 C60710 Movel ety

0 sharehclder < equaty can be splt nto Bree calegones

= the prait ior the yeas aimnutable to the eouty shereholdes s of ©168m (2017
£162m) This i disclased 1the commentary 1o the ncome slatement

= Ot Camtelensme 17 0me rovemernts 1 he year decreased shateholdars
ey by S0 2017 219 dik tease These are discussed below

= mevermnnts taken dired iy 1o cauty 1 1he yean reduced sharchaldar " oguity
Ly §106m 12017 T79m) Thewe are discussed overlost

Other comprehensive income

WHhoH o Group makes Lneallacd gate o lotsns Gy d sl 4 babibibes
natedd of GOng recerded 1 the meome s tatoment ey dre ofedie d ar
chatged to reserves and recorded m e slalermient ol conpreliensive ecome
Fraccord mice st e wnendimaent 1o A8 1 Hece e are allog o.ed bielween
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Any nelnwvesinient hedge de v dives, wech Bove not been selllad by the
vear-Cod are marke (o markel o the balanc e sheet at the yoar-e o ol the
moverhenls wre e orded in the hedgng reserve The movemen: s also mc hcded
i other coripnet ersve ncome dr din 2018, amounted to a gan of Y2m 2017
T3m nuuding the relaled Laxatior etfect

Toe Growp's foreig denomirated net assets ae thanskaied 1o stenling using
oxchange rates prevaling at the year-cod To the extent "hat these diter iom the
rates Jsed af the previous year-end 10 T slaie net assets at tat date a . hom
he average exchange rate used 1o traslate foreign genommated nen e dueng
they year a Aifcend ¢ onesenves Anses, wi ich s ind luded n o er congrehenste
neome, alondg wath the settlement of net iInvestment Hedge der vatrees and
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exnosure These foms including e related taxaton offect amounted to A
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Foonn ot sbeare waps al O b e
i orstran poed 1l 11,5 05
Shpare-tar A prace D ot ot o fa R
Shieer Ll et § L

eiaples vrare @ e bl . [ICry 12 7
Tt ot e T LS st by
Lar to TP dees S ) K AR 8Oy
Loetapaingt rrog b MO0 SRS Al v Wi NI
Aoat B Jetambe 2017 51k 127 Tl 10 20 - LT - SN
Changes in equity in 2018
Profit for the year 1R9.4 169.4 169.4
Other comprehensive income/{expense) i ) 1.8 4.5 1.7) {4.4) {4.4)
Total comprehensive Income/(expense) 1.8 4.5} 167.7 165.0 - 165.0
lssue of share capital - 0.6 06 0.6
Dividends paid (107.9) (107.9) (107.9)
Share-based payments (net of tax} 7.0 7.0 7.0
Shares acquired for

employee share scheme trust (5.9) {5.9) i {5.9)
As at 31 December 2018 ) s1.8 | 133 174.4 28 253 368.6 £66.2 - 6662

Covadop.ton o IFRS 9 an elpction ¢ as miade to desigrate o exler alirveuting nt
Bieled o nat for rackieg b hor v ©F S 1m0 TR e valie G the e
Dr £ 588 by e 12007 Lo et ber 200 e dlingg i
ol g CU0m g re og sed e comprehensee 1osie

1 has

11 Pedlt | 142070

Items recognised directly in equity
W et e rapae mont
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proo e e pad dors g thee e Lol S TR fealad wkens s D Tonaner = 5T
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Sechors 4 W for rogee e foams an

e el o e ployeds reprcse ting

Derecagmtion of minority interest

Ot sy 01T e feome o e covediten oA el Henen o the L2001
Cutenedhancd Per Lor o Pk detege s cor ¢ 07 1 2re e
fhe e s s e o Thes e ullon 1 e oothich Limaredd P oeogesmigs s
I 0 secdrar canolinon e b gan - vgheed an e TRy
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Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 December 2018

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

2018 ) 01y

. _ L . Notes £m m
Assets }
Iangiie ausets 32 606.7 | 5000
Propcte plnt and equginend ER¢] 284.4 " 23l
Enplo. o nonafit anssts 44 27.8 ‘ 5o
Deforren Lax aosefs 247 17.0 200
Chcr recelvatsles 3.2 1o
Total non-current assets 939.1 102
Irientones S 2725 ESERIN
Tiade o other rocel, able a1z 450.3 e
Cther current i jal asset 4. 1.0 4
Cunrerd tax 4.0 83
lnvestmoents, a4 3.7 150
Coastrand ¢ 3 b ecpagalo s 41 132.2 ; RIaNe
Total current assets 8637 T9ig
Total assets 1.802.8 G051
Liabilitics
Banh aeptdraft 41 {82.6} 150
Interes t-heramy koans and bottoae ng- 12 {78.8) 13 H
Prov ns 36 (12.5) 1A
Sunent s (62.5) ter] (T
Tiauds ane other payabiles s 13 (390.9)‘ 1165
Other current i al §abilities 47 {4 0) 136
Total current habikties {631.3) (RN R
nteres t-hew nig loans and b orroy ineg- [ {375.3) [ERLtY
Emploves | erefit oblgahon- a0 {80.1) 136
Pros st b (14.6) 161
Deforreed ~ax habilitios 247 (‘29.5)5 277
Other peayables KIS {6.5)] oo
Taotal non-current habihities (505.3)} ShY 3
Total habilities L1364 (097 ~
Net assets olr 4
Equity
Shrare < apsital A1 81.8 818
Stdre premim 13.3 127
Other reserves 202.5 | 2062
Retained caming: 3686 07
Equity atinbutable to owners of the parent 666.2 607 4
Total equity 666.2 | GOT 4

Approvedt by the Boarel of Directots on 28 February 2019 and signed on ils nehall by

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chiean mian
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Finance Director’'s commentary on
the consolidated balance sheet

Net debt

M ek st e yea-en d s Do e oe i 108 26arn gl the ered of the
Dreviote yed, mlieoieg the g nuaition o Bt cn g ihe gen Thenel debt
1 00T 1% w60 Of A od b bttt o T EI3Z 201 T8y A bank overcra o of
LA3VENT RETm ant inter hearmg an and borrow nos o s g

A SN

The gy o chad et e bt EBMTDA sto s 1S 0017 0 e b o,
orcottinang  dusted EBIT2A A e ot 2 bs b anmeAs- fomadlod v idom
-

T VG i g aeighibted et age s g y 0t Lo 20 R

oneothe e, e Pacdn g Bk overdeatt, to aflzd CEEmMZ 01T Patime Tetal
cov it Loae loan fac il e s ks 2o 0 G apsal e e g b e

SN0 T Rl ol abae D Erd 25T 0 b st e

intangible assets
Toe e ol @ Gro g s nta g
ZeteaZll Tolsling Tras o gt s e fe e _agpanon b gl |-

e Bonbva 0 postor anorothie e or s et gl s ety

Zereniber

et o reds o PheTrat 5t

A0t fell
SV

V3 md Tt ST e et oF

T T pa 2l

Ao b e et e e e thie g
RPN e B LU T T OO G B

LR IS DR b

LA s T LA TS IS TR TN I TN S5 B o

Property, plant and equipment {'PPE’)

Trene b ok ot ot bl Gronps PR G 5T D e L 1e s Poid
[Nl RS
S el el arurd da e D e e e U dano ane s
Five tactolns no=vee o T Erom oonr o Lok oy s el s tang nle csse -

e Coaont sl ezanc 0 o EEE g nderite B 20T Ve

e e T R R TR ROt R

[ B S T TR
tres ctle deprecnsi o an oo dto chatge st atcr e ntuea bl

Gt ot L e AL S5 T T

Working capital
The Groon s tacde vd o ores cc bles e ced oy CeZmomana the oo
P fore grvese oo vt s 10 Bade g ent . o T

RS O N A SR (RS [ AT C L U B (PR

The Grong S =it rcrasssd bd st g the vear e to bany
rnee e e ol e offset by o rease ol the Bunt oo aator

Thie Groups tade Al o or pryy Blos decrea cd by T87oue o fureap
exé hange o e ent of STur and g rease ofF T T follor ng e Bimiba
W co Oft et by adng tioverente o £47m

Thevwerah tigy e aetab e e covne ot dirna e et ane g asen T o
detaib et natiee T pporee thee s one Gieatea o B fley stalormen

Taxation

The e untent fux gnnet docreasod o S 017 Camoas the Groap confinaed
trorogonor tax ciedrars, 1 PUte Thecwre st o bamlyne ros od clgbtly 1o
PO 01T TG

Deterretd Las du -0t (10 redngd 1y T “1amg 2007 027 1] dolerre s
tan hatohiliess e s e by C2 cunneg e et D0 2017 Pl The
arfie-r o wsnents nel ot the elfer ol orogs ex lange oo etnents colate
i thie aefened lax e aguee § reepecs of pe con 100 he eflecls of the
Jretlabon of gl g set g the nihsat o f Uik ko os Bong anabes

o the edorred Loy s end e e 1o s Secion 24

Pensions

The Graup . b7 2017 et ed beooht allarme
S1 Decanbor 2018 The Gronie e chises 3 ore £ fue ding and noe-tmar
Pk mng ren e defned bonc it arres gomente aeg stonhs 1oro bne e
proey arane of dosirg ovsr eas defr cd hanett plans where posble o d
preacing @1 the pla o apmiginate aetrecd orenn WU et (0 ot

PreAdstc ot at

The ey asferr o o=t e el obbg oo o) Decreng £1 2007 das

T Lt (el

PHZ AT T CTmer vans Thee st e s Srled o curpdus o FEY28m s al
A1 D 2imber 209 07T 520 s e wd e sttubon T 210 B85

of the sl e wer et hdalhes and & 200 Q27 ot ine tol ) caeting s
berell o=t Thorred ey ol pdes e 201  pon ol srose from
FRLNOET Al a0t s Tt Be— sl ton o O detal

Thedeto tir e o eoeal T d . ab ot Dueeiner 20 18 sas calm (2077
FEO defic B Dotads Ghmene o ents ract g al atsore cbuns are a6 @90
et 16

Foreign exchange and interest rate risk
Frorrmer mesre amone b 2 0 B s Men e s T xpsarng

Pt s s Be o Jonth o al st can s gt 11 The et

ene o ncdl

rputtall ST L G e T e T e ey e ool g L 3 B
ar et erele el g rate st xcber or A b alnice sheet e
As al 31 December
2018 1

Furey 1.11
US Dol 1.28

Return on capital employed
Ot s retrm ohocas L e ployed RO ZE g s on i gy o er-Anons,
fon 1T R Copetini o T2 AT 0 21T T e srease (e g reflec -

st to ko s ahue

the Grosp's Al Ve neleet sl e 00 e

cor bt oo n e b th g e

Dvidend

Tre Seard b recominenddd il aoderd neespert ol 2218 0 U6 e
20T 25 2p el e an o eas= ol s ove the 2017 feal wader d T
Masss Pie et undent o D018 ¢t A0 e 2017 50 I The cost of the Treal
chacter (s g ted Lo e O T0m iz T Foen leaor gto Aol S dadend cot
o TIOm O 1T 01 Tk rewpecl 0 ) e enoed 30 Decombier 2018

D o] Lot baseco 70 acl) smed aarneras 100 e contimam.g Buanasues
TEUmes 2017 % T hnres A dotadle oo e Sompaty @it < taten.end -
cropage 153 alb ot the et sned eariogs at both 31 Decerber 20085 <l

31 Tecember 20017 are confuetad to be dh-thh Ltabie recen e

Weoilst the Group does ol Diene e formal cedader dpolcy or paoutraon e
Gt s T 3 D cante e sath progres oac die jdencs b b typie ally were se
At cteacky rate for bothe Lo tenreand eed deeddenes payments L don

A that ke deeakend <heald, theough the eycle e coverad by o leant 1o
trmes adiu~ted earrings Innalang 1 dwicdec roc ommendatons, e Board
Coosiders b loes on canb and debt cdben the Growp duietasted operatin g
and Capial cosly o e men onts aned the vatlalxlty of dhstabitalsle roerer s
T Sesarch also mon for- he G aps cadorn d coner based o dpriced
Pertiniggs for the conrr e o shess Borpicre ol geter to Sechia 15

Share price and shareholder return
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 | 2047
£m | £m

Cash flows from operating activities

Oparatrg rroft for the yo o frons conunuineg aperaliors 231.6 ap
Opraaty g proft on thes yoo s friorn thseortr wed oo shion: - 22
Acpustiments for 1

Depner iabie oo ad amorty alvm 79.7 ) BB

Inpastmont of Sopeaty plant andd equpmet ana S reble ao 32 33

WGooad e Lo = 00 ghanes sl 0 sobsid oy es (0.6): 17

Ol e Lot e 3.7

G o spe kil peteaen Cuends (6.8) e
Profit Lass on sdbe of etoperty ¢ lant and equipn @t (3.0) RS
Ecquay ot redes-laase o | aamend o e 82! Hu
Dorre qwe N rrentones 55 3¢
nurectae w1 drepcde arn s othen &0 e aulkes (8.4 120 5
iDecre - e e n taae anv e pasabl (47.3)1 55
Dt teane Hpiraesnr a7 o etiployoe bienett (7.6} (e fn
Cash generated from cperations 268.2 o572
INEOIME Tands pak: (41 .1)1; L 8
Cash generated from operahions after tax 2171 2171
Actitonal pension - eme o cing Q1 0.1)‘ (RIe)
Net cash from operating achivities -207_,0_{ 2111
Cash flows from investing activitres ‘
Inferest v eperd 5.8 55
Prococd - ton s abl ot prooetty plae toand Coaomanent 12.8 [EN]
Net  ale ot mwvestmenty 0.1 | [N ]
Settlomen of ran a1 na dene ative < ( .S)I 111G,
Sctlenunt ot catency denreate cs beaoging Laka co s ect 17.1). (183
Avrainiors ¢ s obaiehanes et oo cash {137.6},
Acauestior of prap orty plaot anc couiprmen b aeed nee - g aed inbagible (58.4)! (el R3
Net cash from investing activities 7 f'lisiﬁ.'n_'z; W2z,
Cash flows from financing activities !
Irderesst prand ' ﬁ 87ﬂ IR RN
Payment o nor-controling i derest ! 22
Shiares actur e or ek S sehiermea st (5.9}, [
Proceeds liein the 1ssue of <hare capitat for emiploy e shdre schemes 0.6 8253
Net crascionsmArepaynant, at borraws rigs 100.9 | AR
Dividdencs paid to squity shareholders and none corbolling nerest (107.9)! 105 5;
Net cash fiom financing activities 71:'31.’6}| (1317
Net 1 crecasesdecicasel in cach and ash ecavalent: (1 9.7)!‘ 02
Cash and cash equvalente ot the st a1 of the year 67.8 I 875
Eftect of 2xc hangerate fluctuations on cash helu 1.7 0w
Cash and cash eguivalents al the end of the year* T 496 676

PNt of ban'c overdiafis of PBZ.8m 2017 P31 Dmy
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Finance Director’s commentary on
the consolidated statement of cash flows

2018 | 2050
Mavement in net dett om | oin
Adyusted EBITDA” fré% continuing eperations 320.1 | 287.5
Workioug cap tal nee oreenle 150 3}1 L
Caprtal dand develsprent expead ture 158.4} B 8.
Fronmean s v orr ploy oo b ncft e e 10 23, A
O 7 g_‘ s
Adjusted cperating cash flow** 2215 217.9
Adastireg o 8 9} e
Op-eratlng cash flow 21 2.6 188.7
IS 129} T
R g4y Ha
Tax et 41,1y 39 A
Cash generation 140.2 115.4
AT L L B O I PR = P N FIINS 10,1} 133
Frec cash flow before corporate activily 130.1 ‘ 1121
e Sl =, wnshiel e e -
n rl—’( wrllt li rl‘lt = :nf‘r e ! (o7 9 R
RTINS T TR T (122 6 -
PRI S S 10 R U TP1LER M I - e
MISUp b evre 5 3 ot
Net cash flow {excluding debt movements) ’ (1 0_5_7) 2.3
T g et e [PES 2) AR
Nt e b Gl {150y, -
SRR R Ee e et nslalion 18 6}‘ Ll
Closing net debt  (404.5) (265.2)

Tt d et ather s T v hesae ptere T i b e

wprs g ©A% e g amartication 1 B

onment
oA et e s 18T o e dasied tor the mos emer T in the ios e neeg
ey a8 Oy
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Aclivrsted perat g cash i s e thes Cuemgeneraced For the enetdticn
o e Llatereant of ca ol ws lecs 7 ash spent o gumn proper y,
plo A ecpane o0 non smegearcel mtangihile assete s e st il
aah ecened froe e cae ol prenerly, plant and e ap neni - b e e
vy estinent exchiomg the castorep e ol adpe i e - T o ane

o refloe te the spcraling ea b lowes o th e Groups

CHh mipnal OF o STING e,

Reconcdiation of Adjusted EBITDA to movement in net debt

The Grog. & consel semeed ctatemnnt of ca o s (boa on he oppos e
phatit, v hcE oo oncAdrs e opor G g ot for tae sea to she chiatege oo
co thoneraratte e balew e of eot coego e o iinane sbeenoring g apce o

Floaeoet b anse e Srotp s ce bl finenomg al-un cload e e e neres!
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Heab et HGh s 1 1he Ve ar nnnet seol bas Des g deo Accoo dimogh

et v Bl betaer nadpste d EEITDA ard el dend s haen 1

Tha tatde o

viper e botbee o b presncies Conaneni,

Operating cash flow
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Section 1 - basis of preparation

1.1
Introduction

M pl o Gompany 1 a Compate doneiled o the Wnited <mggdom The
Consohclated tirang el Statements of the Gon pany compr o e Son natty ardd
it sk chanes loget o rotermed 1o as the Grone o The Garepans faamoial
steceniens present inferristion ang ut tha ¢ ompsans & ccsepanae o Ty ana
abosd the Gracp The cans lida e tha Cal sdarerinrts s e beas preparé o
accondanc e sty iter st onad Faoveneial TRepeat q Standerdd < a5 ador tor by the
LU ard acphe abde Ly B RS Tre Soanpote beoe cles e o poopin et Parent
Conypraay | oane sl Statements oot e yoth FRS 101 and e e
presented o age s 12 10 100 The financ <D tatomente wore apr e

Fin tho Boarc of Drroe-or on 28 Febrne ¢ 20070

Alernative Pelf=tnanr o Medsares (A2 v are uscd o dese ieaimng wath the
IFwESGHE alal ot LCOmim, v and by 1ha Boarc and ne gentent 1o moaitor the
achng pevanmancs of the Gioap Ve cansidlo tal e prosen i of AP, alloes
for mapnonec nsight 1a U e taoing pedomnane e arthe: Groopy Vee gve revieveexd he
AFMe presentioo as  at of thz eante oo mprovernont of ous axtenal reposting
Al e on e thdl the cerm Adusten tooelthor alha adiostn gy terms o odegony he
reller s ihie tad ng pertonrand o of B e Group: The APRM L presaite o thie Annal
Repon ad Accowrs 1o 31 Decenthe 2018w der ed n Section 2 11

1.2
Basis of accounting

The Inanc el staterments ars prese o in Posnos Sterhng gl 1he
Company™s ungtiondl . unenoy) reunded to e oo uest b deecd thion el
wxeept reree s wdich e randert 1o e e whoke o Thsy are
preper o] ontre o mleneal ot anis exs el 1nal the b llov ng arsets aned
fgbs P hes ate: Slated at ther far valie danvative acans cid nstrumenits financ q
asbels Llansifiod 10 fan valie hreass pre e andd l6ss o 0 he wonprebensiee
wic o andd assets and labilities ogoned heoagh b e ess combin s ions
Non-c et s cets dndd kdaihhios neled i salee e Jatedd at e lowe of thar
catry g amounts and thed far values le s costs to el

The polcies deserbed 10 tas <eehon and in ne deemnany g e tans have
been appliea consistently *hrovghaut the Group for the purpees of these
consolidaled financal stalements except as mscussed helo Refer to

Sed bun 5 4 for the Group's significant acco inting policies

i} New or amended EU Endorsed Accounting Standards adopted
by the Group during 2018

Noled biokow are: the amended and new tediation af Finang st Repo: ung
Standdards which becamo effcaliae tur e Grougs ds ot | January 2018
vone ol which bas o matenal mpact orcthe Snane gl sbadoments

s [FRS 1 Firat Tune Aduption of inten teonad Finanowt Bepoding Standae s
 FRS 2 ‘Sirart Based Paymont’

¢ IAS 28 Ivesuments i Assoohades

* |AS A0 Ywestinent Property

v |FRIC 22 Foregn Curency Tansactions and Advance Conudaiation

The impet o 1he new Internationa Finanosd Reponing Standards effectre for
the Group as of 1 January 2018 15 set oud telow

e IFRS 9 Fmnancial isftanents” - an elecion was made 1o ecogme ¢ moveinent
i the o value of the reeshrents hisloncally held o amorised cost o olher
corpreherome peome AL e dode o adopbon 1 Januar, Y078 judament
weds appred o deterrnng hat the diference bBeteeen the histonic dl aowortic e
Comtard Hie lar value vaas rr i cedal The elfect o1 adopting the reman er
ol gy slandara s4as not materal and na further <ceountng policies ave
Been armended follovang the adastion of he shindard

~

IFRS 16 Ko cnwe from Conhacts with Castoimers - Wie standantd aas adostod
from “he date of 1itid apphe stion - 1 canaary 2018 The tve <tenmada] for revaniie
teeogoron but boon applied 1o e by - gimeant rioveeue seam ky cath OpeLY g

cogme toa kP are dentficd n Secton 2 71T The at Gannting pabe ey for ieverace

L0 OGN e Been pdalad e cornon 530 i aeder to cenlily ahen

cat e oieane 2 obligation hae been complered for cach resen e <reun
N miateriLl mipact oo e inee al slderne ds follo ing adoption o the
slandard has beatt steotmeod

i) Issued Accounting Standards which are not effective for the year
ended 31 December 2018

The IASE arvl PG have r<uec a umbe o ned a0 ounting slandaras and

amendn ents ¢ hoan effed tve d e after the date of "here inanc al - lemenes

Those wib ch Ll Teag w neglenal mpact onthe Groop dre et out pelo s

FRS 6 L oanon = i <Landard pru wdes o sngie [oanee o oun e g miegel,
requinn g lon cos torccog e € assetnard L bilie s o all leas o unle 1he
Origh el lease tere e 12 maontbe e e s oar the leceod e set basa o salae

The staean callbie acoptend fron 1 Janaar, 2078 O adognon, he Group adll apphy
tigs e o] ratrospeetve approach o the followng exernptions. sall be taken and
an a et the deal oo dennteg Deloey Ak et B recognsed o the Balane © sheot

SSh e o

1oos — I0anC s #TICH Pave ) nginalmineTiLe con norted
Jease s onod which e bess tha 12 months, aod

SLovy e S o — heanes o a2 lsased grset have g tet dvabee
e flesas thor 35 0t

Jradge ments vl e madde by management neelaton o the e snum
committed lea. ¢ paenod and e rermer tal borra o ng rate wsor by Cach
< braled ary f e ount i 0 4 prey e st ander b cake late e nghit o
LSt Lz st on atoupba

The Srotgs e updaied 1 FRS Tonnpea Lea e sanmnd oheadl g e nehd e the
Growgr Thesllal ative mmes ol e ned slatndard on b gl ~dal=imen s and
rehey et KPL, s al 51 Lo ember 2018 1 ootined in U et de belo s

2018
Financial 2018 impact  {IFRS 16}
Stater-ent item Lm £m £m
Income Criwal Enyneer .y 88 3 A 89.0
Statement P on Engneernn g 1637 06 153.8
Hydionc Eng meeting 5210 01 52.1
Corporate Costs 27 2 01 {27.1}
Segmental Operating Profit 266.3 1.6 267.8
Statutory net lnanoal expense 1871 21 {20.8)
Stalutory proft hefure tax 2129 06 212.3
Aducted EBITDA 32001 320 352.6
Balance Fronety Plant and Eouspment 2844 11372 397 6
sheet et de ot (1015 32 51T T
Staiement ash generated from PEB 2 320 2907
of cash operations
flows et cast o tnancng 131,00 132.5 63 5]
alAnfes
hel deciease N oash 197 - 119.7)
and cash equpaents
Key ratios Net uebt to EBITDA ralio 1 3% 00x 1.5x
Setur e on capital employed 12.8 & . 22

Fo lovarng the adoption of IFRS 16, ianagerent ~aweevieso it prachce of
making inten L property rechiarge- "o etjudize the mpact onent and aepracalion
at o drasion dand sic leva aed contheded tha De e harge wil no longor be recuired
o 2019 pnwards This will hove the elfrect of ioreasng dvsional profits (Gt al
Engrreer nyg - £1 0n Procsson engreerng - T o Hvdren o Engnesnngg - ©0 )
WRH G OIesROndl 0BG I Corpar e costu i T3 i
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Section 2 - results for the year

What you will find in this section

This section focuses on the results and performance of the Group. On the following pages you will find disclosures
explaining the Group’s results for the year, including segmental information, adjusting items, taxation and earnings per
share. You will also find a summary of the Group's alternative performance measures, including the definition of each

and the rationale for their use.

2.1
Segmental information and alternative
performance measures

Organic revenue grawth and operating profit are the two shor-term key
performance ndicators or measures that reflect the way the performance
of the Group is managed and montored by the Executve Committee

In this section the key constituents of these two KPI s, being the Group's
adjusted revenues and segmental operating profits, are analysed by
reference to the performance ana activities of the Group's segments

and therr cperating costs

2.1.1
Segimental inforniation

Seg itk ndonr atan s pres—oned e e Connotbudad o e ol taterree
e s Fhe ol g Srgnfn ot g

ror ¢ ach ol he S ape
FOMPIA' e e = 1 e 30U S T BT e e L e i g st uees
A CEREELE L e e G Mt b v presertacs i the of et opera g
GECION- I aRe D6 g w Exoul e Jormen itee e
edt it e oo s I ce el by A er sl D Erotid s aeras T Miam

s b on pas b

eathe L ahd Covrati -l canon Tor e s net 0o Coble 2o enlal
oo atar o math g ey e s are aggeeodted nto the Gro s tree
diveans a0 e tine or the peo ecs predne B peoe e e ared e s of

LN BT R T Y B A | NI U RS TR T (o (S S (WA T Lt e Rl WOt R ()

IMI Critical Engmeening

BAL ot al Encenesriny s s orld-loeering e et ob one oot s olhiens the

vroible afd encray and e ce e i e fo operade el cle 1 col by
arcimare el ewenlby Oo oot ocomrrol the 0 eod teaes | aees aned ot o
bt noenronmenle ro ans acag e L sthbstand teompe e ano rees e
osfremes eowell as rleesels abrac e or oo cal Toperatn s

IMI Precision Engineering

M Frocison Enginee i g spcs s Joas n tae e igr anc manatac e of moction
anvi 1 eont ol hinelegics where preaisicn speed an dorchabdiny, a o ossental
r b pron emse ey e they o oseed

IMI Hydronic Engineering

ML Hycdteate En spngsring teo A e g pronnder of chrol ges bt dete
apetatungl et et gy Cffioicnd vaatet Desed baatiig o o oolng g tens foe
e residectial v coamrecrd b oy sectors

Podorate o oo urcd broe o onnadba lec e g b ontnainey coht et ech

[ O A | R L (O P O L T S B S VR S EY I o T LY PO U RN IR
b st D ot b o e by argrn b pec Ter puelinal it
L Y R T R B Bt B LR SO A N Sl | S O N TP U (PN R N A
L N e T | T O O S SN IS NI TRY SR R (RTINS AT

P fn are b e e b corfoa ath e topeae s e 0 e o1

P cotdhar s BHIFRS 5 oo anba b onn b T e e 1
bty w i e g b e areee wee o ot et el
B ST ST T TS B I B LTI S IO A U GV S ST RTINS (LU N UNES U |

e oo [ I A AR R (P

Alternative Performance Measures {{APMs’)

T taviliben@ 2 0o e anghulies ew ot etfor m e e cotla Jte c alive
GO &7 6 ol £ b e Dzeto b aed watn The, At Repaot Thes=
AP cre e g, e e i o= Sotinelbe= B nionilor anndd nitiayy e
pedorr s ceof e B on e o encadie tha! decigion tahen alg vl s
g cermntetests Mo ements e usterd ievenn ar segmental operaing
P e g ar m G garie bz oes delinet sncbnlo s S thed petfenne o
Popwbcds dwd oL etetds v arage rate b
fearh APM o d ueelere 2 Lo 0 Fie

1o herecon Thied b e oo dler Batalitnn v ces e

Ionee dioalen by e oS har
e T ne bell o ads e der o

i Reconcdiation to
APM ! Defimtion statutory measure
Sec v on e

STy N

crtosfea e ooge  These measures are as reported to
rancage ment and do not reflect the
mipact of adi-ting tems described 11 paae H1
Sectinn 22

Ary Lt prohd
Pt r fax

PRV A PRI
[ILEIRNE BT |

A leroaeyy T S o

per sfhare '

AU cte et e Geer St w1
tax roto
Adacten BB DA This measure reflects adjusied 1 See cash i

camrentary o
Lrrdger 91

proft atter tax before interest, tax,
" depreciation and amorlisation

Thewe medsures are as reported (o Soe i oms
management and do not reflect the sratement Cnpage
mpact of adusting tems described o &3 and cegmertal
Section2 2 ety nele -

CGecten 1]
Ths measure removes the mpact of

Cadusting fen s acquisitions, disposals|
i and moverronts n exchange rates |

Acdietodd Gpset-Ating } Thus measure reflects cash gererated ! See Cash o

} from operations ds showrn in the CUNHTIENtATy (0

staterrent of ash flows less cash e G

spent acquinng property ptant and '

"equpment non-acqured intangible

assets and nvesiments plus cash

recaved fram the sale of property,

Cplart and equaiment and the sale

of irvestrments, extluding the ¢ aah

impsact of acdsting doms

A stan
cegniztitud
Gtz
o maryin

Qraani. grenth

b ity

.
i -
L ating S b
SR (PN

| Thewe megulres are sob-1o'als 0 the

: et ot diabion of adjosted EBITCA to

CNE Dot and dre presenied o asslst
tenzader 1 nuderatand the nisture
ol the: corent ear's casl e

st e, e
Froe o b s P
Lrefogre ¢ gy oy
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Section 2 - results for the year
(continued)

Tow et eing bas e dtuato tes b i resal s Tor e sean wnts eoonade 1o the ararall i1l s repaned mtle incomea statene

Revenue Operating profit Operating margin
2018 : 7017 2018 i »017 2mne ‘ 2017
fm | m ffm ! £m % ! %
Continuing operations 1
M Zomical Engineering 682 348 88.3 844 12.9% ‘ 30
M Frecscn Engnesa g a18 791 153.2 13340 16.7% 6w
ML = ycdron o Engir oeting 309 312 52.0 407 16.8% 59 .
Corporate cozts (27.2) 120 31
Total adjusted revenue/segmental aperating profit and marg:n ’ 1,907 1751 266.3 RIS 14.0% K
Routru onng costs non-a).stng, (0.8) [
Total adjusted revenue/foperating profit and margin 1,907 1751 265.5 234 2 13.9% 3T
Revor ol of net econwmr bouge conract Lesses 1.5 Uy
FResstrin Turmiy ¢ nate, (r2.4) [SEEL
Gains or SPpecial pens L evenhits 6.8 . wa
Acured ot gible amortis <L on and ofver ae uesation iterme (28.8) e n,
Giatiny ilerae) o G - o of subsadang: 0.6 [
Gam o asposal ot prop.ertiec ' 3.2
Imparend [osses {2.0)" -
[ rec b taxes Gnorergesisat on ) {3.2) -
Statutory revenue/operating profit 1,907 1, o1 231.6 ) 192
Nt Sparcial oxpernse {18.7) 111
Statutory profit before tax from continuing operations o Eé 180 G

The foHosang table dluctrates bosreve e and operatng profl liave beon mpac.cd by 1 vermients n foee g exd hange, acquistion: and dispObats

Year ended 31 Decemnber 2017 Year ended 31 December 2018
Movement
As n foreign As Adjusted Organic
adjusted exchange Disposals QOrgarec adjusted Acquisitions Organic growth (%} growth (%)
Adiusted revenue
IMI Critieal Enaguicering 618 A} 3 H3a 682 - 682 5% 7%
ML Freiscn Engnee -y 791 (10; - 731 916 (88) 828 16% 6%
M Byddronie Engineernng 312 3} - 30¢ 309 - 309 1% 0%
Total 751 R ) 17z0 0 1807 (88 1,819 9% 5%
Segmental operating profit
IMI Cnt.cal Engineering 840 {13 a6 Ho 3 88.3 - 88.3 5% 6%
IMI Precicaon Engineenng 1330 {15 - 15 4 153.2 6.7) 146.5 15% 1%
IMI Hydrone Engineeriig 197 101 5} - 492 52.0 - 52.0 5% 6%
Corporate Losts 126 3) - - 126G 31 {27.2) - 27.2)
Total 2409 (3.3 06 238 2 2663 (8.7) 259.6 1% T 9%

Segmental operating profit margin (%) 138 1385 14.0% 14.3%




The bl vy Boble I -lrates e e sogrneds b oud te oo chlabe Des 1o ol o dhe orrad T3l ot and halb Mres eoorted
i 12

theny doce el

95

Assets Lizbtties
2018 2017 2018 ' 2017
£m i Em | i
I 2ot al B griceniag 7237 IR 186.6 ZZ5
INE Zvect o Ergines g 669.7 B 135.8 120 4
IMAF e o Engr conng 215.8 W8 66.8 vl
Total segmental assets/habilities 1,609.2 17413 389.2 ‘b5
Conpd e o 1.4 TG 43.3 5O
Sinpale, et el 27.8 5T B0.1 (SRR
e s e e 37 138 - -
Nevdsbd e 5 132.2 LR 536.7 o3 8
Sty ans Cthor- - 18? . ch 8 B87.3 80
Total assets and habilities in Group balance sheet 1,802.8 100 1,136,6 o
Toc felfleanen b b e Lathe s otrerintens v B e B st oo b o aliecated ety cothe soormienrs o e S g
Rentruetunrg Capital
coste” expendiwe Amortisaton™ Depreziztion
2018 20 - 2018 201, 2018 | 201, 2018 | 2717
£m om £m m £m | m £m I em
A S al v e e 9.2 : 18.5 12 16.7 ERE 13.5 a0
(T 1.5 3G 28.6 o 164 ' 51 20.6 el
N1 =y aronie Eng e 2.5 3N 11.2 - a3 o 8.2 sl
13.2 EIARS] 58.3 2] 36.4 ‘ ozt 42.3 331
T e - 0.2 & 0.5 [ 0.5 SRS
Total 13.2 3L 3 5B.5 by 36.9 e 42.8 (86
Re atoc i g o1 ludde betr o anarhing aoes o dl e ing en,

The armortscton fione s sbroae e Lade e arworticabo ol acgqarcg ntangiboles O 1 G 201 1106 G inchaded e
T 2moadipt 80 Amy s nchloechin espect ot Srecr o Engosenra o Cr 2017000

To Unhedt Encincen.g

Tere e gk aca inespoct of Hodioen e Sogineoting
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Section 2 - results for the year
(continued)

The £ lloroarg fabiler s s aeeoge b e gl ab s o b Tie Groopr e rey=n e« aere et be, destination

2018 m7
Revenue | Rovenue
£m I £m
UK 80 ! ]
Germiany 289 : Z6u
Other Vo et Corspe 382 ot
Western Europe 681 ¢ ©ha
LS 427’ AL
Canada 24 : EN
North America 451 | Rt
Emerging Markets 608 ! 595
Rest of World 77 : el
Total statutory revenue 1,907 | 0
Adjusted revenue by destination (2018} Ao reven i by dosingdn 2G0T
Sest ol th.e LK Sest ot e UK
W rkd ] et )
Frivergin ¢ Wizoler Zirope Zinergr g Wl e Foro
Weathele RN Skt 38"
vz ER
Nosrth Ay a on b Amerca
A - g
Thee Grotgs s eve e Lrearns are dlagoreaaeted 15 the table below | o detals of the peth nnance abligehior s el 4y to thase tovenue streame, | lodse rafar
fe 3ectn b 4 O
2nme 2017
Revenue Reverue
Sector £m fm
MNews Constriction a6l 837
Artermarket 321 311
Critical Engineering T TeB2 648
sl Aatomation 525 £400
Commar cial Vehicle 196 184
Eneray 77 a7
it S on 77 G4
Rail 41 47
Precision Engineering T ! B
L 151 | 7
Hemesor 98 | ‘04
Prievumatex 43 1 4
Other 17 20
Hydromic Engineering ' 309 e

Total revenue 1 gtﬁ . 1,74t




2.1.2
Operating costs by function

The following table s mcluded to show how much of ihe operating costs
deducted from revenue to arrve at the Group's statutory operating profit,
ralate to cost of sales, sellng and distrbution costs, administrative
expenses and adjusting tems

20M8 2017

£m L

Adjusted revenue 1,907 1o
FORT I 1 I e {1.089.4) VR
Segmental gross profit 817.6 G
Aellogand v pharee ool (242.2) et 2
T R Y W (309.1) LA 6
Re tu wrmig . 1 {0.8) e
Adjusted operating profit 265.5 RRIERG
mlop gy e, (33.9) RPN

Statutory operating profit 2316 -an T

Toe coqunhingg tents are o o an taline Sechien 20

The tolls g table s - Ggroataptes dan dy o ot b= dorahon ot th -~ oo

Pt pieer Ll Conprron o dnhebe oy
2518 207
£m Lm
[N 76.6 A1 A
SOy 2511 =524
RBest ot ELrope 219.7 Ll oo
LS 263.5 Ty
Losta Parin 60.4 Ak 8
Fewt of Viotld 19.8 T
Total 891.1 oo

2.1.3
Specific elements of operating costs

Certan specific tems of operaling expenses are disclosed to provide the
reader of financial statements with more nformation regarding these costs,
This seclion provides this analysis

2.1.3.1 Employee information

THe o ensge nuenber of peogde e plo, e by the Grosss o g he seat e

2m8 2014
A el B pre e 3,274 R
R T Tl S I o F A 5,933 i
[ R T I NS T N 1,790 Y
(AT 109 1
Total Group 11,106 fordyen

The pees v 2oty p0 v ro [ R IR R aak

97

e gl Guate F by oot bergen cponahing pr A f o e sear e
Yy s ] f ]

28 2017

o £m m

L danges anek el < 519.4 A5y
Sheare bras o pray ey 8.2 LU
Sl Wi, w3 87.7 A
Fomaon celt s 0.5 Ve
Total 6158 FE -

Potrmlal cost=fn lade the v han g 2177 ST s gamt & s ek o sl

cocalerbie e o s fosed a dotue iy 180 e Jee Sec o e Qs T

2.1.3.2 Operaling lease charges and operating lease commitments

The Group enters into leases for property, plant and equipment assets
when dong so represents a more cost-effective or lower nsk option than
purchasing them This leads to an ncome statement charge for the year
and future commitments for the Group In respect of these leases

Ceroaruarner cor by o b el e b egqe b O g 2 T s el o

e lease oty obe er boge s Ta At s s a T i kating o b b e

Coplontard e con, e ¢ slinomg canm it e oo Lot ron-oane elldke
bttt M

B R o B S O Lo, labile oy b cned

2018 : 20

Land and } Lend anc
bulldings Others buldings Othe s
L £m £m, £m £m
VO ond L ooa 21.6 13.6 R ha
[t ths second o f b e 54.2 24.3 86 a6
Altor 1o yCars 12.3 - Do -
881  37.9 w4 195

2.1.3.3 Research and development expenditure

The corte umeg eost of teae wchared decclonrno e eniue Choagod deecty 1 the
1O STOMIENT pas T 200207 T48 U inedoded vt e thes s amo s cien
of caprahsed ntangbhs develop ~ ent ¢costs ahich ameuntad 1578 Encizot ™ B8 Ing
il acree-tha Gowgy Chnthst o7 T BT EG er was ca bbbt e o

2.1.3.4 Exchange on operating activities net of hedging arrangements

[he tranna fioeal vnsny ex
2017 gans ol T3 nn

at G enites i the Grone sy e e

2.1.3.5 Audit fees
The Gronr engaoec 10 audior BY wpeiforr o Herassuidn ©o iy anents
o ther ©aotory, Audil duties = ere boeir cenerire, e penende and
koo ke ol the Gronp Should creele tore o perfor theee g cagime §-
e e et tharoothee sinel e o e

Irauedl o

oo chers

Prwwaro g, e ek et oot e And oo rebee el e

P 02 e e b oL et oo it e rag b e ce e of nbacha

2018 v
£m m
Foosomdb,te Do wntoe Tor et
ol b ot s o v 1l 0.2 ¥
LIS T Tt [T
prdoteer e gl 2.6 A
R I 0.1 vl

Total 2.9 Ny
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(continued)

22
Adjusting items

The adusting tems category in the Income statement includes those temns
which are removed from statutory measures 10 provide nsight as to the
perfarmance of the Group Accordingly, adjusting tems are ncluded in a
separate column on the face of the ncome statement.

Thay include restructuring costs, special pension events, gans/losses on
chsposals of subsidiaries and properties, Imparment fosses, the reversal of
gansg/losses on economic hedges, acquistion costs, the release of mventory
uplfts recognised on acquisition and acquired intangible amortisation.

221
Restructunng costs

Teerestuctunmg ¢osts troated ax a o ing tems Wl ©°00 Tty vod b
arer crres Uit of anumber ot s grificant eesiros o e g progatts aoias e
Groug: T o chndes the claceee or ane af oo Crtie o Bnginc cnng s te - in
Swede~ ed nght sizag of sperations (Y omi the Global Reatroctinmeg
Progranume witlan Hydionie Engimeans g 02 Smsaned the indisation of
TSN L g et relatedd to 1o Saiss Controls s Nach wo brcng s
Gt al Bngmecteng OO Tog and e Boarepe e oasiness g Proe Lo
Engmecting 70 Giny

Acustngrestiug! ey Cosis m cnluded 12 Annelatng o toe osune
of ore ar Crteal Enwincerng woe: i Belg wny V= ann o the e rue are of
e Sttt d Concrol - & Nueleas bue e ess i Gntic b Engmigonng 401
lor the restrutnre of our Eurcpear husmeas i Srecision Engimeeting

O3 o relation o restooc b Ay nndesaketn e Hydoere dasion

Clher resiuctume g cosd o SO HE 01T 8T S are noc ane b adead w the
thcantte ol s grae foboperatingg pro e cpsr cag ey e Eso Ll s O minntto
The st cucts s avg noen chargoed belows segmen el operalingg pro e as ey
arvse torm nomial rectrming cost redue ton exert ises and are neloded
tre augusted indancieat potfora e of e Groug

2.2.2
Gains on special pensicn events

Dinng 2018, de-timang actiot 25 relating o oo r definied he efil < hemes,
contmied ing kicling the conver on ol cattan pencion benefite to hemng
non-eflation nked, oo conng m the UK wwhich recuited nnet garns of £1 4m
Regudatory changes and the comiplation of ey ontir Sveteorlaned rosaliod
0 qans folalleegy 3 0me ho comploton of e ranstor ar ©4A09m of labalities,
covered by Insuranc o pohcies to the inuuranc.o ¢ ornpdanas through a farmal
Luy-out trancaction resulted o oa et gar of 72 8m An oxpense of ©0 dm
asing frorm the cauabsation of the JK denned benent achemes has been
roc o sed followng the rdling on e test e on Guaranteed Moo
Porcions Sanes o speaial prenson oven baon the UK and Swdzorand ol
PILLBIN vwero recs ghised in 2017

2.2.3
Losses on dispeosal of subsidiaries

Nty subscharies beve beendsrosed o om 2078 A gar of (0 6m b L beer
racog Jsed following the expiry of an mdemnity presided on g Cisloneal
chuposal 102017 the Group dsposed of Stantes- Steel Fasteners Jnnmad
rasultng n a foss ~f £2 8m

2.2.4
Reversal of net economic hedge contract
losses/gaing

For segmoental reporing purpo.es, changes nthe far »-lue of ccononic hodyges
shuchrare nol deaigraed «- cedgas for ac oot g puroe-es fegethar weth the garns
arerlosse unthen sattlonment, we neladod nhe adiy tea revenues and operating
prome of the relovant b nes s segment Toe adusting tems at the opetati=g level
resOre The treatent The net trwae reg adustoeg dorm < redlect e change o alie
of wtlor s of theee contracte vl the mancial nsutations s ithywnom et oy acre

trancacted The ormer cormpised arversal o 2 loss of F1on (201 reersal of a
g PTG e e Ldtor an pundect s s of ST I 01T gan of U3 5mh

2.2.5
Acgured intany:ble amortisation and other
acquisition items

o earcrital porpaone acopmecnndanegble ar ot chon o exe b froe adioe ted
pa A0 o alkowe R e Her comprara it OF thae prodfonmaange e oo s dvraone The
Alitress vsCos of the finane al Ctalermes 1o gat a leare understa deg orthe
Pt Lot tasress, wath the or et o amrt sat orodenmt ol cepanatzly

av e ot nteneal reportine Lo mae agomen

e -

A airedt it gible ae ertsaten o 2018 1 lled TES T 1PC1F V1T Ao The

the amortsat oreof the neangible assets reccgons oo en

i rease n 2008 refled s
e A atsten Gt Birssa b g e car dcaennieg the ful canorte ahiorof Hhie Bimba
order beok et contobuied Shmote e o age Ancarc e by oegmic it of
OO ntangle ot salion e wded P Section 2103

Al oy e ucieacd g teledase of e tan yalue upd I o vertary e ognsed o

prvt o the Bimba aCuestion acounting 1n ¢ coadance weth IFRS 3 Busimess,
Combriations P37 2017 Prile Acgeesnion costs G E2 Omes e neuned
B2l ey PO b acuistion eof Sl Manofae tonng G anpein, o Bieh

i)

completer on 31 dan Ly 20 1h 1wee Sectian & 4]

2.2.6
Gain on disposal of properties

Aguanof L5 2m 2077 Trilvgs recognimeds i 2016 follovng e aepasal o
the Cracal Eng neeting site in Seishing, Japran The proceed> of the sale wil
be vsed to construct 4 numoso built fac iy n dapran aduch will allew Setical
Enyneerr iy © belter imeel customer demarncd i [his region

2.2.7
Impairment losses

As reportedd on page 106 tre Sroup tecorded ai adisting inparment Charge
of £2 Gim aganst the goouwill assoc ated with the Hydronie service conipanies
CGU The carrymg value ¢f tro goodwill was reassessod aftor o4 sales pror ose
for the CGU was candelled

2.2.8
Indirect taxes arising on recrganisation

Followming s retospect ve Char ge to Buropean Lax e on the tansfor of assels
a e ion of O3 2 tocficot the probable cxpduure Fas acenocagh &d
The prosision s recoantsed as an adiusteg tem e operatng proft as it
relatas o ndiect tares

229
Taxation

The lax efects of sl oy aten are el ded i the adas D ogy ferne, ©oaboenn
of the e ome  tatenen)




2.3
Earnings per ordinary share

29

Earnings per share { EPS') g the amount of post-tax profit attributable to each share (excluding those held in the Employee Benefit Trust or by the Company).

Basic EPS measures ale calculated as the Group profit for the year attributable to equrty shareholders drvided by the weighted average number of sharas in
1ssue during the year Diluted EPS takes nto account the dilutive effect of alt outstanding share options priced below the market price, in arrving at the

number of shares used in its calculation,

Both of these measures are also presented on an adiusted basis, 10 assist the reader of the financial statements to get a better understanding of the

performance of the Group. The note below demongtrates how this calculation has been performed.

2018 |

! 2017

} _ ey mithon i milion
T R N e T T A L LU Ft B U U 2 271.0 211
Dt e Lo enpleves sheoe o moes 0.3 0
AN o I PR SR D 5 I CLR R I U L RO } W S N T T O T o T =1 271.3 210

ey £m T
Statutory profil for the year 169.4 L
Nonccentrlhng rtsies s - 11
Statutory profit for the year attnbutable to owners of the parent y 169.4 Toe
Stattor, prc Ul aro s ol e oprerbion: AT 4 - (RSl
Gontinuing statutory profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent N 169.4 Tan 2
Total adpetee. e < chargoo i bade o rott Beton e tas 38.3 3
Total aciuetig e = cred s e bd v becabier {9.3) [
Earnings for adjusted EPS L 198.4 RS
- o <0y 2018 | 2017
Statutory EPS measures
Stalutor, basn EFS COA 62.5p 59 HED
Slalulory diuted £RE ~B 62.4p 50T
Statutory basc carta g B3 DA 62.5p B3 bN
Slatuton e diten contnamng =FS 0B 62.4p 53 oy
Adjusted EPS measures
pFodrston basie Ly 8 EoA 73.2p 63 30
Achustad dilredd EPS EB 73.1p 551
Discentinued earnings per share
Sbarewere il 2017 B eon

Sl ey B dineer Traed canilgs o sare Sare il 207 6 20 Stas oy dif e oo on el et gy s
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2.4
Taxation

iMI operates through subsicdiary companies all around the world that pay many
different taxes such as corporate ncome taxes, VAT, payroll withholdings, social
security contributions, customs import and excise duties, This note aggregates
only those corporate income taxes that are or wili be levied on the ndmvidual
profits of IM} pic and ts subsicliary companies for periods leading up to and
Including the balance sheet date The profits of each company are subject to
certain adustments as specified by applicable tax laws in each country to arrve
at the tax habiity that s expecied to result on their tax returns, Where these
adjustments have future tax mpact then deferred taxes may also be recorded

2.4
Tax governance, risk and strategy
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complete accorate and tled o o timely basis with the tax authort s aroune
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10 one tax ooy fins
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Fairness: M| <oeks 1o rocord s profits soross he subsdiary corpames g
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IMI has taken action to ensue that it meets the erbanced ranster priuing disclosires
A b Aoe mentation recnremams by tar avthion es as aas it of 170 Base Brocira &
Profit Shifvig fc ermmanly referred 1o us BEPS) ntiative by the OEGD

Value: IMI manages the impact of taxation o ts Businesscs a4 respo sihie
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2.4.2
UK corporation tax

The werage ey 1ed rae of corporn dion texon e UK Tor the 2078 aletidar
g feas 1900 {2017 1025 3 Cha ges totha rate UK copon ion lax
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2.4.3
Tax payments

Lipinug 10 gcar the rovp made Pavnient ctoopotate neo o bax of 220 m
O I e e el ans o as follo s

Junsdiction of companies making corporate income tax payments:
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Recognised in the income statement
Thie e

npr e e Gl o by

Pos bown b vanend - adde ered b o g shch bongee =

othe e orne Letement

2618 20T
£m - om
Current tax charge
[ORETTIN BN cE T TSI 46.1 Tt
N I ITIEIANE BT B R R RNy (4.3} EV
41.8 205
Defened taxation 7
MR FRNTHETIN 'S TR SIS T TR RN B ER 1.7 i
Total income tax charge 43.5 Zha

2.4.5
Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The e e o tax Shange e apportone el e

apetalr s the e on o Cttomer tas sl -

301

Pl gance sl ool poed

\
1 2017

2018
£m Lo
Current tax charge
Sentin g eRerias 41 8'
Drcontrmed cporelior - - 14 T
41.8 25
Deferred tax charge
SontirinTg eptialions 1.7 ]
2018 R
o o £m o
Total inceme tax charge
Contend g L 43.5 EERY
R R TN N PPu T
43.5 oo

Aclvlie b oo e and e gy s gornct e the SR e Srone roeienc o e Ot bue tay nafe e the UK corpor o as e vew o otbe e mallsov ten ot
B Zre s br e e beeg e e U Theper e e oo g weovec nn ] sbe s Lpple the UCar et on e oo che ctar b pant Uheteas o botb b f o ettt
i e The posulti tax ol a g o e or ko e et fax Bae se S the Gt b daming wea el vect g mee e aliogss
2018 | 2017
1
Adjusting i Adjasting
Adjusted Hems Statutory i Admzied itemrs Stat_tory
Section £m £fm £m | £m m £m
Profit before tax trom continuing cperations 251.2 (38.3) 212.9 2211 RIS -0 4
Profit before tax from discentinued operations P 22 22
Profit before tax 251.2 (38.3) 212.9 L2491 210 131
1o far ity b 2o pray - domrestio rale ot toro TG00 00T 192 47.7 (7.3) 40.4 431 1 RS
Proch.ed
RPN N 3! O 0.7 0.7 1.4 T 37 Lo
NG anable et dess on ddicposal JFBose e s - 0.3 .3 [ 01
e aiomy o doe ner o gmn oo delered Lt had e recognd o ©.4) - (0.4} Loy - 201
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2.4.6

Recognised cutside of the income statement

Annual Repon and Accounts 2018

Irvacd it o oty s Chargad o the e ome Staic ol some cunent T and defer eo tax s cred eo) o arge o deecily To ecpate o 1ooogl oft er comoehiensp

e or e whicboan be atak sed o foliows

2018 | 2017
— £m £m
Deterred tax. .
O egu ty-r ottled tran e ton 0.1 [FRe}
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5.0 o
2.4.7
Recognised deferred tax assets and labilities
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Assets Liabimes Net
2018 017 2018 ‘ v 2018 2017
£m | em £m | £m £m €m
- | -
NoN-t urent assels 0.9 11 (34.8) 134 11 {33.9) 1330,
Irventorie.” 3.8’ 12 {2.8) | 13 0 1.1 i ar
O revalualion of doavatives 0.2 936} (3.1) 13 ) (2.9)! 31
Emplovee benefits and provizions 30.3 ! 303 (8.6) W3 21.7 } 268
Other tax assets 1.2| 20U - 1.2 | 20
— N ; [
36.5 3B (49.3) | 44 ] (12.8) ! 63l
Gilseting #ah 0 ax s 1one 7(713.75?)1 (e 2y 19.5 | [ - -
Total deferred tax assets and labilities 17.0 ! 209 {29.8) 277) {12.8) 16.8)
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2.4.8
Unrecoghised deferred tax assets and liabililies
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2.5
Discontinued operations

When lhe Group has assets and labilities thal have been sold i the year or are Ikely to be sold rather than being held for continuing use, these assets and habilites
are included m current assets and habilties and denoted 'held for sale’ rather than in ther usual categones. They are recogrised at the lower of carmyng amount and far
vaiue less costs 1o sell, Impairment losses on the ntial classification of assets as held for sale are ncluded i the inceme Staterment, even for assets measured at far
value, as are impairment losses on subsequent remeasurement and any reversal thereof Once classified as held for sale, assets are no longer depreciated or amortised

If they reprosent a significant enough proportion of the Group, they are also treated as discontinued oparations. A discontinued operation 15 a component of
the Groupy's busingss that represents a separate mapor ine of busingss that has been disposed of, 1s held for sale or s a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a
view to re-sale This means that thar trading performanee. | ¢, thoir revenues, costs and other tems of ncome and expense, are No longer reported within the
headine fiqures in the Income Staterment and are instead reported N a scparate ine, net of tax, called ‘discontinued operations’ These amaourts no longer form
part of continuing earnings per share Sotnparabive figures are restated to be shown on the same basis,

This enables the lncome Statement for the current and prior vear ‘o be presented on a consistent basis and {o convey a mere forward-looking version of the
results {or the year

T, nrpecdr ket ot ondine ccop e e e
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities

What you will find in this section

This sectiocn shows the assets used tc generate the Group’s trading performance and the habilities incurred as a result.
Liabilities relating to the Group's financing activities are addressed in Section 4. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are shown in Section 2.4.7. On the following pages there are sections covering working capital, non-current assets,
acquisitions, other payables due after more than one year, provisions and pensicons.

3.1 3.1.2

Working capital Trade and other receivables
Working capital represents the assets and habilities the Group generates 2018 | 2m7
through its trading activihes. The Group therefore defines working capital as o &m - £m
trade and other recevables, nventory and trade and other payables. Working Current
capital1s rr}anaged very carefully to ensyre that the Qrou,o can meet s trading Tradde te vl lew 370.2 a0
and financing obiigations within ts ordinary operating cycle. Ciher 1o eriable 58.1 550
To provide the Executive Committee with insight into the management Prrer asmiente v o ace red o come 22.0 2007
of working capital, an mportant measure monitored is cash conversion i 450.3 G188
Cash conversion 1s defined as the operating cash flow (as defined in the
commentary on the ¢ash flow statement) divided by the segmental operating Recetvables are stated after
profit which therefore represents the proportion of segmental operating profit Al e e Torinpaninent 13.2 125

generated during the year that has been converted into cash
The Gros g o bowe and olhe tecen absles, tored e by 83 m Jonng thes o
ches der boreigo e baege imor enient of U7 dnn fra g ne et Lot and

31 | At gl Sl O oe ey thie Famibag e s
In\/entorles Tt Grovaprs expo tre torcroat b and mecke ke relaled o tratte oo thes
P oeteable s dicclo ed i Sect g 4
2018 | 2017
L £m | o393
Reta midfenale el ot ouniatle- 101.6 TGh T
rade and other payables
Viork i prieaes, 104.6 ao ea e p y
Finshoo aoods €6.3 o 2
2725 2513 2018 2017
- £m | £m
Inventones are stated after: o -
Allowance for impairment 3.3 562 urrent
Trade preyabiles 195.4 2220
- : Sccial secunty and othor taxution 28.4 268
201 3 af g . > sl as - KT - RS ; -
n 2078 the c o5t of nvento ?\H“ recognl vi(’dj i imm e nmrl) ((]\m("'lf’ﬂ Othes ravables 8.2 = 4
cosl of salesy amonnted 1o T 069 dp 2017 F980 1) Toe Group's nventon, , =
N - ; i Acoruals s deferted meome 155.9 15849
ncieased by £271 2m dhe o gk reases 1nnvertory held o Froo sion 2 omesninag - —_ -
{frelatieg to the acousation of Birqna) anst Hysnome Enagimecting ,3?9,9 R 4165
In 20018 the whte-doan or inventolies 1o nel 1eal sable value arnonnted (o Nan-curront
£6 0 2017 $13 4 The reversal of wile-downs amounten ta 173 5m Otirer payabies 55 0o
396.4 4231

{2017 96 6rn Wite-downs and ioversals 1n both years relate 10 on-gong
assessnents ol - venilory obhsolescence, end gy s nventary holding aned
nmverton e-alg values acroes alf of tha Group's bas resses The Groapss trade and other paydbles decress e by 82700 due Lo forerg
ext hange move nents ol E10m and an merease ol S100 1 uliowing e Bimte
ac guisiton offsel by trad ng movernents of $47m




3.2
Intangible assets

105

The following section shows the non-physical assets used by the Group to generate revenues and profits These assets include goodwill, customer relationships,

order books palents, development costs and software development costs. The cost of these assets 1s the amount that the Group has paid for them or, when
they have ansen due 10 a business combinaten, the far value of the specdic Intangible assets that could be sold separately o which anse from legat nghts

In the case of goodwill, s cost is the amount the Group has paid n acguinng a business over and above the far value of the ndmvidual assets net of the llabilites
acquired The value of the goodwill can anse from a number of sources, but In refation to our mare recent acquisitions, it has been represented by post-acquistion
synergies and the skills and knowledge of the workforce. The value of the Group's intangible assets, with the exception of goodwill, reduces over the number of

years over which the Group expects to use the asset, the useful Ife, via an annual amortisation charge to the Income statement.

The Group spiils its mangiblc assets between those ansimg on acyuisiions and those which do not, because the amortsation of acqured ntangbles 1s recogrised

as an adiusting tem N the Income staterment.

Where there are Indications that the vaiue of intangible assets s no longer representative of therr value to the Group, for example where there 1s a customer

relationship recogrised but revenues from that customer are reducing, or where goodwill was recagnised on an acquisition but the performance of the business
acquirad 1s below expectations the directors review the value of the assets 1o ensure they have not fallen below therr amortisec values If this has happened,
a one-off impaimment charge is recognsed. This section explains the overall carnang values of the ntangible assets within the Group and the specific judgernents

and estimates made by the directors In arrving at these values

3.2.1
Analysis of intangible assals

NOM-ATGUIren

Acq.red Other Total Otner nor - nitangibles
Loaslomer atdured ACYuIred acqared wndes
Gooawll relaior ships dilargioles mtangibles ntar giddes congtrucion ol
oy £ i) £m £m £m Lmn
Cost
S gt Tahrar, U010 100, 4 16,5 4 a6 AN DARY 211 SRR
Lxebaoe el ments 16 ) 20 Ul 4 vl I [l
O eposall of subs darties - (| O i - 2
Ao - - - - TG G A
Troa Slers Tror o et Fevaurse ol cor Trantia - - - - 120 [REAN!
[t aprusals - - - {o 4t HEARD) i3
ALl Gt Dooomuoe 2017 2] ah ] ZisRs] 157 1114 251 BA2 Y
Exchange adjustments 16.0 7.0 4.6 27.6 2.6 (0.1} 301
Acquisitions 39.1 34.2 20.0 93.3 3.4 - 96.7
Additions - - - - 6.7 13.7 20.4
Transfers from assets in the course of construction - - - - 21.4 (21.4) -
Disposals - - (2.2) (2.2) (1.9) - (4.1)
As at 31 December 2018 475.5 236.6 122.3 834.4 143.6 17.3 9g5 3
Amortisation
St D danteay 1T ST 145 1 HT EEra 511 - 2y
e bran o ardpsime nts 14 S5 0 on [} - 2.3
T speals of ube dianes - (U (81} W1 W
O posal 51 [FRIR B
Arnorte st dor o 1-0 20 1 o - R
soowtdt Dowenbpe o 17 SIS ey n Hetoe RIS O BEEN
Exchange adjustments oz a3 2.8 8.3 3.0 - 9.3
Disposals - - (2.2) (2.2 {18) - (4.0)
Impairment 2.0 - - 2.0 1.2 - 3.2
Amortisation for year - 16.2 8.9 2541 11.8 - 36.9
As al 31 December 2018 38.3 1B0.5 99.4 318.2 70.4 - 388.6
Bt bk o Bererhier o0 SR “i oo %= L sol RUNEN
Nel book value at 31 December 2018 437.2 56.1 229 516 2 73.2 173 608.7
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3.2.2
Goodwill impairment testing

Goodwill 1s not subject to an annual amornisation charge. Instead, s camying value 1s assessed annually by comparnison 1o the future cash flows of the business
to which 1t relates (the cash generating unit, or ‘CGU’). These cash flows are discounted to reflect the time value of money and thus discount rate, together with
the growth rates assumed in the cash flow forecasts, are the key assumptions i this imparment testing process

Gon vl i allocatod 1o GG b ecd onibe sy nengies oxoe e o Lo e dernaod
roi 1he ac guiseli o npens 20 oo ibe g ol arose Thie Groap b 20020t
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reporbng slructare Whore our b 1ocose operale osely v ith cach other s e
Al cor e U reaee whether oy~ oulabe reated oo e migle GG

all L Caled THe compo o hian o

Goudwil i tostod anroally ot mpar o tas part of the overall aasesmant of
assets aganst thor recoverable amoonts 18 ecaverab amoont of a GG -
e bugher of s dag valae loes costs 1o sell and m oy oe in ase Value i use o
deterrmed ds g cash llon pro ection s fror Inand el budaets foree - and
plare, approved by the Board cover g tvesyear penoc aned i ude o teanan
value rmulfiple The proges teorea b fle s pedlle tthe latost expectat on
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This oxere1sc rosafteant-c e ottt o allos rgrange  of val o for the
key assumptions
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3.3
Property, plant and equipment
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The followirg section concerns the physical assets used by the Group 1o generate 1evenues and profits, These assets Include manufactunng, distribution and

office sites, as well as equipment used i the manufactue of the Group's products The cost of these assels represents the amount initially paid for them

With the exception of the Group's land and assets under construction wiuch have not yet been brought nto use, a depreciation expense 13 charged 1o the
mncome statement o reflect the annual wear and tear and the reduction in the value of the asset over time For details on the periods over which assets are
depreciated, see Section 5. Depreciation is calculated by reference 1o the assets’ useful Ives, by estimating the number of years over which the Group expects
the asset to be used As we do for our ntangble assets (see Section 3.2), if there has been a technolegical change or decline n business performance the
directors review the value of the assets o ensure they have not fallen below therr depreciated value. i an assel’s value fails below 1ts depreciated value,

a one-off imparment charge s made against profit

Acnate e the

lard & ~larit 5 Toaenof
olchngs apmment oot usnon otal
£m cm st Im

Cost
~oat o dan o, 21 ol e R RN
Bt Plaatnge el [ 11 Jil ‘
[ TV SRR T i [ ol (Y
ol hens e 17 -7 3
Trandieg nos Lot s berour 2ol oo bl a3 ERRe [IE=R=D -
DY al PR ST wh s
R U cernbyr 2017 16,19 o3l 5 211 £ D
Exchange adjustments 14.4 34.7 1.7) 47.4
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NSv ot 31 Do anb o 2017 BT 1606 ot 2761
NBV at 31 December 2018 B8.2 177.0 19.2 284.4
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3.4
Acquisitions

The following section discusses businesses acquired by the Graup, which
have given rise to the addttions to the acquired intangible assets (ncluding
geodwill) reported in Section 3.2 and which contributed to the Group's profits,
working capial and other balance sheet asset and babihties.

On 31 danwary 2018 the Gron b acquired 10735 of the share cgptal and
Aoty vodn g nghds o Birnbe M 0 s unmey Sormpanne 8t ra) and a-
cotbiend spies o Cash cansweration ol V13% Iy Biroba & a ket oot v
manufac turer ol pocumeat, byar Luhc and olcct o miel nosanlfiey s bwsod n
Newth A anca

This ac sl nofae beon s ounded 1or as a busines o oomibioat b The

fin hef L vatue an ol recogiiscdl resnect ol e denibobde o set

dcqueree s dngd al e s as ornccbares el ab e e dabsle bodo
Fair value at
31 January 2018
£m
dataylale A we te Lo
Property plant atd eaunrentent 138
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Tratde arwy other puay ables RORN
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4t the BURTesscs D evdde 1 the Groun s ooe alions The goodaill and of
intangsle gesels pecognised dle amottsabk: ton oo pLeposes A ausition
costs of U2 On were recognised as an adqustng tem i the v ome

statement in 2017

The rewenue and operating profrt ncluded m the Consolicated inceine Statenent
N 2018 conttbuled by Bimba were £88.3m and £6 ™m re pectvely Theve s
no drierenc e netwee aauisted and slatutory oparaling proilt for Binba

1HAhie: ac guisthons had faken place an 1 Janeeey 2018 they wouke have
coptpboted adjusted raveiie of £96 A0 and adiusted aperat - g pralt of
17 0mto e Group results

Thera were no acquistions dunng 2017

3.5
Disposals

Therc aere no dspo-al of subsidiades aunng 2015
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3.6
Provisions

A provision is recorded nstead of a payable (see Section 3 1 3) when there 1s less certanty over how much cash will be paid and when the payment might be made.
Provisions are recogmised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obfigation as a result of past events, it 1s piobable that an outflow of resources will be
reqguired 1o settie the obtigation, and the arnount can be reliably estimated Provisions are vaiued al management's best estmate of the amount required to settle the
present obkgation at the balance sheet daie,

A provision for restruciunng s recognised when the Group has approved a detalled and format restructunng plan, and the restructunng has etther commenced or
has been anncunced publcly.

The recognition of a provision requires estimation, The principal estimates mada n respect of the Group's provisions concern the tming and amount of payments
required to

« cover the costs of known restructurng projects,

» reimburse custormers for potential product warranty clams,

s ensure that current and former manufacturing sites meet relevant envirenmental standards,

» reflect the estimated outcome of ongoing legal disputes, and

« provide aganst ingemnities following the disposal of subsidianes,

Analysis of the Group’s provisions®

Lraonrnenial

Trace legal &

Restructunng wananties Elletoidlalisy Taotal

m 2m 3] ™

Carno ot 1o ty - nz
Non-g bl 15 0 T “Hid
AT s 25 145 28 m3 16
Arnising durning the year 3.6 0.9 3.4 7.9
Utiised durning the year (13.5) (1.8} 0.4} {15.7)
Exchange adjustment 0.1 02 - 03
At 31 December 2018 47 123 103 271
Current 4.3 5.0 3.2 125
Non-current 0.4 74 71 14.6
4.7 12.1 10,3 27.1
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs

What you will find in this section

This section outlines how the Group manages its capital and related financing costs. The directors determine the
appropriate capital structure for the Group, specifically, how much cash is raised from shareholders {(equity) and how
much is borrowed from financial institutions {debt) in order to finance the Group’s activities both now and in the future.
The directors consider the Group’s capital structure and dividend policy at least twice a vear ahead of announcing results
in the context of its abhility to continue as a going concern and deliver its business plan.

The Board is mindful that equity capital cannot be easily flexed and in particular raising new equity would normally be
likely only in the context of an acquisition. Debt can be issued and repurchased more easily but frequent changes lead
to high transaction costs and debt holders are under no obligation to accept repurchase offers.

4.1
Net debt

Net debt is the Group's key measure used to evaluate total cutstanding debt, net of the current cash resources. Some of the Group's borrowings {and cash}
are held in toreign currencies. Moverments in foreign exchange rates affect the sterling value of the net debt. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances
and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows

a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

\
2018 201¢

fm £m
Cashand «a-h oguglents s orrent gt 132.2 96 b
Benle overdraft i creren labilities (82.6) 1314,
Cash and cash equivalents 49,6 670
b} Reconciliation of net cash to movement in net borrowings
2018 2m7
£m £m
Net idec aasevincrease 1 ¢ash ano cash eqguivalants excluding foreign exchange (19.7) 0=
Net ‘chawn down) repayment of botrtow ngs exc luding foreign excharge and nat deot disposea/acguned (86.0) 21
{Increase)/decrease in net debt before acquisitions, disposals and foreign exchange {105.7) 23
Net deb., acged {15.0} -
Cunency trar slation aitteren ces {(18.6} 151
Mavement in net borrowings in the year {139.3} 174
Net boncneang < At the slark of [e yoar {265.2} (262 6

Net borrowings at the end of the year {404.5} 265 21




c) Analysis of net debt

Borow ngs and
fimance leases due

111

Cauh and cagh wathur ater more Tolal
equin alenta OO0 yOE PAT OO year not debt
e o om 'm
P RPN L T TSN P ol [SERS R le T8 A eyl
Cactoduy < 1omg setliomont of Correne, denvatives Ted - abalaro ¢ 2neet aid s 20 s zned of e quited (3.4) 36.6 {121.8} (8B.6)
Net det tooairoern 0.8 - {15.8} {15.0}
Setiler er Loy cnrre oL ol 2he Bsdging baloane e on@, {17.1} - - {17.1)
Conenney o tano ) afieren cg 1.7 (1.6) (18.7) (18.6)
At 31 December 2018 49.6 {78.8) {375.3) (404.5)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The Group borrows money from financial Institutions in the form of bonds and other financial nstruments  These generally have fixed nterest rates and are for
a fixed term or are drawn from committed borrowing facilities that generally have floating mterest rates,
Tl e 1t prt s onab s e tbe ten g b S ap rnerc b g he s are boerons teg Fobmure ree nalbor abe slbe ot s s e
[ P A O NS TR BT IR BN ST RN N A
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.3
Net financing costs

This section detalls the mcome generated on the Group's financial assets and the expense ncurred on borrowings and other financial assets and labiliies
The finance income and expense taken into account in anving at adiusted earnings only ncludes the income and expense ansing on cash balances,
borrowings and retrement berefit obligations. The finance Income or expense on mark-to-market movernents on interest and foreign exchange dervatives
and other financing costs are excluded from adjusted earnings.

Recognised in the income statement

2018 207
Financial | Fwancizl
Interest  instruments Tolal , Interest wstruments Total
£m fm £m | £m £m £m
Ierent e Caonrie Orchaeth e il 5.8 58 5hA 55
Farree el me e o @ty at o vabuee shrowgh prafi o jos -
Ot er o anmos o hetloges .
St yedr ey 13.8 13.9 o8 64
S fuline year lransaction s 2.2 2.2 L6 ol
Financial income 6.8 16.1 21.9 1; o0 105 10
IFteres! OXpense onntores e g 1oun A oo g- (18.7) {18.7} ' L1 Ey Mo
Fit s tal maste et ab far e throuah preht o loes
OF et 0 one e by :
STen e Traddng {15.9) {15.9} ‘ ISRt LER-
S fulune L e VaeaCtic (4.6) {4.6) 24 124
Financial expense Q1 8?] -(26.5) ’ (39.2)} e/ ] 129¢,
Net financial inceme relating to defined benefit pension schemes ”({.4) o U .4) ! [LER7] [
Net financial expense (14.3) {1.4) 87 (15 14 33 118

I s i financsal st uments G cnnen S lading gans and o ses on ecor omitally e'fect ve tahsactions wiunc e man gement 1eporting poit poses are
e hadec s adius ed rever e ana operat Ny ol see Section 2 110 For Stalutory gupo-es hese are @oueed 10 0 shown wittr net Bnancc) noonie and expense
Alove Gas of Inases for a e yed tan<ac tions e nresoect of o Ol nsliomer

L el by the Sroup 10 proade slabylty of Biture trading cash flows

Recognised in other comprehensive income

2018 2017

N £m | m

Change i tar value of eflectwe porhon of net investment hedges 1.9 34

Foreyn cutrency translaaon differerces (4.5) 114

Chuanige n far value of Soor financial assels 0.2 02,

Incorme ax on tems recognsad N other compres ensive ncome 0.3} 0e

Total items recognised in other comprehensive iIncome {net of tax} o (E?T)A 84
Fecogaleed in

Hodg g reserve 1.8 26

Tronsiaton 1eustve (4.5)I 114

2.7 B4




4.4
Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose 1 to a variely of inancial risks nterest rate,
forexgn exchange and base metal price movements in addition to funding
and hquidity ngks. The financial instruments used to manage these rnisks
themselves introduce exposure to credit risk, market risk and hquidity risk.

This sechion presents information about the Group's exposure 10 each of
these nsks; the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risks, ncluding each of the above risks, and the Group's
management of capral

4.4.1

Overview

e Board tae gl pes bl el bave e s b
e S =gk e e ot erk 2 B e b e oot ate
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4.4.2
Credit risk

Credit risk s the nsk of financial loss to the Group it a customer or
counterparly to a financial instrument fails (o meet its contractual obhigations,
and arises principally from the Group's recewvables from customers, cash
and cash equivalents held by the Group's banks and other financial assets.
At the end of 2018 these totalled £503,4m (2017 £442 bn)

4.4.21
Managing credit risk arising from customers

The Gronds's g oot e 1o Costhit rises s mnfluenee ooty oy the monsoud
cbaractermd s ol cach custmer The ceoogre b - o he Gronge= castome
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4.4.2.2
Exposure to credit risk in respect
of financial assets

T e oM Sxpaetne tecrsedit e fon rsr Gl asset- o reparesante=d by e
Cootvne vadie g s a0l set hieloa

Carryng ame.nt

2018 2077

£m fm

Con a deash enu slent 132.2 95 6
Invesimer tsy 3.7 ‘ 440
135.9 AR

4.4.2.3
Exposure 10 credit nisk in respect
of trade receivables

Carnyg areom

2018 i o7
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(continued)

4.4.2.4
Impairmant provisions for trade recelvables

Thier ageineg OF tade v ey biles al the et g aade v e

2018 f 2017
|

Gross  Impairment | G06s Irpairment
- £m &m | fm £rn
ot past o 299.9 0.1 [
Pt due 1-730 gy 36.0 (0.5) RS
Pass dire 3190 cay e 227 0.9) ]
2 b AU over Gt 248 ~{(1.7) o)t
Total 383.4 {13.2) et

1he et mcsernent U e allo cane e dor mparment o e et et i

test e rabiles of e Mo vedr veac a o T liomas,
|

208 | 2007
£m £m
Net bualare © a0 1 danns 12.5 114
Acquisilions 0.1 -
Utiedd dunmeg G year 1.7 ARt
Chargoo tor e reonid sratemee 2.6 A
Released (0.3) RaeT
Exe i ge - whdl
Net balance at 31 December 13.2 125
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Managing credit nsk arising
from counterparties
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rone hned when cnnsiienng the credit exposare 1o e counterparfies Al the
encd ot 2118 Credt exposiee gythidng Cashdeposead did nat eeeed U1 G
with any single e titahon (2007 018 G

4.4.3
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices will aflect the Group's
income and cash flows or the value of its financial Instruments. The objective
of rarket risk managemenit 1S 1o manage and control market sk exposures
within acceptable parameters.

Under the management of the central treasury function, the Group> enters
iro derivatives in the erdinary course of business and alse manages financial
labiities in order 1o mitigate market risks. All such transactions are camed
out within the guidelnes set by the Beard and are undertaken only if they
relale to underlying exposures.

4.4.31
Foreign exchange risk

The Group publishes consolidated accounts N sterling but conducts much
of its global business in other currencies. As a result it 1s subject to the risks
assopated with foresgn exchange movements affectng transacton costs
{"transactional nsgk’), translation of foreign profits ('profit translation risk')
and translation of the underyng net assets of forewgn operations

{'assel translation nsk'),

a} Management of transactional risk

Ther Sruap's wde geographa al spread both n terms o1 Cost Dase and Custiomer
loe dhions Bedps 1o reduce the rmipact on prot lability, of “wings 11 oachange

raee o vl as creat ng cpportooiios for contral etling of exposure~ 171s the
G paolicy oamimmise 71k to exchange rate movoment: aftecting subs A
ot mes by oconom € ally Necging or nottneg Cumency eap) ssores at the tme

of conratment o whien there s high probsad ity of oo conmitmens, uang
CLireney nstoT onts fE rmanly, ‘oraard excnange contrac ts A& propottion of
fobta TOXPOSWE e hedges de pen g on the evel o conticeesce and hedginag
I prenond ¢Cally iosted tollow ing regular royrsas Oncthis bas < auer 50 - o the
3ot Al € epos LNes 1o transag ior il nsk are [kely to be hedged at any pont
wytre kg Gt et e s oral exposar o diferer T e e s
Foe beae ooy

b) Management of profit translation risk

The Grow s i ed 1o ihe e slation of ottt der cmmid sd coregn
Coprenes Nt e st ag-based meome Statement The nizeest oo related
to becnrren y ganilites hedagmg the aset base prowade, a poghal bedge t
eapre e Soorf-term s rre oy ontion conbacts nay be e te provies: [t
Protecion atiins) Stering trengthi o~ o Spporinie basae, Thedrarsbde n
of US rtollar oo elro-cov e profis topresent he o ot can leencladion

ey or e o ihe Greong

¢} Management of asset transtation risk

The Growp hedge: it net mwvestnients in s majon averseds upeldabon: by way
of exiEmal Crency fo=ns & G lorvard Lutrency Ton racts The eilenttn i io
muandge the Groop s exposure 10 gdrs and los -es © Groopr equty resulting
from retranciation of currency et 4550ty ot baldiice cheet dates

te the extent thet an nstrument used 1o hedge anet rvestment B a tomegn
opcration 15 determir ed 1o be an offe tve hierge. the gan or [3s5 anang

i recognistd diret Uy n he: ganslation reserves. Any nelieodn e portion e
reconrned mnmediately i fhe e ote statoment



d) Currency profile of assets and liabilities
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Assets
subject 3

Exchange to interest Qther Total ‘ Total

Cash* Debt contracts rate risk net assets net assets 1 net assets

2018 2018 2018 208 2018 2018 | 204

R : . £fm £m £m £m £m fm | £m
Sretlig 41 - 485 526 (11) 515 5.
Uz dulky - (248) (1) (259) 318 59 te i)
B (11} (207) (216) (434) 520 86 i
CH er 20 - {258) (238) 244 6 35
Total 50 (455) e {405) 1,071 666 7

R

oo Jtateare 0 Lo nnafn

L A RS R R X FEN (ol CO S AL L U SR I

u

4.4.3.2
Interest rate risk

torl Ldascunrn P

L T R R

The Group 1s exposed to @ number of global interest rates through: assets and habiities denuminated i unisdictions to which these rates are apphed, most
notably US. Eurozone and UK rates. The Group 15 exposed to these because market movermnents in these rates will increase or decrease the interest charge

recognised in the Group income statement

a) Management of interest rate risk

The el it T PelCy S s pta g g g oot e at tive Lrreres Drate, snd e g e bade (o of the maatng fe oxp e e e tha 1

eerEnt bt Fer glotdly e efe o thes Gio s s m o 0§ Attt s dt agealle
e r o Lt A0 T e 01 Loaney et i n-t o e ol bt ard Toare el rament el dig St rate s s B g rate pab oo ampee e horttonn oy
A T earet frr Lo dor e oo r b a b habilte e o exe heaege contr e te g e hie sleres, ol ment s nases s pan ik st oo e o e feeSank raie

Al ashrrplege g = pvested L sh o pen otk and e leated o fogt g ate rwesbinet it

Mot 1 hean g Al asets and bt dtes ncbdng shor -lome uds e clvables and ey abies Lo been escludceb o the foliv g alie v s
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b) Interest rate nsk profile

T fnlovmg tavle shioos how eooch et our cashe mtere - b sarmyg babiloe s ol exchar ge oo bacts gttract hoth ixed and et g rade ntees’ charges

and howe s s aneh el betseen cune nies

Annual Report and Accounis 2018

Assets Weighted
Debt and Cash and subject Weighted average
exchange exchange to interest Foating Fixed average period
contracts contracts rate risk rate rate fixed tfor which
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 interestrate rate s fixed
£m £m £m £m £m Yo years
S erlg - 526 526 526 -
US dolla (259) - (259} 12) {248) 5.2 5.2
Euro (423) (AR} (434) (226) {207) 1.4 7.3
Cthirs (258) 20 (233} . (23:8) -
Total (940) 535 {405) 50 {455)
Assets We ghted
Oebt and Cash arid subyget W ghted dverdge
exchange exchange (o Inlerest Floating Fixed average rercd
vontrac s SOt ratd risk ralg rulg fivect for which,
2017 017 M7 2017 2017 mterestrate  rate s nxed
Lt £rr £rmi L e % VOECS
Stuthry - 52¢ R 5oz
LIS dolla D] 36 13 14h 10k 6 10
T R B 177 Jadh 13 14 e
Ot 205) 26 70 A7
Total [atetai] 503 Ryt i M S
4433 Funding 1o *hie Group s co-or dnated Centrally by the reaacny, fundtion o

Commodity risk

The commodity inputs to the Group's preduction process typically consist
of base metals. Commaodity nsk for the Group 15 the risk that the prices of
these inputs could rige, thus reducing Group profits

tompr s e o rhed talaleral el iies wath o cure group or t gnke
of LS loan ot e e
arkd ternn rans exceed the ievant peak g
12 month ey Ly an approeprate amount tak -gainto act gunt narket concition .
arwd corporate achvity, vy huding acgusmons organic growts plans and shae
buyhacks I addihion we uncertake regular covenant comphane e revige's to

ST g G0ty
Thie vt of facbe s s romntaned suce that fueilimes
b of he Group ouvel a . ling

ensUre rat we reman oy wethin dhese cover ant lmne A1 the end of 2018
e Sroup had undrawn comrrmitted faciibies totaling 1300 2017 25000,
} 5 B oy PP OO )
The Group s Oporat fg companies purchiase nictal and 7 etal con vonents and was holde g cash and cash ecunealonts of £132m {2017 £99n Thers ae

anel are therefore cxposed to chardes 0 commodity jrices

areas for e Group

Management of commaodity risk

The Group manages ths exposiie tnongh a cenliafised process herdgr g 4.5

copper, 2nc a d aAumPiam Lsa g a comidin atioe of Tinanct s contrac ts and o al
sopply agreements, designed 1o nimir & the volatillyy of short-term margme

4.4.4
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet tts financial
obligations as they fall due.

a} Management of liquidity risk

The Group v appvach 1o managng laidity 5 10 enyure as far ax poss ble
hat it sl Abwvays have adedguate resources 1o meet rs labilt s when they
fall due, with suthicient head oom o oope vath abinermal market Conditions,
This pu~Hon s rovieweed on a qua-elly Lasis

Capital management

1O SIGNT Gan® seas0nal iundiig requiremients or capatal mtensive rvestmernt

Capital management concerns the decision as to how the Group's activiies
are financed and specifically, how much of the Group capital is provided by
borrowings (or debt) and how much of it is financed with equity raised from
the issue of share capital.

The Board's policy is to mamntan a balance sheet with a broad capral
base and the strength to sustain the future development of the business
including acquisitions. Thig section discusses how the Board views the
capital base of the Group and the mipact on leverage, distribution policy
and investmert policy



4.5
Overview
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4.5.3
Debt or equity
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4.5.4
Dividend policy and share buy-backs
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4.6
Debt and credit facilities

This section provides delalls regarding the specific borrowings that the Group
has In place to satisfy the debt elements of the capital management palicy
discussed above

4.6.1
Undrawn committed facilities

Thee Grotesy beas L anoes o a0 commilted bor oo ing tacl e The facibime:
avallalile at 21 Decernber crespect ai vdrch all condd one preceaent brad

Peerpmet sere as follows

AR R RO C IR S S I LA RARARIN

AR T

2018 2017
£m | rm
FRprig 2 ol e 50.0 5y 5
Expantig ot er nre arad 1r 6o 125.0° o0
Coparmn g 000 Ve Bidn w Goveer 125'0| S
300.0 ' O

The sorgbroed o Dtecbibe e o T o Z00 e
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
{continued)

4.6.2
Terms and debt repayment schedule

The terms and condilons of Cosnoar d cash @guealents ond cots? deding foans, we e as follo -

Effective Crarryir iy Contractual g 1to 211G REG] 4tz 5 yedcs
nterest rate walue cash flows <1 yoar <2 years <3 ygars =4 yoarc <5 years and over
9 m £ £m m £m 1t fin m
2018
Cash and cash equivalents Floating t32.2 t32.2 1322
US loan hotes 2018 7.61% (78.6} (84.1) (84.1)
US loan notes 2022 717% {11.7) {15.1) (0.8) {0.8) (0.8) {12.5)
US loan notes 2025 1.39% {135.1) (147.3) (1.9 {1.9) (1.9} (1.9} (1.9) (138.0)
US loan notes 2026 3.88% {97.7) (125.9) (3.8) {3.8) (3.8} (3.8} (3.8} (107.1)
US loan notes 2027 3.92% {58.6} (78.1) (2.3} 2.3) (2.3) (2.3) {2.3) (66.6)
US loan notes 2028 1.53% {72.1} {82.5) (1.1} 1.1} 1.1 (r.1) (1.1) {77.0)
Finance leases Vanous {0.3) (0.4} 0.2) {0.2)
Bank overdrafis Floating {82.6) {82.6) (82.6)
Total {404.5) 1483.8) {44.6) (10.1y (2.9) 21.7) {9.1) (388.7)
SO
Crashy ang by cgualent Fha ol g RN SET 4t
S ki notor 2018 394 Ty 1o h 1z n
LS Toan notes 2016 TE - =1 nh IBe D = b [
VIS bocurs notes 2 T RN (1540 [NR [ Vo oot [ERIEY}
S oat niotes 202 5 T A0 132 ) 140 Q) o e thos ey [ 11309
Fioane e lzgses e oy LAY Ny - ar
Bank ovcrtliatt Floocry 134 [RARYI 13100
Linsecioed Daans loan o adn oy 1A oAy [EO| [
Tolal '20b 2} L0 155 4 1y 20y 12 B) 30 "o 9,
Conrattual cash floves melooe undse on e L comnnttea mterest ¢ e Hogs st whore e amoant pavabile o not fixed e arount disgios el s detgr e g e

reference o the corditons existing ot e reportng date



4.7
Fair value
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Financial instiuments included in the tinancial statements are measured at either far value or amortised cost The measurement of this fair value can in some
cases be subjective and can depend on the mputs used in the calculations The Group generally calculates its own far values using comparable observed
rmarket prices and a valuation model using the respective and relevant market data for the instrument being valued.

4.7

Total financial assets and liabiiities
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et wEe vt table nnesimiert Lranke Counigp gt By

AT e Por s b e car oo e o il st srt=t el et met b eana et st rer g e S pes bacr e an e
ren value
Other Frarcal A Tots
Do g ated JBfratives acsels dt at Lt sad carning Far value
at far valug at tan value tar valle | Lost value if d Ferent
T P un £in L tm
2018
[ Ot R SRR L 132.2 132.2
Bavk e e drat © {82.6} {B2.6}
Bor oy me ane S e el {78.8) {78.8} (79.8}
Bon Tooriye de aFer ons oo {375.3) {375.3) {379.9)
Trade g otl er prey, abskes (396.4) (396.4)
Teo-tde i 2 atler 370.2 370.2
Inser mer I 2.9 0.8 3.7
Ctor aont fthane &l e ersdantar .
DIt 0 Lsalts 1.0 1.0
Detr atre e fabil s (3.5) {0.5) . {4.0)
Total @By (s 136.1 562.1)  (430.9)
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ot (L sneon delonle 48 b 3l
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Borow gz thig walbv une e s AR SE=] 1138 [AEREEY
Hor cwmie Aue afier one yeen 12590 leo*Qn oy
Trede and otned pavables" 1423 1 231,
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Ieouime te 7 140 [BRs) 13
O canmard fians o aose s bl g
Corvalng o-o0is” 7 11 11
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

Fhie flbee g tabile s e Sroaprs et o agtoments helo ad fae calie:

Quted prices n

Active Mmarkets Sigitcant
for entic al other
assets and observable Unobservatle
labiities rputs mputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tomal
€, £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2018
Financial assets measured at fair vaiue
Equity mshiumen's 2.9 29
Cash and Cash eguisalents, 1322 132.2
Foreign coneendy toraand cornac 1.0 1.0
1364 10 - __W 136.1
Financial habilities measured at fair value
Frarig o L rene o ¢ o e (4.0) (4.0
- (4.0) - 40
Az at 31 December 200
Financial assets measured at farr value
oty mstrgnen 32 SH 1310
Cash el Cashr ogpnsadenit Q80 a8 &
Forcign curreney for »ard conlrae 1o 41 [
101 8 41 Gogd [FE
Financial labikttes measured at farr value
Forewgn . urrene . oraand conteac & 139 3
- 13y - B39

CEgealy ndrurments cclate Toomestiments e fonde roroer Qo abisdy long-lenm sene il e getienle

Valuation techmiques for level 2 inputs

Dervatn e assets obdd bl 05 o1 01 On ana V3 O respec ively are vabued by level 2 technigques. TH e vaduations are derved rom ome outed contractial
cash floves using obserabide aad diree Iy elevant market intetest rates and toreign exchange rates rom market data ovie -

Valuation techniques for level 3 inputs

The Group has ne Foaneisl dssets v inanoal al It es roeasoces at B valoo as 09 signmeant ynobseraable evel Senpuds Tho valanion s derved usng the
cash flows of the nvestiment which nakates 2 tan value of Tl

4.7.2
Valuation methodology

Cash and cash eguivdlents bank ovendraft, Uadc payables and bade ree avables ate ¢3n ed al e book valies as this approx mates 1o ther fan value due o the
short-term natiee of the mstruments

Long-tenm «ngd shor-tenn Dorrcwiras apart frorm any which are subect to hedging anagements ae camed at amortised ¢cost as it s the ntention that thoy waill not
be repaid HIor to matlnty weere this epiion ox 515 The fan values are ovaluated Dy the Group bascd on parameter = such as nterest rales and relevant creda spreads

Long-ternn Dutrowver s whit B are subgect o hiedging arangements are valued s ng appropriate decount rafes tovalue the refevant hedged « ash Tows

Denvative assels and labimes, richoding foreign exchange forward coniracts, nterest -ate swape a0d metal hedges, are valued usibg cornparable otserved market
priees and o vak.ahon cecuel s ng formgrn exchange spot and forward races, nlarest rale curves and forward rade conves Ior ihe wndarlyng ©omnrosiles



Fair value hierarchy
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4.8
Market risk sensitivity analysis on financial instruments

This section shows how the farr value of financial instruments presented can change for a given change in market rates,

The values shown in the table below are estimates of the impact on financal instruments onty The nisks that these financial nstruments have been acquired
to hedge will move n an opposrte direction

4.8.1
Overview
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Financial derivatives sensitivity table
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oo cdrefiacttho o posttorae me et an e st s e oo e chanae on e peee the g bocanss it fes e deer eep b Liedae
* 1% 101, e,
decrease norease 0% 10% decreasen ngrease n
1N nterest In Interest weakenng  strengit ening base metat base metal
rates “ates N stening i sterling costs cosic
‘m £m £m £m m fm
At 31 December 2018
I act on mcone slaten entl Ings gam - - (7.1} 7.1 (0.4) 0.4
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.9
Retirement Benefits

ML affers a number of defined benefit arrangements 1o employees that will not be pad untl more than a year after the penod i which they are earned, for
example pension benefits, jubilee plans, post-employment and other long-term employee benefit amangements.

There 15 2 significant degree of estimation invohlved In predicting the ulimate benefits payable under these defined benefit arrangements in respect of which
the Group holds net labdties on (s balance sheet. Thus section explans how the value of these beneflits payable and any assets funding the arangements
are accounted for n the Group financial statements and gives details of the key assumptions upon which the estimations are based.

Assets and habities for defined contribution arrangements are minimal as they relate solely to short-term tming differences between the penod during which
benefits have accrued and when contributions are pawd into schemaes.

Defined contribution ('DC’): Arrangements where the employer pays fixed contributions nto an external fund on behalf of the employee (who is responsible for
making the nvestment decision and therefore assumes the risks and rewards of fund performance) Contributions 1o these arrangements are recognised m the
ncome statement as incurred

Defined benefit {DB’) A defined benefit pension plan 15 a pension arrangement in which the employer promises a specified annual benefit on retrement that

1s predetermined by a formula based on the employee’s earnings fustory, tenure of service and age, rather than depending directly on individual investmnent
returns In some cases, this benefit 1s pard as a lump sum on leaving the Company or while In the sersce of the Company rather than as a pension. The Group
underwrites one or more nsks N meeting these obkgations and therefore any net lability or surplus n these arrangements 1s shown on the Group balance sheet

4.91
Summary information

Net pension deticit: £52.3m {2017: deticit of £77.9m)
The g-vets anct abs I s ot b e e ned brnet Eachemes are aug: jated rocogmedm toe cor sobdated D lance shieed angd shoanr haon oo et bk
of neeorn curert assets fa e hene s sirplus sachil e deemed ren ooenable

Number of defined benefit arrangements: 67 (2017: £9)

The per oo of e bosest Seomgerneia by T raed die io e osan sap of a penacs o enne m e U
The 1 llownag bable s rtwes o cim oy 01 e geogag NI ot of the Grong, s defined tienent s hernes,

‘ Net Sumpius/
Quantity ¢ Quantty Assets Liatniity {deficit)
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Alstral 2’ 2 - 0.4 (0.4}
Aristina 6 o - 3.4 3.4
France 3 3 0.2 1.0 {0.8)
Gennarn 28 ' 28 6.9 576 (50.7)
Inda & | G - 0.8 {0.8)
lHaly 5, 5 - 2.8 (2.8)
Mixeo 6 0 - 0.4 {D.4}
Spran 2 2 - 0.1 {0.1)
Switerland 5| 5 64.1 77.6 (13.5)
1ag 14 1 - 1.4 (1.4)
us 2! i - 5.8 {5.8)
UK 1] 3 473.3 445.5 27.8
67 | 9 5445 596.8 52.3)

S The US def ot above exchades ©F i of assets relaunyg 1o unoual ted plans assitod as avestments sec Sochon 17
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4972
The UK and overseas pension funds

4.9.21
The UK Funds

The United Kingdonn constitire- 755 412017 85 Yot total detred be oft
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Contributions
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Overseas pension funds
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Spectfic effect on financial statements
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£m 'm 'm
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Income statement 3.9 (4.4) (0.5)
0oCl 12.2 {0.6) 11.6
Cash flow statement 10.1 6.4 16.5
Other movements - {2.0) (2.0)
Net defined benefit sumplus/{obligation) Tty T rmem e mr
at 31 December 2018 27.8 {80.1) (52.3)
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4931
Cash flow impacts

2018 2017
UK Overseas Total | U Oversgas, Totd
o £m £m £m : £m rm £m
SO BT ON e oo - 2.1 2.1 - o 2N
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Other comprehansive income
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post non-post i oLl [EVaR 14531
UK employment employment Total | JA amnployiment  eriployer t “otal
£m £m £m £ 1 om Lm L em
[T A AR TR 43.3 2.3 - 45.6 31 1 B0 2y
Coange nmntlato (3.1) (0.5) - {(3.6) S - [T
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2018 2017 2012
Years | Vears Yedrs
Life expectancy at age 65 (UK Funds cnly} |
Cunent male ponsoners 213 | 209 A
Creent fenale porseer - 243 ‘ ZAR 241
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Thie tatne badow thas tates howv thie Uk Funds net pencion surplo wouk decnaese The table heloa shove, e e not ension Aeficit e ML - non-Uke plas
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Overseas Overseas Overseas Overseas

post non-post post nen-post
UK empioyment employment Total UK employment  employment Total
£m £m m m £m £m £m £m
Current service oS - 4.3 0.8 5.1 - 51 10 01
Past serve e costored ) G4 (1.0} - (0.6} | 0 8) 1 01 14
SeWemenyoutiainient gan 4.2 {2.09 - {6.2) i) .8 - 16 5
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Overall reconciliation of changes in the net surplus/{liability) for defined benefit obligations
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2018 ! 2017
|
Net defined ot doefinod
Defined benefit | Lo on benent
benefit Asset asset/ heett Asget asaet!
obligation Assets cething fiability) | onligaton Arqets cehng {latuiity)
B £m £m £m £m m m e £
Brought forward at start of year (1,079.8) 1,002 {0.2} {77.9} Pt 15102 tag
Income Statement {charges)/credits
CLireat cen (e cost {5.1) - - {5.1} H - i 1)
Tacl e cud s phe ar b 0.6 - - 0.6 110 - - 1
Fagat w6 wlge 00-1 - con e - - - - S - - oo
Settiermert 436.9 {430 7) - 6.2 MR it T 1e
[ R N S R VI S S U A IV RS BT B |
tlatabalit o An e (22.5) 211 - {1.4) oo R - h
| ARSI U= (e N SIS TR S
e song- [enme Benefir __ {o.8) - - (0.8} iy - e
Total charged to iIncome statement 409.1 (409.6) - (0.5} CRaN g g - &3
Remeasurements recognised in other
comprehensive income -
Acturtabyg anane 1o AC.an3l D or o 2.2 - - 2.2 T T - 07
Acduaral G, oy g b Feraon
AVSUNIE IO Jhafiges 441 - - 44 1 JAN N AR NAT
Actuattabdoss ten due T omiogra [
AcsLme 16 Ohuangos (7.5 - - (7.5) A JEiCH )
Rearn ¢ Sl Acasts e~ ran Disc o Hale B (27.1) - (27.1) - ACRT - P
Crans nbtecs 14 et Celitng - - - - HE HOREH
Total remeasurements recogmsed In other
comprehensive inceme 38.8 (27.1) - 11.7 w3 24 [LOIAN 112 3
Darecoyn 1 cnof Scolttb Limined Partoerhigs - - - - - 18 in - 180}
Total recognised directly in equity - - - - - 80 - 118 0}
Cash flows n the year o
Emnployer contnbubiy - - 12.4 - 12.4 b6 [<X 8
Finployee Conbibatig s {2.1} 2.1 - - T ] - -
Bo efits and settlements pawd d cotle by the comypan, 4.1 - - 4.1 182 - - 1672
Benefizs pad from plarn avsets 38.4 (38.4) - - L AT H) -
Net Cash Inflow/Outflow 40.4 (23.9) - 16.5 645 38 V) - 218
Other movements )
Cranges 0 exchal ge tates 5.3} 3.2 - {2.1) 15 ey 03
MNews imraterial plan- - - - - mn - (AN
Total other movements (5.3} 3.2 - (2.1} KR R - Al
Carned forward at end of year {596.8) 544.7 {0.2) (52.3) © " O/ 1002 LA 17T

Net ot Cagrna s oo b
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.10
Share capital

The ordinary shareholders of the Group own the Company This section shows how the total number of ordinary shares In issue has changed during the
year and how many of these ordinary shares are held as treasury shares or in Employee Benefit Trusts, 1o be used to satisty share optrons and awards to
directors and employees of the Company, as part of employee share ownershi> programmes. This section also sets out the dvidends paid or proposed
1o be paid to sharehofders.

4.10.1
Number and value of sharcs

2018 | 201,

Ordinary } Cromsry

Shares ! Shares

28 4f7p per ©o284 Tpper

share \ share
- . . . Number {(m) Value (Em),  Nuimiber my) Vealue (£n1)
In 1ssue at the start of the year 286.2 81.8 ST oA 818
Izsued oy sabedy ongloyee share scnenie < (e8] - - -
In issue at the end of the year 286.3 81.8 RO 2 318

Al s Jree ol et 30 Decormbnr 20 TH e 0L proatares e e i gl o

4.10.2
Share movements N the year

Mowornents 1 bore ol T shier sendos and prure Bases duning e 00 waor e ae follog -
t =} Y

Number of ordinary shares of 28 4/7p each {million)

Employee
Benefit Trust Treasury Other Total
fssue at 34 Cecermnber 2017 1 143 270G 2802
New issues to satisty employee share schome anvards - - 0.1 0.1
Market parchicses 0.6 - (0.6) -
Shares allocated undan employee share soheme: {0.2) - 0.2 -
At 31 December 2018 14 143 2706 286.3

Duteg the vear L1m 2007 nil shaes weee maucd ooder amploves shue schomes real &g PO 6 (2017 76 amy

Employee Benefit Trust
e i ployee Benedt Trost mane market porchases of 0 wia of 062017 0 3m) hdaree wilh an agareaale noiket value o1 ©7 0m 201 P4 Mmnand o nominal
viltie of £ 210 {2017 90 1) Asaocated transaction cots amoented to Sl 2017 el

Share options exercised it 2018 were sottled aang the shates 1 (he Groop © Emplovee Benefit Trust 102058 0,.2m 2017 ( 2y shares were ssuod for cash
of £ Om 2017 130

Of the 15 7m /2017 =5 3m) shares held within relaned garming= 1 4m {2017 1 0m) shares wth an aggregaie market valoe ¢ £10 4m (2017 £13 Gm) are held
ntrust e sansty emaployee share scheme vastng
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4.10.3
Dividends

Ao e bal e s 2et Late A olle andg seeden s e ere prog osed by the dies or o The o e adds booses not been provided foc aro trere o2 ne orome
Telr €01 2Bl o
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£ | tm
.- U I o |
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.11
Share-based payments

The Group uses share option schemes to reward and retain its employees The estmated cost of awarding these share options is charged to the ncome
staternent over the period that the Group benefits from the employees’ services. This cost 1s then added back to retaned earmings, to reflect that there 1s
no overaitimpact on the Group's balance sneet until ¥ne shares are issued 1o the employees when the oplions are exercised

The indmidual share option schemes, the number of options cutstanding under each of them, the estimated cost of these options recogrused in the income
statement and the assumptions used i arrvaing at tns estimated cost are descnbed n this sechion.

4111
Qutstanding share cptions

A 31 Do ember 2078 oplions 10 pirchase ardinaty shares had baen granted 1o bt nol yet exercset by particpants of IMEshare option schemes as (ollows

Date of Number
3 . o . quant of shares Pnc_e N Dates trom which exeroisable
IMI Sharesave Scheme Wy 14 5513 1353 000 (108 7 ar ot 08 19
D506 15 o 135 1075 320 0108 18 o 01 08 23
20116 10 Jur d:0 e G1 U8 19 orid 08 21
Jtald, A1 088 11026 00 0108 20 ¢ 01 (8 22
Slubs 41 66" 1012 68N U108 21 or 0108 23
X 335,830
Glohal Employes Share oy i~ L3808 1087 0 1408 19
Furchase Pl 150818 h3 325 10483 15 08 20
77,230
IMI Incentive Plan 070515 19421 - 070517 or D7 0518
090316 17 488 - 0903 18 or Q03 19
CRcRN 7.3 897 - 0203 13 o (0 (8 24
120318 520,988 - 1203 200r 1203 21
2,461,794
IMI Share Qption Plan 220310 19,500 Ga5 00p 220313
230311 141 500 971 830 2303 11
UA 0517 YTB.B0L ol o’ LaOL 5
27 1112 12,200 1007 330 271115
120313 307 600 1322 70 12 03 16
721013 T4,000 1578 33p 21018
1103 14 302 350 1467 00N 1Mo3rs
1,135,950
incentive Plan {also known as Performance Share Plan} 201013 3,418 - 221016
Share Matetung Flan 2803 11 1,160 B 2803 11
Share Matek ing Plan 10035.12 38 264 - 100515
Share Maiching Plan (e 0413 1286 - 0804 16
40,720

Total 4,064,524




4.11.2
Schemes under which optiong
are outstanding

The vpiors 1 S a0 evste e lale tothe =llagang shate b oe |

sy rer Lschemen

iMI Sharesave Scheme ('SAYE')

o ante ot e e aps Useompl oe e dadine
thie execurp e che o and < v s tre st doptone b arte gt at
s e g e 200 hekos hieomiarket pre o Soaciee beres e et s alver s
[co3 N A T I e T e R AT s B A A P LI B oo o1 T4 Sl b of CEPY ST T

[RSRI Tl

I eme = eper o

ey ney e onn base ML chare SAYE S phio s mamy e oexon e el
SR ) oot et e date tee e ies cene oG 10 bk

Global Employee Share Purchase Plans (‘GESPP')

BRI AT

The e plans A Inloduee T LS s Syt
LIS GESPP: pvtw e 0wt b by s e AL ot e i

cfrreaale T oo Feran CEERPZ e -1 2 HIK Shre a0 Sot

R B L B R o PV B Y B O B T B S Y S T O S S AT IR I B LT

e ey THe S ZESPP .o sme b s b oa Gt T S,
Schores oot ey e gy e s et prer oroeen bt the Conbrae
haraion L sdxeipe el b oo s e et rasation con b ey

tor boe sx oo wn e No e 0 oAl @ ferad U e granred o e

thr Gowongy GESPP
IMI Share Option Plan {*SOP’)

Share Qrtal &y als geere ~oade o
o atwe ae g loyees ander the S0F T oese o ard- ae ol - e 1o

2L el e b ol e L agge - i
peefur 1oarce ¢ ohmahion s Bt s subyect toos three yod wos g oo T

pupiose of e SU
Ao ters e Corrpan o e apn ortonety 10 chare podbe tenstts of whare
PN e st g e

o ghe selected MEempl ees vt o arg o srooutiee
o abver A arebal g

iMI 2005 Long-term Incentive Plan (also known as Performance Share
Plan (‘PSP

Avvards have hoan g antea 10t e Cornaany s caeoutis det tors and el
serilut v agers vt the Group Anards have beeng 2 tel Ly ot fo

stretehing perforarce Logels the nature of ~rach ailfers, dep.end ng upien
e year mowhier e award » &8 aranted . Notuther &ovards oar be granted

0

weodder the PSP Tee culatanding =8P ar ads pall oxpare « 200,

LT
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4.11.3
Other share-based payment arrangements

Thie daroup slso ope ates 100 folln, nog emiploy =0 200 plares

Share Matching Plan {'SMP’)

Tt cleher ot the esecalve vieUln s wrdd colecto b oor v oo e ol
bonusas g ermed o he n eaddaal s aciievemend ola Share T e
Grdelre SUG T Tre SOG L aegaesicnt o hr kdapencerane of alary

a- IMEshares andd b ackiesed oo Bony s patce e st TRe SRE e Been
opcrated o the cwisthat Tihe 876G o attie.erd oot ooty of o v ant Ll
Bowvs woll e o anedecor |y e feieed ton 0 or-am oy gty e Aeliesred o BAL oy,

wooer e SME Thee e L odated nvestrert it th SO5E C nie acr e el hag
boon mab hed nom T3 ae g ek o 00 T oese vLo ory shares
ol e eaned peetoirane £ oo iy s o e the e ey e U o

o et

Snlmorgen places e Sal o be ol e rarl o detor adl ot

cHtbe o mae o7 o o Bl o an axpernan
ol 1007 Gt Tevan g b al - - et
LT T S T A I S e O O L T Jheogre

I NN U S L o | FTCI L TR R P SRR AT | R R R TR R N RS RIS

S e T O VOSTNG e e art et

The pretlofmatee rea v we S8 Tac aya T e ol

thie et e e the awara - as graated Ploonarlb o coarddccare be a0 ofed

ot e ShiP

Share Incentive Plan {'SIP’)

The S gz open o ine Nkt By of the Gronee s U ome oy ces ancluoang
the e uteee Aicai This SCR0ME COVOr B O separae Oppa bl for
plowvees o o dra s [BAL oo as e llows

IS

* Partjic s
from pro-tooe ey sl sed b buy Pl ey

1y chenes = alloy emp o, ees tor vest s b ibe s b rond max nien

s Fige shares — alb o as a grant of shres to pinploses - eacs year up to the
Siot by maxinuin

Sha os acoored or avaraed under he 3P are ol Dnoect Icertarmanag
cordd buns and ofter 1ax neenives 1 enG rags Cinplovess 1o nuild up i er
~he e oledings ath L e Sompany

The IMI incentive Plan {(‘lP’)

i bght af the expary o0 201 of bob tee =5F ond SME e P vear odn oo et
to act as e Comparny, & wale senies axet u e oiwg-Teon bd oot tlan The
et e svambrelle phorwboc s Al < the Gompan, tog b olflerent type
of vy ol ta differert = ploves gre paaan efiicens ooy e 1P is 1o be o ed
atiilly t arant Porfonman e Share fagards" o e pech gl onde ang oo,

toy e exncull @ orecbor, andd ¢ thiec epamiber. ol sstgon M agen @l et
topnenmean e coned o an The QY sl ab o bie b annlby o opant bBanee
Shae Seeardd - bt boarale s | e el <l qraes e Gampars the abalts
togranl He o o 31k Ul fevcdre - ane ' Share opoons B o ly
oo that Bend
arented i re qaon e to o Tk boanee s acoprareemien

Cr S ok U L ewends anv s are cpbione salb ool e
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.11.4
Options granted during the year

Number of Waighted

ophions average Namal
granted opion  axercissble
{thousanal rce date
SAYE
a1 31 100, 208 DY
2048 100 1013p 2021-2024
GESPP
2017 S0 T Auid
2018 54 1409p 2020
e
2017 942 - 2013-0020
2018 835 - 2020-2021
411.5
Movement i outstanding options in the year
Optiong
granted at
Options ~ot granted at nit cost ' nit ¢ost - Total
: Number o We ghted Number of Nurnber of
aplions Range of average oplions oplions
o . {thousand} ooliort prices  option prce (thousand) fthousand)
Cutetancttigg al 1 Jor Uity 2017 2,044 J41-1512p 1150p 2 oloz < 581
Exercisabile zt 1 Janary 2097 1,235 J1-1528p 1128p 108 1,341
Granted 81 06 -V 100p 102 ip Q42 1023
Exercleed 193 G45-138p 955p az ZT7
Lapeed 267 345-7467p 1242p 520 8y
Culctandhng at 31 Decermiber 2017 1,718 141-1516p 11620 2802 4 820
Exercisable at 37 Decoinber 2017 1,340 141-1518p 1218p 113 1,458
Granted 153  1013-1049p 1026p 1,222 1,375
Exercised 164 441-1322p 989p 68 232
Lapsed 153 845-1467p 1208p 699 852
Qutstancing at 31 December 2018 1,555 645-1518p 1162p 3,257 4,812
Exercisable at 31 Decambar 2018 1,156 §45-1518p 1229p 128 1,284

Cpticns ~ot granied at nil cost inchide option- grantea ander the tollowing schemes IMI Sharesave Schane Global Empluyee Share Purc haso Plar: and
NI Share Opt on Plan
Oplicns aianted at nil cost are those granted under the Pertort ance Soare Plant Share Matching Plan and IV i enive Plan



4.11.6
Share-based payment charge for the year

)

Fetol-dereense o o s o b e vear ansing torm shiare -Daseo payre nls
voas SR IZOIT Vst Ahor camps

for e e r o e o gt fT3 TNy 2007 TS0 e pect ob [apees

VA Tienrats O aro of the total charge and 22 Gin 017 2P T imibut the oAl
Crelt = e T ot options gra e D dirte e e

411.7

Share-based payment valuation methodology

Tie falr value ol oo 1 vcan et b b= onhion graned are
RIS

by reletce to e tar vtue ol b cplo g baredon a

Heok-Sonnds oo rgnaadsl Thea sue plons u ed o grandsn 218
wolitea o wkalyelkdol 4 0T 35 s ecteg aladre =l
chon 217 7T el ea e oxpinlad b o a D e Lo T

S e bt e eigh e e g e drabecra w017 1T Tle
cope tedd olith el Toved et b e tal plabilt s oab i e LA d

o seabre s e tygn e A nd o fhe shere opt e s tech o ey

capelted b ger sabiee Clatdt, cne s Lbboh il ke e forenaton

Salharge o 712G 2t 13 0

4.11.8
Other share-based paymeant disclosures

The welgaled aeeluge 10maning eontras ial iie o the shate oohion
Ut 0y gt at 31 Decembe 2018 -6 18 vea 4 12707 6 63 yea sy,
ar e g b aamage fal s aae OF Shere Cphor s gr e Ted i e
At pard Dae e 310 V0T 1 B

The sewghtecs o oray =hare nce @t fae oatc o1 Ca0ros & ar s s

GG exew e rn g the vear v VTS 0T 10 2
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Section 5 — other notes

5.1
Contingent liabilities

A contingent hability 1s a hability that is not sufficientty certain to quatify for
recognition as a provision because significant subjectivity exists regarding
its outcome.

Srovps s ontingent | absiiies relating 1o gus e tees n e bor - ciuee o
Euastty- andd otbes tamms amou e 6 F132m 2077 C10

5.2
Related party transactions

Relatad partes are solely tha key management personnel. The Board s
considered to be the key management personnel of the Group.

2018 ! 2017

£m L

Sthon-ter employes berehls 5.1 o2
Sharo-fe 0o pavments 2.4 z2 1
Total 7.5 du

* Short-tenm emplovee benetits cotnp-¢ salan g cmployors sl
contriebens ponctts earned durmg he vear g bongeos ayeied for
e et

“For detals of 1re shiaed based paynent ¢ arge ot key 1 dragemen
personl seesoectond 116

iheie are no other related porby rare o Y opre

53
Subsequent events

Events that occur in the period between 31 December and the date of
approval of the anayal report can be categonsed as adusting or non-adusting
depending on whether the condition existed at 31 December, If the event 1s an
adjusting event, then an adjusiment to the results is made. If a non-adjusting
event after the year end 1s material, non-disclosure could influence decisions
that readers of the financial statements make. Accordingly, for each material
non-adjusting evenl after the reporting penod we disclose the nature of the
event and an estimate of its financial effect, or a statement that such an
estimale cannot be made.

Thoe viere ro adusting subseyuent events after the balance shieet date of
3% December 2018

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

5.4
Significant accounting policies

A. Subsidiaries

1he SGroup fancidl si=toment, cor sodidate the froar fral tatements cE IV plo and
a2 s Leantrod whe ks adiane - B e L ear 1o 30 Docamedr The Group bat
ra) s arnfic ant iInfesest wNer e ac courded Jar A< assne e o ot ve nires,

Sumaichanes wecansabkd el o e date ot g Loyt e the o te o
shic the Gretgr of tans control and cor niie 1t e consokdated w1l the date
thel sin e ontrol Coates Contol e ompnses the povwes (0 govern 2 Brary ol oned
Optling prolicies of e peestet so ac b oblan baneht cor s ac e angd

A bwenact hongh Jrec Los mrb e Lo emeny o vating ghls cueently exer sabke
o ~onvetlible pelentid voling ngh s ¢ by weay of con‘tac tuad agreement The
nari al stufemete 0 sobsid Lhes useu nchie preparchon of the consoledated
finanicidl staterer s are prepated ior the same epoe ing yeat as the parent
oMY and are Dasec o o Ssient s ounting Pohoes Al oo balane e
A raneaed ong g oding Liediiseo proli's arsing frong ihem ae slimnated m 1

A cha a0 e ostwe bk orest o o b -whary pab vt bass of Condrol

L ancc o ted for as it equity ransaction It the Sroups loses control over a

sobsichary ot

s derceogiine s e an et e bichogg oy gooche relatingg to e cnbeaciand and
Tabsl e s fthie by ddiary

& e e Ogrimes e CJdnyIng aniounk o dany non-¢ oG e teves

& derocoghlses e curmalatne boanslation dierences ecorged e og ate

® o OgnieCs e fan satae of the oo wadonadio ocered

»recogniees the fan value ot ar y nvesty entietaned

®rerognines &y cunpias o deticn i prom or ke s, and

* retiasshEs e paents St O Cornponents Dreviceasly recogn sedhin other
COMPPRensme Neomea 1o profit or 1055 O tetaned eqnings, as asprophale

Feowationn e e al ove e ounting wtaes workd alho Bered e
waere appleable

B. Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of tnarcidl statements roguires Nanagement to male
dgenents, estimates atwd assamptions that affect the appication of
accounting policies and the teported wricunts of asseis, habififics,
ncome anc expenses  Actud 1o ults may ditfer from these estimates

1 Key jdgements

Classtfication of adjusting items

BManagenient bz apnliecd udgernenl e the selecfion of the Alteradne
Per‘ormanc e Measures « APMS'} Lsea i the Annual Report and Acoounts
The APMs presented are used N die cisions vaih thie investment analy ot
community and by the Board and rr anageniert o monidor the tradng
perfeimance of the Group We consader thatl the presentation of APMe, allows
for mproved msight 1o the tradng performane.e of the Group The aciustng items,
in the mcome statemerd ingdude restractunng oo ts, wpecidl pension events
gan Aosae s an disposals of subsidianes impannent lo-ses the teversal of
QanS0SLas DH EUONDITIL HRUYS™ gans on property deposads actusmion Losts
duired INtang bl amortsation atkd other acguis tlon ttetn- See Secton 2 2 for
further cetail~ of the items that are clasaified as adjueting demrs

it Key estuniales and assumptions

Tha wey estimites and scsumplions concen g the tue =t ot e solncos,
of estimation uncertairty at the seporting date are descnb.ed belo s The
Groa bases ts assumptior s and astimates or nformation ave lable when
e consalidated imancial staterments are prepated  Market changes o
GO P are TG BE o e conidd ot e Stopr are et d ntbe
Asacmptionss danel estimates wher they oo Resigions to acotnti g

Cetin o are ecogn e codnthe penocs reskich the estenate i resasoed
andn any fieue peor ode aticcted



Irmpanment of non-financial assets

P e e bt he carr, g valie olara el an e rege eating ot
exg ety e oee able anear ©ov i boe be higrer ot i abae e eae <oy
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moat ]l S s wreder e s o Ibe Crooes don g-tonn hores e o for hie aesd
thiree ovedre The accessr =l pertonne Seere g aterally nee e

R N FRAR
et g e sed m e oo pear Toe pancaeal key estmate refle to
Poe At Umpton I 1ese Cak Ulal G are ne dong=tert g entes and the
Chae Ll A s ool lind 1o o cas cash e vanguarron o he acnecenrent of
trm v qg _henizel g Fuir e e o on the st plon acopied or
Foaterab cssn genet g ua s ardd e sl alectrd o aear Sechor 302

b ge e nder by grosthoond o et L nn

Trading prowsiens
e Groaprse 2 A range ooy | iedtcdbproddoc s e et ey

cedr el shd 2 rgner Sl o a g deg ec 0% srec ke an s b L

e

R NaFU (SN N - |

LT e e T, s b b an lead

bt pmunda
Lot ity (s Ax00%, an Checlete teentoe o] foli-ae o sk etcaning
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s o et oo 1t complete g d

ol et A Lo Ll e ad s e e fnd [N R

he st te cacollection rek o whess Teoocal e e 6

Ihe aegree o oepecden e o fuliee 2 0nts ac o e timate nilbeenty
b e This A onnte o the fradht ey proas cns e caoe e bororeeton, I cde
res ekl e pron e e e e i S0 g 20
Ar Secon 3 nmpect ],

1 Secton- 12

Emptoyee benelits

The patesent il e o he Comprs aetrc e p e ow phorear A odner poed-
cinploy ent e cftts are asteneed i ng el salshens v act anal

val b b ek s D KINSE VAN A ub gy Thal e eler on ac toed
cle clopenonts i the dobuee The > lde e aeternmin b roof the o o
Fate, nflaton e« dar, oo wes amonaling rares Aol T tire penann e rea e
Hhe asarmption Lse 4 sng anal,or o her seoratnty o leded in ectitnn 16
Duec o the complox by of the valuaton an 1 jong-"ern nature, aacinern
benefit obligate nr- ignly Cosdn e o changey i Thnae aeTumest o

- Changes in judgements, esttmates and assumphions

Fanageres:t bave rodassesae, e by worgements and estin a e oresented
irthe 2017 Annual Report a-d Accormts and condiudes: “hat 1 e ~unent
yoar he only cra geequied telaes o the e tmuees ancd udger ents oppl &
nuw dladahior of 1 tangible asbets g rom e BErntia - Cousmon vt

v omipleted donng 2016

Valuation of acquired Intangible Assets

In acosnd gy for st ess co il ons the doentifianle asset hab it e
areleondingert bl oe arquied ave e meactred ab e T Al 0
pattic Lyt e -lintale s Boenmeade ol the forecest fotrre <akes e sre-

v sl e e ed rERIone hing v b b fy = e el cennited b o g 2 as
Aot e

t

Loy valngy b o omimes¢Cal ielaoon- s ar dbaeordnd s

caneertmry g guradicsns andd brpsee o coabeniatey o an o dling dne echinn oo

C. Revenue Recognition
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I. Sale ot goods
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Section 5 - other notes
(continued)

At talbiecoandie by gees sl Bneas e at ost kaus any aCCmmulated
npnarmens ocses ot he parpose orampariment testng goadall aconared
1 d bdsiness combnation s nom toe aocpi-ito date, allocated to each o
Hoe Stou e cashi-genierding anits o grouns of cash arnerat g anitss that are
expo ted 1o baved foe Hie comi mabin ™ racpe hee ol whather otbvr asuet
o diabilmi= s af e L guiee e assignedss o those s Eac oot o grangp o°
aniks torwehie b oocbealh iz sllog ated shall reprresent the [owest = eol votban the
entiy ab wric! e grorba il s cndored for mternial mariagement o @ e
dncd shall not bedorgen D an Spetatite -ogroent Deb e aggreg dirn

Vihiere goodhll formi- prart 0F o Ca-* -gent lng unit et paet of the anciation
wWIIN that unat s rosed of 1he gogreall assocated b the oper - on
chrapened ot e hded o the Cartang amaount 3l e Oper-ec s alic
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Section 5 — other notes
(continued)

Faur ol by at o exats e reca e rdble armonr tot e ar ot o all ass
sthin s Cashgener stineg unit 1 o-tmated Anomeareae L lnss e agneed

wheneser e Car gl g aro nt Of ardassea’ or ite cast genatste g ounit e«ceeds 1
Te vverable amoont hipdi entiosse s areetugiy & e hier Come iaensent

Far gocdwall and assets that e 1ol vl avatiable 01 use, e e oven wile
amount s ey Lited at nach balkince sbheet date

I Calculation of recoverable amount

Frereeoverable areonnt of the Group s racen abl= other than man ol 3o p
holdd ot farvade s caloolafed o the pre-eni Lalue Texgpectes titre ashi o e
el ondwers b R O Omal e en derre e inhe ond e e e w4
sediv e <horl auratior ot le s the ore e e el 3o it

AL AR

Trereconerabie ar-ount of other assets s the areater ofthet “an calue less couts
o selland value nuse ko cosuing valum e age antinoeacin sl assesoment
made of the estrvated future st tlosn s gonerated 1o cart Coash gencoatneg unt
hasad upon Me lstest Group forecas™ and « strapolated oxng oo = propnate
lengg-teren oroeathi rate or sach cash Qo Orating il m e pet ity co
~bvan estimgte of 1o el it geow oot longeterm 30F Qo b Trooe
At diso ot ted o ther presold alie unig @ pre-tas dise onnt rate thet ofie, t
CLNONT MarKe! a-seraman s of the tnae valuo of manes anent ezl speciic
to the asset Managemont belowo that t s aopro-a by i L g voe ose of

the relediree cash flow praeetan s apprait &' Base L opon, hothy = wtantal
EXPRAICIN & 3 O DeT SN T 1L one o 00 bases Mgt agerment utlhse e oL aliare
thie far value of ghestment opoortirete s For anass™t thal dos not ges erate
largely independent cast nitleas fe reconeratile amonnt s detenmmed o
e otallont Coanl gencaig it bk Lo e e dhiantoag”

i1 Reversals of impawrment

A regquiren: by JAS Go dngiemient of Assol - imiparmanl of guodaall o
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0. Dividends

Finat dividends payable are recognie nd as @ lability at the date at wiuch

they are approved Dy the Company's shareholders or by the subsidiary »
stareholdors » regpect of dradends 1o non-contGling ntoests Intenm

dnadends pay«abie ate recagrised on the date they are declared

P. Investments not held for trading

Ihvestments that are dewighaded as bemg nol hehd for lracing e e ibeally
recogoisad at lar vidue Subsequently te lar valas of the mvasimenl s
reassried o ealh balance sheet dato vah movements n the far value
recogrsed in other compretensve noomme

Q.Employee benefits

1 Defined contribution pension plans

Contnbutions to defined ot vubon pension plans are 1ecodnned i an
expense i the ncome statement as ncurred
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I Defined benetit pension plans
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pronl o loce arthe eatier of he aate o e plan apeadmen i or artaliment
arnd the da e thal the Group recegneer resiiie nng-related cosls The
st rabe 1 e yichd =1 the bals ce s eet date ot high qually corpora e
Lot ds o1 e apro i e curerne, diat bee crabions aprroxmating tho- =
ot the Groop s obiigations The cal algion s pertormed by o qualhed aotoan
usitng the progec tou unil crecit met! od Whse hie caulaton results © q aet
assot to e Broup e recognisod asset 1o Innted 1o the pres erl vafue of aryy
tu ure resends frar thie plar o redo hons- n edare ¢ ontnbution s B the plars
ancd restnicted by 20y redevand asoet s eiling Any dedu tamde Dy toe rax
Authontios il e eend OF arrelune aF g stiphs L eult be regarded by the
Groun, -8 anircome tax

Whien ihe b efl o ob o plan e o] (Ee e e g en
nnrnedficdr ko beeone ome skaternent Re-cceaoecer ent gamne s o
e, gne ey e cehatedy wvecpny and d o edd o the Statem e 1ot

Cortpyehense e

- Long-term service and other post-employment benoefits

Thes Grosaprs niet chlygation i respect of fang-tert set e and o her st
omiplo,me thapetits olher thonrensios tlans « the amonr t o' ke beaedr
mat emiplovees have earmea it retum for ther serace n e anent ad prioe
penicas Trecbhgation e caloul “ea ssmg the projecaed it reat v et d
aned 1n dine o e ote presenl vale ated 1he tan valae of any elated aisels
= tech e The ciscoant rate o the yield al the bela ce o0 vet date on bigh
tualty hoacks of the apsropnate cureo ey thal have furations approsamating
tnose of the Gro .p's oblyations

w Equity and equity-related compensation benefits

i Grotip operates & amher of oguny anc eqgumy -relatod compensatcn
Benetls as set out 1 Secnon 7 1 The far vdlue of e smplovie services
rocenved i exchangs for the grant ot the options s res ogriserd as an cxperse
cach year The total amount to be expersed over the vesting penod e
determined vy reference to troe tar value of “he ootions griantod, exclliding
the 1 pact of any non-miatket esting « onditions ifor example, profitablity
and =ales growt targals) Nor-matket vesting cond tions are in luded in
assumpbon= st the nomber of options that sne expected 1o becone
exercibablo The far value of the options = deteriirned based on t-e
Blachk-5¢ heles aption-pricing a0 ol

A each balance sheel date, the Group revises i1s gstimates of tre rumber of
o o hat are expected o vest e ognesn - ihe mpact of heovsior of
otginal estimates fanv inthe ircome statement

For riewly 1ssued sharos, tha proceeds reconaa net of any direclly aftnbtable
lansaction coste e gredindd to share captal (nonunel valuey aro share
premiun whon the options are cxorcised
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The directors present their report, together with the audited financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Enbeag and o 50 Zerempr 2 18 ave o prod e aate cHbas Bepos e
Changes e w0t g terests have Deon notillerd o the G mpa, 15w sorcand
wththe U sore Guadarce @ d e paren: o B e WMaca bsells Fin oot
Set cen Somtare Bas nothed a occease mthen beldng o 1o QG Art-an
Parferss _inuteet Fantnershi s notimca o norease n toer hokding 1o 1007

Avdar av Lo Sompany 13 anoate there ars i et sons aith suistaryal holor ge

e Soimpds s o'he than those norest bove

Statement on corporate governance

The reapared diaclon res are to o e the o tate Gosetn oo o sepiee
orpages A b S and dren teporeteo b i Dec on 0 lepeet by eteren

Employee engagement and diversity

Ewvery etfort 1omade to ensure that aepd coabos for enplovinent tron o salded
employers e folly and lady consadered ana that desacled enplioyees have
equial opnortunly i trarilhig, s s esskn plare ity and romoton For hee

= lostres relatng to emiployee dnersity oo ployee engagetnent i related
pobicios wre el out onpages 38 1o 24

Details ¢ fomplo,ee slae o emes are o Jut o e benier cret on Bepuat
O Page CE L e Seclior A1 of the bpane D tatermente vnpager Y30

t 133

Health, safety and the environment

0 Grovp polcy o ngprese continaously sate and bealiby, rorking o dinons
A to opende ey o aruronrentally fesosedale cianner

Cour carbe o reporhing gro s Lot e O porforia e e vt imipagcred e 201¢
by thie g itasatror of Benbyy 2006 - GO U0 203017 - 38,500 2008 - 63 000
O a ke for bke b ass exd uong Birba onir 2016 o7 iss10ns weie n ine vath
2017 CHthe 2018 total ow direct;Scops 1) ermissns, of GO roacntially gas
diewol and tuel ol ¢ snsuned amounted to 17,720 tonnes Our mdnect Scope
2) enissir & o 0O L essentially the enuss ons generdiea on o behall to
provich ot clectie . amounts o 45,250 fone e

I aduhion to gross tonnes ot CC o werepont CO o ntenaitv relatve to £ milion
Sales, onnresultior 201815 33 0 On ke tor Tke basis excludn Bo ha CO e
intensity was 32 3 1o 2018 wnic s an o mprovement elative 1o the 33 9 we
acteeved in 2017 when restaten on o constant cutency Deasis 217 repontad
ficpune of 33 4

Ve plan o drve further: savings noowr CO @ enigsions by 1 preang continuously
e Condilion of Our sifes AN PNstTNG G0l PINCes-0s ale Loan and sustar abile

Our CO ¢ accounling methedology ol sws DEFEA guidelies dn e fudes
all material eim ssong acreos IME See page 42 1o lurlher CO e and energy
elncmngy detlals

Political donations

NoO polt cal doat ons were made doning the yeor

Directors

Ihe memharsh p of the Board and biographic o detads of e dirsctors ae
given on pages 52 and 53 ard are incorporated inke this report by reference

Thie rules for the appointrer it and replacernent of dircctors are =6t o in

e SoOMpany . articies of azsouaton, Each vew, appomntee (o 1me Bowd s
required 1o stand for glection ot tbe next Acnual Genenal Meoting followar g thea
apponbnent i cdowon Lo Company s abicles of assooation requre sach
throctor to stard for re cloction at loust once vy three vew s Howewdr, 1)
AL ordane oz the UK Sorporade Governand e Code 2018 tthe ' Cooe v wd
dire tors wishie g e senve agan will submit themselves tor re-elocior -t the
nesd A, al Gene al Meehing ang are raeommendaed 1o re-election

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Qualifying indemnity provisions and hiabibty insurance

The Compeatny, miairtans dirae ors and oftcer natility nserane @ aned all e crore
Ot = Coriprary Bong it trar opalfoe o ted pary indormnty reevisions stuch e ere
i place dung the noancial yoear Al the date < the Annual Report thore are sich
ety artangement sl cachorre oy e oo et of the Loste ST detacdng
el onmir al and recn gt sny procerdic g bronght ag arst hiem as a drectr o
erplo,oe bt aly e o the hrgtanane <ot by the Gorr panios 40t 2600

the Geroupy opetates pers ar soheme s 0 the Ui ach provicdo rearetnent and
death benefic foo enployees and imen e ployest of the Group Tr e corporale
thaztee ot the ponsion sob emes 10 IMEFensiors Tiust Limiter o subsistiany of th-
Cornparty ol g eenson =cher e =ity praovision s as aefines s ection
235 ot the Zompa ey Act 2000 wec in foce ki the tran ol vear ended 21
Decemper 28 and eman v teres for the benell o eachoot the drerors ol

the ¢ oo at= tisiee o the peral o schemes Theus noamniy Drovions ¢ over
10 the extont pommitted b Lo certan koss sy o habalbes e ared a- adiee tos o

offic e of the - orporate e ee of the pensio sohanies

The Groops al- o has i plac e tond party Qualityinag mdeimnity pros s o

as doted e section 207 ot oo Jompat 1es Act 2006 aour ot ortan
erplogens who d s, bet Qe tes o sibil s Lo vano e wholly-c aneer s obaid ary
Cortpanues and the=e praernnities are cln 0N d s v lar s o W aby e

Role of the Board

The role of the Board

s opnrnee helor gelenm arie et ob the Company o ine benstit of t rieenibaors,

<10 Lnderstand the wie - ot ey ctakeholiers ancd rece s eagagemen
P Fran fes

& 0 2g oo e the Compiar /L es, puapoee and - ategy and o s e that
theee asd s cultvee are abgr ed

s e elect e st e Dxrecutive Commonntee and onuie thal the necessars
foooute cr, e aenbable o inen,

® o o1 slite Bt e Compaary o oblige! ot toshrehohiees e nnderstood ar el

s L demoncttate ethie al leadosshp and begh standard > of Dohiaviour ard to
OEGEe0 GOV oL e, 1Sk and the confral emeraniriant and

¢ to eraure that the Baard has the pol oes, processes, nformation, hime and
resoure s neocs o func o ofirct ety ane effrcontly

The Board provickes leaclo ratin . direction 2 governgnee tor the Comprany and
OvOrsees hsness, and Mmanagemen® partonmans e Tt e Brard has adopted

a coepcrate govarnanse ramewsork wiuch dofines Boars weles snd ineLioes
the fist of miattors reservod to 1 and writte™ delegations of authorty for ite
camiuittees and the Frocutive Ge mmitted Board resroved mattors s lude
slategy and key arcas of prolicy, nigjot operatior al anct strawgi, ik Signinean.
s Aot oKy s arkd iseder 3l hanges i the aegaosation of thw Grongy

N the IMECorpanate Governand e Framework ftevised in 2018, the Bow d
has ¢laatly defined 1 wridirg tose matters whoh gre resesved 1010 and

the respective delegated authorities of s committees and i1t as also wet
sriten hmits of authorty far the Chief Executve The Group has o rlear
Orgaiimationa stiuclure dndd wail-estabhshed reportng and control disciplines
Managers of operaling units as-ume respongsibility for aad exercise a bugh
cearee of auronomy N running day-to-day iading ac tvities They do this
within a framework of cledar rules polices and oelegated authonies regarding
botines.e conduel, aproval of propouals 10 i estment ad mutensl changes
It openalions and are sobiect W reguiar <enor Managen et ievien

af petonnance
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Directors’ powers

The pooverrs 2F the diractons are astermrmed by Uk deagn Db ana e arlcbes
at accocion st the Company © oree o unie o ime The drectors v ere
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Information to be disclosed under Listing Rules 9.8.4R

Listing Rule Detall Section
reference
of financial
statement

9.8.4R (1-2){5-14) Not applcable -

9.8.4R (4} Long-term mcentive schemes 411

Internal control

T2 Board has r@spons bty B o e g ot the Tooup s ays'en of tdenal
control und Connms that the system of i1 tereal controd tases mte account the
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T aces Bl b spsatw e aneb et i O Dhianics Tkl s 40 epaeeds
SUITITRAES are I Narde suatlal e o e Bodes the Aodd Gonimilles ard the =xe, oo

LCommittee 0 enat e con ol ohues and desetopriants o e rionioaed

SOMTIGEH GO Dsaes T ™ w0 U TIPS FL e TR B R A s

1o eddapt thom oo he changing nelopole o opoatons and (o implement
Proporion e meas nes 10 wddbess 4y dontficd . edknes< e the mernad
control svetet More nfc izt anin colation 1o ok is greet O payge o undern
thie beadiny How mcmanage nsl. The internal Contof aecla ation 1ocnss

15 tlly cvnbecloiod araf onanley o grosement Inc2ontial throwagt |ean wal set
sz @E-ar s or all cpotatng anils AcTon plae s U insrove canbiols s ores it
OF thene at30s3met 15 e oy el hed an diepored o b Akt Corea ifice

Trrouah thie proovdures o e e be e e Boand Bas core s eced the

effee veness of all sigmific e aspecls ofinternal control for toe sear 2018 and o
fer the thabe ol e Aongal Seport The Board bedeves o e Grows ™ spstem of
rrermal contol whoh g deaiy ed 1o maage 1o hen e eliranate sk provides
teabUr able Dot not abssc Tute ausran @ agar s metenal miss tateiment or ose

Financial reperting processes

Toa ge ot the Grangrc aeconn e 0 atsad and e cri v 1o bingg
JEGURCT CNTs Py indniee f2an . Heoagt out e Gronpr e mportant s
Crsuong et U e Grons s dccounting pobors aie oy estaphichen e
rat Informatnes s appmoptarely 1evie 230 and reconc fed as fart ot thae
reporting process T ause o a smandard 1opontr  taloge by all antitie-
WY R Sroup ensnres hat nformanor s prosc toehin a ool mtan U pay
that tac iitates The prodae ion of o onsahdaten fioane gl statements

Viability statement

M ae coedane eanth e VK Corprorate Soeemee s o Code U dire Tors, buse
aszear el the viaby ity of hie Gomipar v aredecant penod, Taking 1 o de eotdne
the Grouys s maneial o b ading postion as <. nmansedd i tos Annual Report
the principal nske and uneetantios se ot o paues 16 16 20 and the five-
yoar BUsSINes- plan 1evewed by the Board in Septemboer 2018 Baseu on th
dnse stent and athor roabeers cong desed and e eed by the Boad the
chrectors con mm that they have a reascnable expectation thet the Gompany
sall e able 1o corTnue 10 operati and meat ty labibhics as toy tall due over
the perod from the nate of Hus Aninual Report to 31 Decembor 2023

he ducetors have detesnined that the panoa 10 31 Daceniber 2023 ¢onstifutes,
AT anpropaate poric oves wihin 11 ro make it asseccment of vability, Whist the
crectors have no rerson 10 holeve the Compary will nat be viable over a longot
tming bionizeo. the five-year per o 1o 31 December 2023 wa- chasen as
allgna ath the Gompary, s busines. ang Aratogie planmung bming Lotizon and
A ensible ponod for such ar assossment [ s beloved thes poned provides
rotders of the Annual Bopot wathy wn aoovopaatoly long-tonm wovs aith wh s

t s oss the Compdny < proo pects atthough lune outcome s <annol e
prodited widy Lorainty

i pntakinig il s geament, he Board red v ased e ponsopal ishs facny

the Somypeay 1 Tlcng those tnal would hreaten its business model, futuie
pertornnang solvency or ikpdity A Sumiary of these nises <an be found or
pages 46 10 49

The: five yor business plan was Jsed 1o assess the heanroom on the
Company's facimies #1107 10 shess test ongoing coveosnt compliance under
seenanos where ts pondpal tske Tatenalise The analvsis ¢ onsidered hoth
NG DN sS sk, sl T a5 FocuCINg Ve Les SN nidrgins, as well as
one off e.ont nsks such as prodact ecalls. The Boad also consdared the
Compary s abulity torase capytal nothe inee as soll as both the ongoing
AUH0 Yo UNUTTaken T prevelt s curenss ad e polenibal achons 1o

Nt gate the mmpsae b of oy particutar 1ok,

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

The thres Was o oregougrod anember oF he, oat s of e Somg ey s
opseiations The Gompdn, = wigde googn s al and sector Civersiic ation - d the
lac kv of & wngle mapor prodacon <o, rclp e s he sk 0 setious biugsiess,
it raptics For lienmo e oue busineny model s shiucaed o ihat the Comygans
1L 0t ovety retiant cra few Lrge castomres O b gast Costumer conctntes
ady, 20 0f Gey poevcodie vl ou tan 20 customans aooount o st oner

1T Grouprecennd Dy anaon, oo ability o ves A cost base rodig es

W AR s 210 suduen ackoorse ouom e e conditiony

Going concern

Accounling Lt ad requine Ut arec o dlint, e el o ot 1 e onaule
toe o to e urs hdes ethier 100 apparepn to 1o prenare Tronical dederients on
ARG LT b
[Resly torarme s ot e o dopment pe fortiere ¢ and postion are el v g
“Ange renon n pages 0o -0 Prog i ook ae Actaled on pages 4B 10 48
The fire sl posrioa of the Grous it cash v o ioudity pasion s bore ang
far e e ddone ihea nthe i ascial stateiment- 0 addtion Secton « o e
i ancial statermne nt e dudos e Group's shiectlees Doloes « o prog esaes,
ormaaging t caprtal de e e d e ko pninagement object ves  detais of e

T b ot aned bieragrag e fralios, ancl s el Os et ok
laudity sk Secean G tathe 1 ncial statements add os- cs *he manggomoent
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AR Ml One ey the dired o Dave a reasonable exneciation that
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Disclosure of information to the auditor

Fach directo: con‘irms thal 5o 1ar «u they are eac h aware 1nere 15 no rolevent
audil nfermation ol whicn the Company s auditor 15 unhaw.are, and e..ch direcion
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Annual General Meeting

Thie Annual Gone al Maetng will be held at Crowne Plaza Hotel, Pondioo Wav,
Maiston Green Binningnam B0 INT on @ May 2019 4t 100
MNotice of the An gl General Moeeing wil be pubiisned on the Sontpany s web site

By citder of i Boaerd

John O'Shea
Coriany Secretiy

28 February 2014
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilibes in respect of the Annual Report and the financial statements
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Director s’ responsibility statement under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules
Eacnof the i foes ac e o e o b repott Lo trmis rst

o bae Grones angd faates T mipany foancial dateme nts e this Al Bepos 0 )i b ase Leenprataca hat ontae © ol ploatds Dikla ata e afnenc
Al alle w8l oo U g sl s groe 2 e oo b s on e aseet Loodilies Do o al posron 2 prent Lfhe Grocp o d
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B, order of the Board

John O’Shea
Compary, Seoretiany

28 February 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of IMI plc

In our opmion:
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Basis for opinion
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of IMI plc

(continued)

Risk

Profit recogmition
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Our response to the risk

Carrying value of goodwill and
acquired intangsble assets
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(continued)

An overview of the scope of our audit

Talloring the scope

O avsasse ert Or guedit rnle o Oued ot ot ot o nalty et o alloe aticr

ot peforrnasor i teaalt, drleoyne e cude ccope o eact ennit, watkbe the
Cronins Tahon trgethor this caatdes ce ta form an opsnaon o the ¢ onsabid1e
finrsnetal staterent We tabe inte aco ot the oo b ation e Gro g roseniie
ard operating peott, ek prodle poeludmg coontne nch ek determined o be
Suattiated has~d on the arad ng ot e cal =ude fir chin s cnctreds indrage

fue e al koopsdodne and osk reaeg ttom chetege e penacane bddiacg
rhanges to 7 - atone i hey midnagement peres el the numbo o
STt ad ¢ G LAt b ned an pesfonman oomarer alty and oy othor ki
lovol o ok fo bwe o eraoriniesd cacboeroly

fac ' wsen gt o e th

Iz wensimg the te s ot matetiab imesstalement o 1he Groun banc al stateng s
dngd T ensore Ae bert a0 guale cuan tlalive ©over xge o' sigific an ae Goonlks
i the mar nl s atemen ~ cfthe 141 renorting compee ants ol tr e Grow
senelecied 30 romponents whichorepress Uihe prnonsal boseess et
sthy the Grer s

CHhe 3T Componients s ol e pettonmeo an aadit ot b eocormpileto
Al et e tmnponeat. L wiheh paee

fneneea priormatior of 17 cor por o
et e baset: ot tl e =1ee 0 tskoor arad tenste o Foothe remeaniaig 273
COMpONents (3pecing S ope Compenes o1 e paatonmod audit srac oonues On
soet e ac conte veton ot componaet thad ¢e o saeted hae e cotential
for the groatastin pact on e o unimieant aceonnts e the Tangnl state ments
IR Oe alls OF 1 8120 OF hiss acoounts Ot ther nsloprotile

The report g eempr ity 5 b e pedonmad and e codores ace o ueted
ko 887 (2017 TH o bt e Sroup S Adiusted proft betare fax mieasare tred
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2017 T4 ~vof the Group 5 To al assets
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Total aseets o speoho scone componenis contnbuted L2 2017 o6 ot
the Group'™ Adiusted prolt hetore tax 1 casure wsea to Soloudate maicnahty,
200 PCT 2070 of the Group » Reover ue and 15% 2017 17 ol e Group »
Total assets The audil : coupe of the specihc 2Cope Lompanests may not hase
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Changes from the prior year

Tho tarmibier of ull e opr onliles ! as ncreascd Ko 142007 130 and (he near it
al specihie seope eobities ha redue eo bo 23 (2017 25) These ¢changes
predomiantly redect recent asousiions and e structunng ohideslaken by
i Croups adn bt as resul oo 0 areshas o wt e aze aned nsk protde of
Certan ertites previou By in seope
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Involvementl with component teams Performance matenality
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(continued)

Bt o text e sl b sl g b sepos anreder i b o 1R -dadi g Auditor's responsibiiies for the audit of the financial statements
et i ally adidross the llov nag dems tihe olbor wvonatios s d fo report as

i abpe ves are 1o Ghtainredasondal ke oass e e sbogt shether e oreaoal
LG0T, e T a8 el imsstatemients ol e St e for Lon v nere e conchioe

that thir e teins 1 eet the follovang cor ditions

* Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 143
- tha statcoent geen b the diectors tha the s onsider the Aneaiat
Fuopor and inancal sta crmonis fahon s a amolo s tae blaced a o
tndo sandable ard progades the information necessan, 1o shoehokde to
dseers the Grovp s pertorrmane e Dosanes - model and s teoy 18 matondy
WL SILTO Lo b G hrewddeddye aot gnod i the qucht

Audit Committee reporting set out on pages 60 to 63
the - echior deserbang “he v otk ol the Aud Carmira ttee docs ot
ApprOpriately aocress matlers corimun cated 1y us te be And Cor m tee o

Directors' statement of compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code set out on page 55

—the uats of e died tor” stater ot roguired et the Lstine Rules relathg
te, thie company s comphance dth the UK Corpordtc Goversang ¢ Code
cort g peo g ens 2pecfed for roview by the auditar arcondae cooath
Loty Rule @ 8 10R2 des not propetty dinclose « dzparture trom a relovant
prisasioe of e UR Conporate Gowenand o Code

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

I our opivo the part of the Directors e onerahion Beport (o be adited
P ORI PropiEsly prep red N ace e ddnd e v b ine Comipanes Aoy 2000
I o Ot o by e on e war ke pndest ket thie o e Hhe andit

M Strategie Bepr et a4 0o Drer o Repere
f o cab o for ed DB Bnan Tl s atemente e cropnaend
1ocont e oweh he fooane il stataments, and

o thertormatis graen

» e Strategic Report and the Directors Report have b propared n
at cotdant & with applicable legal reqrarements,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

fn the: light ot tho knowledge and understandir g ot the Group ant e Parent
Commnany and ity environmaont ootanoa in the caurse of the aude, we have not
wier thied mater 4l misstatements N the Stratogic Repot or the Drec tor s’ Beport

We have nothing o teport nespect ot the follovany matters nrelaton to
whic! the Comparies Act 2006 1equres Us o repor! Lo you il i Ou apmion

= adoguatd AacLounTing roouds have 1ot been kopt by the Preont Germpany
of relurms gdeguate for our aodet have 101 booen recerved from brandt os nol
vinded by us or

o 1ha Parent Company nanciel staternents and the part of the Drectiorns

Rerunetaton Report 1o be audited are not n agreca-ent vk the accounting

records and retuing o

o o an thaclosores of diectors remupreration specitied by bw ore not miade
oF

s e pave not recevod all e informiation and explandtions we reglne for
our aut

Responsibilities of directors

A axplaned more fuily 1 the diectons” responsiilties stadarent set eut on
naga 143, the directors are tesponsibsle %o the prep sration of the inand il
statements ard for bang satisfied that they grie a troe zned fa veve and fo
sorh mterndl conttol as the deectors determing s necassary 1o er ahlo the
preparstion of financal ~tatements frat are tec rom matenai osstitermend
ahethier doe to fiaud o etror,

I prepcnno the nancial statemients she directors are responsiule 10 asses o g
e St ard Feagent Gompary S abildy 1o Conlimue a4 qoing conoen
discloor g s~ apricalle matters related 10 9oy concan an osmng the go 'y
concen basis af accounting unles: e drector= ethet stend to lguid ce the
Grown or he Parert Corpsdny €1 10 e OF&ralion: ol Pove s réalisdig
AMertrtinee It 1o do se

slalemen s das o whole are tree from mater ab - cstaternent vhelher dus

1o raud o oo and to msue an audro sreport tat neluda- oo opaniuh
Reasonalde artarance 1o s hghievel of assorance, U s rot @ gudaraodes st
an aud b condueted g corde ce vath 1ISAS (LK sl abrvays delect a maternal
fsslatemens s nan  exiets Misetaenionts can anse o frawd o coon and
Are conscered inater dl Tondiidually of i the agarogete toey codld reasc ably
e 2ued e 1o i oens £ 108 80010 U delinion v 00 UG faken on e e s o
e e g alb s itemer e

Explanation as to what extent the audnt was considered capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud

The chije tves ©F owaudit trespe Do ratd, are To Sentiny dne assezs he
ris - of rectend tsstatemant of the fanoad statements doee 29 frauct to obran
sathe Nt appropna o aut cvidence regading the assessed ks of mator al
s tatemess Ao 1o 8 wough deaagreng =and mplemeniing aparopoate
resnone e and o respond appropaately to frawt or suspected raod dent ned
dunng the anest Howover the praan responsibily, o the prevenann -nd
cetec o ot gest owith ot thos s o arged it govetianie e of ths

rat, e s aner T

DU apn toah woas as 10k ns

& Ve abtameo an uncestariding of e legal ar o reguialony toameworke ha
are appilic ode te the Group) o d distermine 4 he mioss <igiafic ang e
Laneworh ~ veaich are diec iy relevand 10 spe e asoethons i the finanic sl
statementy oo thes s that selte o the teacdbng fran evonk (- RS FRS 101
the: Cormnpani= Act 2000 ard UK Corporgie Governanc: Code, Inoaodnion
woconchded thot there e carla e Sigibcant | and regulal ote, e b
1y haee an elfect on the delarmination of the amount and diseloonrs n
thes fnancd statements veng the Licting RBules of the JKL ~ting A daar by
arcd 1 e laws and regulations relating 1o heal'h and safote a0 d
e ployee matiers

&L e onderstood howe IMEpIc s complymig vath 1 ose ftames orks by sy
ergpmies of manager ent rdemdgl aucht, those resporstie for legad and
complia w e ptocecnnes arid the compdny secretany. We contoboraled our
earqunigs through our rev ew of board mim ites, papers provided 10 the Audt
Curmmittee ar d cotrespondence «eeered from regulatony pockes

* WG assessod the suseeptibiity of the Group s financ al statemnents 1o nateral
misstaternont nclucing how fraud miget coour Dy mesting with Managenent
from vannis parts of the business to nnderstan where it eoredered thero
was suseeptih ity to fraud We dlso ¢ oneiderad performane ¢ targets and e
rflucnc e on efor ts n ade by managoiment to manage earnings or mflience
the perception s of analysts We consiiared the programmes and ¢optrols
that the Group has establishod to address nsks dentiied o that oflnranse
previontt, deter and detect fraod and bowe seror mdanagement monitors
ther ¢ pirogram< andd controls Wieere the nek geas c onsidered to be higher
wo petfarmed andit procedires 1o adaress each dentifiod frand ek Those
procedures e uded tosting manual [ourr als and were des gned Lo proevide
reasonable aTeurand ¢ that the finaneral staterients waore free from traud
ar onoar

Based on tnis understandir g we designed? our audit procaoues 1o identity
NON-Compharce With such lawes and requiations. Our proc edures mvolved
Journal entry lesting with a focus on manual corsolidat enouinals ana
[Crnsts inch atng farge o ubnscal ansectiors Based or our unde stdnuing
ot the business onoun s of legal coutsel Sronp Managerment, intemal audit
dierional 0 anasement and il and speefc scope managameont, and for used
testing as retarred toan e <oy andit matters <acton abo ¢

Adul! er desonption of eur responsitalres for “he auat of the beanal
statements, 12 lacaled on the Fnancal Report ng Co el 5w ebisile ot
Pps v aney 1o L uke auchiorsresnonsiibies

Thaws desenpt o korn s patt of v srdhitor g cpet



Other matters we are required {o address
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Simon O'Nelll {Senior statutory auditor}
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Company balance sheet

at 31 December 2018

Fixed assets
i estmenty

Current ausL

Bebtors

D¢ fe ted tax assely

Clash at bank and i har o

Credritors: amounts falltng due within one year
Other crodror -

Net current assets

Total assets less current habihties

Met assets

Capital and reserves
Cutied an share Captal
Srare Pretrium Ao et
Capptal redemphion reset ¢
Froft and k-« account
Equity shareholders’ funds

Zd

173.2

4181
22!
0.3

420.6 |

3

416.3

589.5 |

5695

81.8
133
174.4
320.0 |
589.5

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

T4
8491
158 3

Approved by the Boord of Duector on @6 Fataasty 2019 and sny ed onds ehad o

Lord Smith of Kelvin

Cirainran



Company statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2018

153

S are Stae Redenpluon Helar ed Parent

wapilal L. resene EBINNYS equily

o e . o L £ £m '

Al iy 20 818 121 T4 2720 3405

Boan edprrorto the ear 17 T

Lrowdened poackon coctppar < boge R EARTEN [T

Sk sountin the o R T 0o

Shiare-ta e paviaont an P

Share encd by

oL TE S G s wne el 127 R

A a1 Decemibet 2ol ™ =R i=] 127 14 = A58

Retatned profit for the year 237.5 237.5

Dwidends paid on ardinary shares’ 107.9) (107.9)

Shares 1ssued 1n the year - 0.6 0.6

Share-based payiments 7.0 7.0
Shares acquired for

employee share scheme trust (6.0} (6.0}

At 31 December 2018 81.8 13.3 174.4 320.0 589.5

[T i ed oasiry vgud en pleyse oo ch e o hii e T o ements e ntaned o Secte s 0 o Le Geogp b L emient anctosta b ot ddeoden b e

e sl nthie g shoon e nete G4

Alher herotans Soane g b b bt 31 Deveribor oo 1o wond ST 0 00 oo r 2007 e conn lafdd lo b g hibalabrc renonoes
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Company notes to the financial statements

C1. Significant accounting policies

Thie ollow g ac o ounting polices bove been apphed consster Iy desling o h
o consieresd e er alnoelaticn 1o thie b ang il statemont,, exoept  ere
oiher rome noden belo
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Dy su_h amember Belaeo varly fransactons ath the Corpany - key
mdnagenent paerssnnel are dischised 1 the Restuneraton Beperl on page .
GE 1 T and in SECton B 2 on page 1735 ot the Sroup inane i staremenis

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertanty

Tt e v epar aton of finarcul ttatemerts 1egiras mandgeme 1o mahe
jdgoments estimates and assuimptior s that affect e amounts reponoe lor
aszels and labilmes as at the balance shont date ana e amieunts repored for
ncome and expenses dunndg the yoar However, tme nature of ostmation maans
that actual sureomes could difier o those ester ates

Foreign currencies
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Taxation
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C4 Dividends
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2018 | 2017
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GH, Fixed assels - investments
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2018 | 2017
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C6. Debtors
2ms 207
£m m
Falling due for payment after more than one year
Arrount- oveedd by cabaidiary b dertasings 313.9 1708
Falling due for payment within one year,
Amnont oveed by oub cnare nnderianig 104.2 1721
418.1 2R2 9
C7 Deferred tax
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C8 Other creditors falling due within one year

£m £m
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4.3 13
C9. Share capital
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T reated as externdl nvestments

Subsidiary audit exempiions

IMI ks has issued guarantees over the labilities over the follovang compar s at 31 De. ember 2008 uncer Sexcuore 4790 of Companigs Al 2000 and hese
enlites are exemp: from the req arements of 1o Act relating 10 the auct of mdnadual a0 caor ts hy vicoe of Section 4, 94 of the Act

Gompany name 1 Company number Company name ‘ Company number
Hollord Estates Lanited 01181406 IMIEScothamd Lirmited SC37E424
IMI Deutad hland Limited! LyB455h51 IME Sy den Finance Linited Q72725731
WA Ers Prisane o Lvovdent LOTUZOMGG AN W r Lt [SGEP AR
I Flaid Controls (Finance: L imitod 08528502 Trutlo Group Jimided 01430846
IMI Germary Linted , 7843570 Tounes Iedennatio=al Cienited \‘ 164822
M Men st Liribed [EARISIE . Trufle e timends Linded 04430927

IMI Hotnars Lirmnitocd Q0148305



Geographic distribution of employees
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Five year summary

Adjusted 1evenue £m Adjusted profit before tax™ €m Adjtisted Group revenue by geography 2018
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Income statement
2014 2015 2015 2017 2018
_ o - - ) m £m £m Ngal Em
Satutory reyeue 1 by 1067 1057 1,751 1,807
Adisted revenue 1 b3G 1 0h. 1649 1,01 _ 1,807
A hiastod operating profit 20565 TR 22 2 2802 2855
Aclpstedd poant Gotare 1w REE R PR RE 251.2
Sped 1l pensmon evente f a1 .8 106 6.8
Restructuing costs 18 3) 2 ) 118.0) 134 6) {12.4)
Ac.quired rlangible amorisat on and miparment {2 4y (32 2) {25 0) {75 (27.1)
Othier ac guis ben terns, (18 - 2 {3.7)
Gan/foss) or aisposd of subsicharies 317 @t 4) - 2ol 0.6
Financial nstments exc uding econoric hadge cont it gains 1osses 28 =06 [RS] 24 {2.5)
Profit before tax from contnuing operations 296 7 b~ 1653 180 212.9
Adpsied ESITDA 37 263 275 284 320
Group sales by destination
201 2015 2018 2017 2018
L£m £m i £m £m
UK 08 a0 s T4 90
Westioin Buropoe 614 o63 B30 a3 681
North Arr erea Y 334 344 335 451
Emerging Marlels 544 505 525 595 808
Rest of Waorkd 82 &h 80 e 77
Adusted Revenue 1686 1857 1640 1751 1,807
Heversal of niet ecorame heoge o ontran tlossaes viiar ) & i o - -
Statutory Bevenin 1092 1567 1657 1741 1907

Detned as Genmane Fror oo Holland aly Span Jenmiark Greece Belgium Bopnbiic of beland P gal Luxembourg Swoder Fmland A < S sras
Sveitzerh o and Nop vay



Earnings and dividends

Au1d A015 2018 217 2018
A1 1 Dablt Eatli’ go t o s 0 TSy, 4D L0 0 73.2p
Statuteny Danie matnig- 3er s Pare ot ey [ RAP] <8 3 360 62.5p
Oremint chadord por shon ae by ad D a0 HGO 40.6p
Balance sheet
2014 2010 2016 201 2018
m £m m &m £m
SOUTO Tl et oL H19 B2 1727 1,220
O I O B Y G S RN (4 S YRR T SRRl (VIS TS RTA T S STV S TY LT RT A% e [~ (149)
AR IS I PN ) R (405}
Moo 5l Rt Eal e 666
Statistics
2014 2015 2015 2017 2018
Sege ontal opre iy PulE e s 0TLeI e G LT eyl e ] revennn 170 151 13w, ) 14 0%
Sy etilal Cperaling orohil s A percert g Toeg bl nel el 448 RS A1 '3 4 21.8%
Efacte ey rate onoad) s ed neobs boefare tax 2y f2antl Al A NN 21.0%
NEF s 018 PO e St g imastny et ZBY cheares) 278 Ip 2% ap 2761 Aedp 245.8p
Net dett as a percent age of -berel older- " [aods 3ot RN A5 37 60.7%
Metdett addp sren ZBITDA nE ] 160 na 1.4
Adisted EBITDA I tere L i) = 16 20 25
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Shareholder and general information

Anncuncement ot trading results

The Sadding seaufis for the Group for the first bl
of 2018 vl he annc ung e on 20 Jul, 2579

e tracing rowulte for the full vear anding

31 Decemet 2018 will be aiv ounced in
Fetb iy 20020

et mcnagement stalements vl b
15~ oeh Ma s And Nowesnbor 2016

Dividend payments
Final 17 May 20160

Interin Septamber 2019

Share prices and capital gains tax

Troe dloang ke oF 1he Compre w s ordinany, Shoes
o e _ondon Steck Bxcharge o 31 Ze e b
S8 p e Q3 200 TR33 ) The nanket
Yl o the Cor nany < anamedty shares an

S0 e b a8l as L alkoulated for cepital s

Iy pr apones wae L3 iy hore

Tro Comparny s SEAQ number 1w 51 4.4

Enquiries about shareholdings

For enaanes Concemniry sharcholders persotal
haledings please contact the Comparn < Reg sthar
Equnit (c ontact detale anpesr to the wght)

Plea-e rertamzer w led Equrit af you i sve hese
¢ hatge baric dealls orit there < any ofl e chamge
10 yot accaunt mtormaton

Managing your shares on-line

Shaeholde s can manage ther holdings o -k

by registering with Shareview, the inteinet based

plattosm provided by Eguinitt Registtation s a

straighliorwara moeess and allows sharenolders 1o

» help us "o reduce print papel ard postage ¢osts
and e associated environmental impact of
these

* cast your AGM vote elor tronically

s rec anve an ematt alerd shen mportant sharehokuor
documen's are avalable o -hne such as Annual
Reports and Notices ¢of General Meetings,

* actess detalls of your ndnackial shareholding
cpuickly aned securely

» ol up A dvidend miagrglale on-ne, and

* Chgnge your registored Ppostal address or your

dividenc mandate details

To find cub more mformalion ohout the serices
alffered by Sharcview ard tutegster, please st
WIS TATEVIR S 1O, LK

Corporate website

The ML 0 senub provede a weallb GF taet
marorinalion for < harebioldere oo g bl d e your
reetport ot sl o geceral quene, relating to the
Gormsany and vous shares 24 sl s proading
share e e d-17 an d firanoal bestory the cte
alN0 pror e Backar sunc infor e sn abo

e Compan,;

Shateholder are sl eneo g aged fooogn o o
rev el aneves aloe el n the [estoe. se o
of ey ebate. hees oo all o thie finsncad
v el e e chesugho ot Teyran toat
ot ot ocsharab ol by peoe

Y00 LA e

e rorporate ach ate at v ormiple om

Annual General Meeting 2019
Thevear o AGKM v e fiekd al b ¢ Troe e
Plaze NFC Penchgo Wy Brionng' an By 1N
o Tourcday S RGC 2018 a0 10 Fomturt o
gotornolon pleas e oo o the Nole o FRSC g
cebne b o e conperale 2k it

Indwidual Savings Account (ISA}

IMI o dechir dry shares can bie bield we an iSA
Forraemiater auout te 1SA operated by aur
Reg  rar S, ploase call the Egonity 1ISA
heltlinge un N>15 300 U430 Lines are oper rom
8 30am 0 & 30pm Monday to Frday  excluding
pbhc hohdays n England ano VWales

Share dealing service

Managedt by Eoumit the Campay & ragiatrar the
IMIple Shiare doghhig senice prov des sharcholdens
weth aosinple way of buying and selling IMY ordinary
shares Teleprone 0345 60 7037 Full watten
detals can be chtained fron Eauinit (contact
detals appeart to th e oghty

Share fraud

Shate fraud ncludes scamis where rwvestorns are
calloa out of 19 blue and offerad shares that often
tuin out to oe worthless o non-existont of an
nflated prce tor shares they own These calls c ome
from fraud=tor s operating In boler oo 1S tat are
mostly based dbroad Further nformation on how
o spol chate fraud o oot 5 acam an bo oo
On Ol Corpordie wooste

Amencan Depository Receipts

ML ke Bas anc A e oo Depros ey Beceipt 1 ADR D
prow anme that frades on he O e The-Colr e
rratket n it e JSA usng the symibol IMIAY,

AR engames houkd be arected to Silibians
Shareholder Servces PO Box 213077, Provide c¢
REOZS0-3277 USA Toll-f=e nomber in e

USA 15 1-877-CITI-ADR 8T -2 182237 an d from
aut-de the J2A - 1-781-0753- 4550 You can also
el cmeank xnagrehold=ro.crline com

Headguarters and registered office

L-kes i

Sollnl Park way

Birmmngharm Butines: Purs
Birminghiam

B3 TXZ

Telop one 34121 T17 50

ALk regr fored in Fngland Ne 711075

Registrars
Ecquiiit
Aspert House
Spendor Ropad

Lenemng

Vet St e

BNOY 60A

Teloptomne U371 384 2916 o from ovel seas

td4 121 415 TvdT

Lrre argopen 8 3dam 1o 0 3010y Mondey to Fricay
fextfudng prablic bobday s m Dngland e Watens

Stockbrokers
JFMoryan Casenove
Bar k of Amietica Merrl [y ch

Audrtor

grnst & Young LLRP

Cautionary statement

This Anr wal Baport may contain forward-looking
statanents that May or may, 20t rove aucarate Fo
exarrple, siatamerts regarding expectod ievenuo
qgrovdh and nperating maragns matket rends and
aun procuct ppelne ace forvrrd-lookng statements
It 15 beteved that the expectations reflected my those
statements are reasonable but they may he affected
by & aumbaesr of naks and uncertanties that are
irherent in any 1otwaid-looking statement vhies
could canse actual results to oifer matenalhy from
those curtetly antiopated  Any for sard-loak ng
staternent 15 made nooeo fath ang based o
prormation ewalabie to MEplc as of t e aate o
the e eparation of 1s Annual Repod AL ye Hen

or ¢ral tor peara-lookng statement dinbodal o to
WA e ave cpaeddicd oy e caction W pke does
noet usdertake ary Sbbaaton o npdate o reyne
Aty et sr-lookisg b ond torefioe T ang hanae
noreametance onn MEnh o expoc tad
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